SUSSER PETROLEUM PARTNERS LP

FORM
10-K
(Annual Report)

Filed 03/29/13 for the Period Ending 12/31/12
Address 555 EAST AIRTEX DRIVE
HOUSTON, TX 77073
Telephone (832) 234-3600
CIK 0001552275
Symbol SUSP
SIC Code 5172 - Petroleum and Petroleum Products Wholesalers, Except Bulk Stations and Terminals
Industry Oil & Gas Operations
Sector Energy
Fiscal Year 12/31

http://www.edgar-online.com
© Copyright 2014, EDGAR Online, Inc. All Rights Reserved.
Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Online, Inc. Terms of Use.

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
________________

FORM 10-K
_________________
(Mark one)
 ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934



For the Fiscal Year Ended: December 31, 2012
or
TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from ______ to _______
Commission File Number: 001-35653

SUSSER PETROLEUM PARTNERS LP
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware
(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

30-0740483
(I.R.S. Employer
Identification Number)

555 East Airtex Drive
Houston, TX 77073
(Address of principal executive offices, including zip code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (832) 234-3600
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class

Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Units Representing Limited Partner Interests, $.01 par value

New York Stock Exchange (NYSE)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: NONE
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes  No 
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes  No 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes  No 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted to its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and
posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Registration S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes 
No 
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's
knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated
filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Accelerated filer 

Large accelerated filer 
Non-accelerated filer 

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Smaller reporting company 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.): Yes 

No 

As of June 30, 2012, the last business day of the registrant's most recently completed second quarter, the registrant's equity was not listed on a domestic exchange or over-the-counter
market. The registrant's common units began trading on the New York Stock Exchange on September 20, 2012.
The registrant had 10,939,436 common units and 10,939,436 subordinated units outstanding at March 22, 2013.
Documents Incorporated by Reference: None

SUSSER PETROLEUM PARTNERS LP
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
PART I
Item 1.
Item 1A.
Item 1B.
Item 2.
Item 3.
Item 4.

Business
Risk Factors
Unresolved Staff Comments
Properties
Legal Proceedings
Mine Safety Disclosures

1
8
22
22
22
22

PART II
Item 5.
Item 6.
Item 7.
Item 7A.
Item 8.
Item 9.
Item 9A.
Item 9B.

Market for Our Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Selected Financial Data
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Controls and Procedures
Other Information

23
24
26
40
41
41
41
42

PART III
Item 10.
Item 11.
Item 12.
Item 13.
Item 14.

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
Executive Compensation
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
Certain Relationships, Related Transactions and Director Independence
Principal Accounting Fees and Services

43
46
53
55
57

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
Signatures

59
60

PART IV
Item 15.

i

PART I
Item 1.

Business

General
We are a growth-oriented Delaware limited partnership formed in June 2012 by Susser Holdings Corporation, ("SUSS") and its wholly
owned subsidiary, Susser Petroleum Partners GP LLC (our "general partner"), to engage in the primarily fee-based wholesale distribution of
motor fuels to SUSS and third parties. In September 2012, we completed our initial public offering (the “IPO”) and our common units
representing limited partner interests now trade on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “SUSP.” Prior to completion of the IPO, our
operations were conducted by Susser Petroleum Company LLC (“Predecessor”). For the year ended December 31, 2012, we and our Predecessor
distributed 889.8 million gallons of motor fuel to Stripes ® convenience stores and SUSS consignment locations and 560.2 million gallons of
motor fuel to other third-party customers. We believe we are the largest independent motor fuel distributor by gallons in Texas, and among the
largest distributors of Valero and Chevron branded motor fuel in the United States. We also receive rental income from real estate that we lease
or sublease.
Our principal executive offices are located at 555 East Airtex Drive, Houston, Texas 77073. Our telephone number is (832) 234-3600.
Our internet address is http://www.susserpetroleumpartners.com . We make available through our website our annual report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15
(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such
material with, or furnish such material to, the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC. The SEC maintains an internet site at
http://www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with
the SEC.
References in this annual report to “Partnership,” "SUSP," “we,” “us,” and “our,” refer to Susser Petroleum Partners LP, our predecessors
and our consolidated subsidiaries, as applicable and appropriate.
Our Relationship with Susser Holdings Corporation
One of our principal strengths is our relationship with SUSS. SUSS operates approximately 560 retail convenience stores under its
proprietary Stripes® brand, primarily in growing Texas markets. Stripes is a leading independent operator of convenience stores in Texas, based
on store count and retail motor fuel volumes sold. Our business is integral to the success of SUSS' retail operations, and SUSS purchases
substantially all of its motor fuel from us.
The Susser family entered the motor fuel retailing and distribution business in the 1930's. Sam L. Susser, the President and Chief
Executive Officer of SUSS and Chief Executive Officer and chairman of the board of directors of our general partner, joined SUSS in 1988,
when it operated five retail stores and had revenues of $8.4 million. SUSS has demonstrated a strong track record of internal growth and the
ability to successfully integrate acquisitions into its operations, completing 13 multi-unit acquisitions consisting of both retail stores and
wholesale distribution contracts since 1988. In addition, SUSS constructed 141 large-format convenience stores from January 2000 through
December 31, 2012 , and intends to construct 29 to 35 stores during 2013. SUSS has also developed Laredo Taco Company ®, a proprietary inhouse restaurant concept, and implemented it in over 352 Stripes® convenience stores, and intends to implement it in all newly constructed
Stripes® convenience stores. Shares of SUSS' common stock are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol "SUSS".
Commercial Agreements
Two long-term, fee-based commercial agreements with SUSS were contributed to us in connection with the IPO. These commercial
agreements with SUSS consist of:
• A fuel distribution agreement (“SUSS Distribution Contract”), pursuant to which we are the exclusive distributor of motor fuel to
SUSS' existing Stripes ® convenience stores and independently operated consignment locations, and to all future sites purchased
by the Partnership pursuant to the sale and leaseback option under the Omnibus Agreement. Under the SUSS Distribution Contract,
motor fuel is purchased from us at cost, including tax and transportation costs, plus a fixed profit margin of three cents per gallon,
for a period of ten years. In addition, all future motor fuel volumes purchased by SUSS for its own account will be added to the
SUSS Distribution Contract pursuant to the terms of our Omnibus Agreement; and
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• A Transportation Contract (“SUSS Transportation Contract”), pursuant to which SUSS arranges for motor fuel to be delivered from
our suppliers to our customers at rates consistent with those charged to third parties for the delivery of motor fuel, with the cost
being entirely passed along to our customers, including SUSS.
Omnibus Agreement
In addition to the above commercial agreements, we also entered into an Omnibus Agreement with SUSS in connection with the IPO.
Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement, among other things, the Partnership received a three-year option to purchase from SUSS up to 75 of SUSS'
new or recently constructed Stripes ® convenience stores at SUSS' cost and lease the stores back to SUSS at a specified rate for a 15-year initial
term, and the Partnership will be the exclusive distributor of motor fuel to such stores for a period of ten years from the date of purchase. The
Partnership also received a ten-year right to participate in acquisition opportunities with SUSS, to the extent the Partnership and SUSS are able
to reach an agreement on terms, and the exclusive right to distribute all motor fuel SUSS purchases for its own account which would generally
include all of SUSS' newly constructed convenience stores and independently operated consignment locations. In addition, the Partnership
agreed to reimburse the general partner and its affiliates for the costs incurred in managing and operating the Partnership.
For more information regarding the commercial agreements and the Omnibus Agreement, please read ''Item 13. Certain Relationships,
Related Transactions and Director Independence.”

Our Business and Properties
We are a wholesale distributor of motor fuels and other petroleum products, and we lease or sublease to SUSS, third-party dealers, and
independent operators of consignment locations, real estate used primarily in the retail distribution of motor fuels. We do not operate or intend to
operate any retail convenience stores.
Wholesale Motor Fuel Distribution
We purchase motor fuel from refiners and distribute it throughout Texas and in New Mexico, Oklahoma and Louisiana to (i) Stripes®
convenience stores, (ii) SUSS' independently operated consignment locations; (iii) convenience stores and retail fuel outlets operated by third
parties and (iv) other commercial customers. Subsequent to our IPO, we classify sales to SUSS for its Stripes® stores and consignment locations
as affiliated sales. Prior to our IPO, our Predecessor supplied the SUSS consignment locations directly and therefore these sales were included in
third-party sales. The following table highlights our total motor fuel gallons sold during each of the last five fiscal years (gallons in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2009
2010
2011

2008
Customer Group
Affiliates
Third-party dealers and other commercial customers

2012 (1)

609,821

707,106

739,104

789,578

889,755

486,516
1,096,337

494,821
1,201,927

494,209
1,233,313

522,832
1,312,410

560,199
1,449,954

Total
________________
(1) SUSS consignment gallons are included in Third-party dealers and other commercial customers prior to September 25, 2012 and are included
in Affiliates beginning September 25, 2012.
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The following table highlights the number of locations as of the end of the year, by principal customer group:

As of Year Ended December 31,
2009
2010
2011

2008
Customer Group
Affiliates
Third-party contracted dealer locations

2012 (1)

512

526

526

541

648

372
884

390
916

431
957

565
1,106

490
1,138

Total
________________
(1) SUSS consignment locations are included in Third-party dealers and other commercial customers prior to September 25, 2012 and are
included in Affiliates beginning September 25, 2012.
Sales to Affiliates.

Pursuant to the SUSS Distribution Contract and the Omnibus Agreement, we are the exclusive distributor of motor fuel purchased by
SUSS' Stripes® convenience store locations and independently operated consignment locations. We charge a fixed profit margin of three cents
per gallon to all SUSS-supplied stores existing at the time of the IPO and purchased by us pursuant to our sale and leaseback option. Unless
other fuel supply terms are negotiated between SUSS and us, the profit margin for other additional Stripes ® or consignment locations will be at
the alternative fuel sales rate, as determined annually pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement.
As of December 31, 2012, SUSS operated 559 Stripes® convenience stores, 512 of which were in Texas, 29 of which were in New
Mexico, and 18 of which were in Oklahoma. As of December 31, 2012, 553 Stripes® convenience stores were supplied by us, predominately at
a fixed profit margin of three cents per gallon. Approximately 85% of the Stripes® convenience stores are open 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.
SUSS has built over 141 Stripes® convenience stores since January 1, 2000 through December 31, 2012 , which average approximately 5,000
square feet and are built on large lots with much larger motor fueling and parking facilities as compared to older stores and many of our
competitors' stores. According to a report of 2011 industry data issued by the National Association of Convenience Stores, the average size of
new stores in the U.S. was 4,083 square feet in urban areas, and 4,024 square feet in rural areas. The average size of existing stores in the
industry is 2,813 square feet.
As of December 31, 2012 , SUSS had consignment arrangements with independent operators at 89 locations, all of which we charge a
fixed profit margin of three cents per gallon. At these consignment locations, SUSS provides and controls motor fuel inventory and price at the
site and receives the actual retail selling price for each gallon sold, less a commission paid to the retail operator of the location.
Sales to Contracted Third Parties.
As of December 31, 2012 , we distributed fuel under long-term contracts to 490 convenience stores and retail fuel outlets operated by
third parties. No single third-party dealer is material to our business. Under our distribution contracts with third parties, we agree to distribute a
particular branded or unbranded motor fuel to a location or group of locations and arrange for all transportation. We typically receive a fee per
gallon equal to the posted purchase price at the fuel supply terminal, plus transportation costs, taxes and a fixed, volume-based fee, which is
usually expressed in cents per gallon. The initial term of most dealer distribution contracts is ten years, and as of December 31, 2012 , our dealer
distribution contracts had an average remaining life of seven years. These dealer distribution agreements require, among other things, that
dealers maintain the standards established by the applicable brand. At our option, we may provide credit to our customers.
We continually seek to expand our dealer distribution network through incremental additions of existing and new dealers and through
acquisitions of contracts for existing independently operated sites from other distributors. We evaluate potential independent site operators based
on their creditworthiness and the quality of their site and operations, including the site's size and location, projected monthly volumes of motor
fuel, monthly merchandise sales, overall financial performance and previous operating experience. We may extend credit to certain dealers based
on our credit evaluation process.
Dealer Incentives
In addition to motor fuel distribution, we offer dealers the opportunity to participate in merchandise purchasing and promotional
programs arranged with vendors. We believe the vendor relationships we have established through SUSS' retail
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operations and our ability to develop programs provide us with an advantage over other distributors when recruiting new dealers into our
network, as well as retaining current dealers. Our dealer incentives allow our dealers to access products and services, such as ATM machines and
automated movie rental kiosks, that they would not likely be able to obtain either on their own or at our discounted rates.
Sales to Other Commercial Customers
We also distribute unbranded fuel to numerous other customers, including convenience stores, unattended fueling facilities and certain
other commercial customers. These distribution arrangements totaled approximately 160 million gallons during the twelve months ended
December 31, 2012 . These customers are primarily commercial, governmental and other parties who buy motor fuel by the load or in bulk and
who do not generally enter exclusive contractual relationships with us, if they enter into a contractual relationship with us at all. Sales to these
customers are typically made at a quoted price based upon our cost plus taxes, cost of transportation and a margin determined by us at time of
sale, and may provide for immediate payment or the extension of credit for up to 30 days. We also sell propane, lube oil and other petroleum
products to our commercial customers on both a spot and contracted basis.
Fuel Supplier Arrangements
We distribute branded motor fuel under the Chevron, CITGO, Conoco, Exxon, Mobil, Phillips 66, Shamrock, Shell, Texaco and Valero
brands. We purchase this branded motor fuel from major oil companies and refiners under supply agreements. We also distribute unbranded
motor fuel, which we purchase either on a rack basis based upon prices posted by the refiner at a fuel supply terminal, or on a contract basis with
the price tied to one or more market indices.
For fiscal 2012 , Valero supplied approximately 35% and Chevron supplied approximately 20% of our consolidated motor fuel
purchases. Our supply agreement with Valero expires in July 2018. We have been distributors for Chevron since 1996 and our current contract
with Chevron expires in August 2014. We purchase the motor fuel at the supplier's applicable price at the terminal, which typically changes
daily. Our supply agreements with other suppliers generally have an initial term of three years. In addition, each supply agreement typically
contains provisions relating to payment terms, use of the supplier's brand names, credit card processing, compliance with supplier's requirements,
insurance coverage and compliance with legal and environmental requirements, among others. As is typical in the industry, our suppliers
generally can terminate the supply contract if we do not comply with any material condition of the contract, including our failure to make
payments when due, fraud, criminal misconduct, bankruptcy or insolvency. Generally, our supply agreements have provisions that obligate the
supplier to sell up to an agreed upon number of gallons, subject to certain limitations. Any amount in excess of that agreed upon amount is
subject to availability. Due to the large volumes of motor fuel we purchase, we may receive volume rebates or incentive payments to drive
volumes and provide an incentive for branding new locations. Certain suppliers require that all or a portion of any such branding incentive
payments be repaid to the supplier in the event that the sites are closed or rebranded within a stated number of years.
We have historically received early payment and volume-related discounts from our suppliers, although there is no guarantee that we
will continue to receive these discounts in the future. Please read “Risk Factors-Risks Inherent in Our Business". Certain of our contracts with
suppliers currently have early payment and volume-related discounts which reduce the price we pay for motor fuel that we purchase from them.
If we are unable to renew these contracts on similar terms, our gross profit will correspondingly decrease.”
Bulk Fuel Purchases
We may periodically purchase motor fuel in bulk and hold it in inventory or transport it via pipeline, in which case we mitigate the
inventory risk through the use of commodity futures contracts or other derivative instruments which are matched in quantity and timing to the
anticipated usage of the inventory. These fuel hedging positions have not been material to our operations. In certain instances, we blend in
various additives including ethanol and bio-mass based diesel. During 2010, 2011 and 2012 , bulk fuel purchases were immaterial to our total
fuel purchases, representing only 4.5% of our total gallons purchased for the year ended December 31, 2012 . Bulk inventory was not
contributed to us by SUSS at our IPO, and as of December 31, 2012, we did not hold any motor fuel inventory in bulk. We began purchasing
bulk fuel in January 2013.
Transportation Logistics
Pursuant to the SUSS Transportation Contract, SUSS provides transportation logistics for most of our motor fuel deliveries. Through
third-party transportation providers or its own fleet of fuel transportation vehicles, SUSS arranges for motor fuel to be delivered from the
storage terminals to the appropriate sites in our distribution network at prices consistent with those historically charged to third parties for the
delivery of fuel. Under this arrangement and pursuant to our contracts
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with third-party customers and SUSS, we pass through all transportation costs and consequently do not incur any profit or loss relating to
transportation. We deliver motor fuel, propane, and lubricants to some customers using our trucks.
Technology
Technology is an important part of our wholesale operations. We utilize a proprietary web-based system that allows our wholesale
customers to access their accounts at any time from a personal computer to obtain prices, place orders and review invoices, credit card
transactions and electronic funds transfer notifications. Substantially all of our customer payments are processed by electronic funds transfer. We
use an internet-based system to assist with fuel inventory management and procurement and an integrated wholesale fuel system for financial
accounting, procurement, billing and inventory management.
Real Estate and Lease Arrangements
As of December 31, 2012, we owned 51 locations, including eight Stripes® locations purchased pursuant to our sale and leaseback
option under the Omnibus Agreement, and leased 12 additional locations, most of which are in Texas, and all of which we rent or sublease to
third parties. We collect rent from the lessees pursuant to lease agreements with them. Our leases typically have a term of five to ten years and as
of December 31, 2012, the average remaining lease term for our current lease agreements was approximately seven years.
Growth Opportunities in Rental Income from SUSS
Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement, we have the option to enter into sale and leaseback transactions with SUSS for up to 75 Stripes®
convenience stores. As of December 31, 2012, through our wholly owned subsidiary, Susser Petroleum Property Company LLC ("PropCo"), we
completed sale and leaseback transactions with SUSS on 8 locations. We intend to pursue additional sale and leaseback transactions with SUSS
in the future, which we believe will help promote SUSS' organic growth strategy while providing us with additional cash flows from rent and the
wholesale distribution of fuel.
SUSS' organic growth plans call for the opening of 29 to 35 newly constructed stores in 2013 in addition to the 25 newly constructed
stores SUSS opened in 2012. SUSS currently owns sufficient properties for a large portion of the stores scheduled to be built in 2013, and is
continuously evaluating new properties within or contiguous to its existing Stripes market areas. SUSS currently expects to sell 25 to 35 of its
newly constructed stores to us during 2013.

Competition
We compete primarily with other independent motor fuel distributors. The market for distribution of wholesale motor fuel is highly
competitive and fragmented, which results in narrow margins. We have numerous competitors, some of which may have significantly greater
resources and name recognition than we do. Significant competitive factors include the availability of major brands, customer service, price,
range of services offered and quality of service, among others. We rely on our ability to provide value-added and reliable service and to control
our operating costs in order to maintain our margins and competitive position.
Seasonality
Our business exhibits some seasonality due to our customers' increased demand for motor fuel during the late spring and summer
months as compared to the fall and winter months. Travel, recreation and construction activities typically increase in these months in the
geographic areas in which we operate, increasing the demand for motor fuel. Therefore, the volume of motor fuel that we distribute is typically
somewhat higher in the second and third quarters of our fiscal year. As a result, our results from operations may vary from period to period.
Working Capital Requirements
We have minimal working capital requirements, as we do not hold significant amounts of inventory and we receive payment for most of
the gallons we sell on approximately the same payment terms as we have with our suppliers. Both our accounts receivable and accounts payable
balances may fluctuate with seasonal trends in the business as well as with increases or decreases in the cost of fuel.
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Insurance
Our operations and assets are insured under an insurance program administered by SUSS. SUSS uses a combination of self-insurance
and third-party insurance with predetermined deductibles that cover certain insurable risks. SUSS' liability represents an estimate of the ultimate
cost of claims incurred as of the balance sheet dates. The estimated undiscounted liability is established based upon analysis of historical data
and includes judgments and actuarial assumptions regarding economic conditions, the frequency and severity of claims, claim development
patterns and claim management and settlement practices. Although we have not experienced significant changes in actual expenditures compared
to actuarial assumptions as a result of increased costs or incidence rates, such changes could occur in the future and could significantly impact
our results of operations and financial position. We reimburse SUSS for insurance costs as set forth in the Omnibus Agreement.
Management believes that the amount of coverage provided is reasonable and appropriate. We have obtained directors' and officers'
liability insurance for the directors and officers of our general partner.
Environmental Matters
Environmental Laws and Regulations
We are subject to various federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations, including those relating to underground storage
tanks; the release or discharge of hazardous materials into the air, water and soil; the generation, storage, handling, use, transportation and
disposal of regulated materials; the exposure of persons to regulated materials; and the remediation of contaminated soil and groundwater.
Environmental laws and regulations can restrict or impact our business activities in many ways, such as:
• requiring remedial action to mitigate releases of hydrocarbons, hazardous substances or wastes caused by our operations or
attributable to former operators;
• requiring capital expenditures to comply with environmental control requirements; and
• enjoining the operations of facilities deemed to be in noncompliance with environmental laws and regulations.
Failure to comply with environmental laws and regulations may trigger a variety of administrative, civil and criminal enforcement
measures, including the assessment of monetary penalties, the imposition of remedial requirements and the issuance of orders enjoining or
otherwise curtailing future operations. Certain environmental statutes impose strict, joint and several liability for costs required to clean up and
restore sites where hydrocarbons, hazardous substances or wastes have been released or disposed of. Moreover, neighboring landowners and
other third parties may file claims for personal injury and property damage allegedly caused by the release of hydrocarbons, hazardous
substances or other wastes into the environment.
We believe we are in compliance in all material respects with applicable environmental laws and regulations, and we do not believe that
compliance with federal, state or local environmental laws and regulations will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of
operations or cash available for distribution to our unitholders. Any future change in regulatory requirements could cause us to incur significant
costs.
Hazardous Substances and Releases
Certain environmental laws, including the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980
(“CERCLA”), impose strict, and under certain circumstances, joint and several, liability on the owner and operator as well as former owners and
operators of properties for the costs of investigation, removal or remediation of contamination and also impose liability for any related damages
to natural resources without regard to fault. In addition, under CERCLA and similar state laws, as persons who arrange for the transportation,
treatment or disposal of hazardous substances, we also may be subject to similar liability at sites where such hazardous substances come to be
located. We may also be subject to third-party claims alleging property damage and/or personal injury in connection with releases of or
exposure to hazardous substances at, from or in the vicinity of our current properties or off-site waste disposal sites.
We are required to comply with federal and state financial responsibility requirements to demonstrate that we have the ability to pay for
remediation or to compensate third parties for damages incurred as a result of a release of regulated materials from our underground storage tank
systems. We meet these requirements primarily by maintaining insurance which we purchase from private insurers.
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Environmental Reserves
As of December 31, 2012 , we had no reserves for environmental matters and had no known liabilities for sites we own. Our Omnibus
Agreement with SUSS provides that SUSS must indemnify us for costs that we incur for environmental liabilities and third-party claims that are
based on environmental conditions in existence at the contributed properties prior to the IPO. The indemnity expires September 2015.
Underground Storage Tanks
We are required to make financial expenditures to comply with regulations governing underground storage tanks adopted by federal,
state and local regulatory agencies. Pursuant to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended, the Environmental Protection
Agency(“EPA”) has established a comprehensive regulatory program for the detection, prevention, investigation and cleanup of leaking
underground storage tanks. State or local agencies are often delegated the responsibility for implementing the federal program or developing and
implementing equivalent state or local regulations. We have a comprehensive program in place for performing routine tank testing and other
compliance activities which are intended to promptly detect and investigate any potential releases. We believe we are in compliance in all
material respects with requirements applicable to our underground storage tanks.
Air Emissions
The Federal Clean Air Act (the “CAA”) and similar state laws impose requirements on emissions to the air from motor fueling activities
in certain areas of the country, including those that do not meet state or national ambient air quality standards. These laws may require the
installation of vapor recovery systems to control emissions of volatile organic compounds to the air during the motor fueling process. Under the
CAA and comparable state and local laws, permits are typically required to emit regulated air pollutants into the atmosphere. We believe that we
currently hold or have applied for all necessary air permits and that we are in substantial compliance with applicable air laws and regulations.
Although we can give no assurances, we are aware of no changes to air quality regulations that will have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations or cash available for distribution to our unitholders.
Various federal, state and local agencies have the authority to prescribe product quality specifications for the motor fuels that we sell,
largely in an effort to reduce air pollution. Failure to comply with these regulations can result in substantial penalties. Although we can give no
assurances, we believe we are currently in substantial compliance with these regulations.
Efforts at the federal and state level are currently underway to reduce the levels of greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions from various
sources in the United States. At the federal level, Congress has considered legislation to reduce GHG emissions in the United States but no such
legislation has been passed. Such federal legislation may impose a carbon emissions tax or establish a cap-and-trade program or regulation by
the EPA. Even in the absence of new federal legislation, GHG emissions have begun to be regulated by the EPA pursuant to the CAA. For
example, in April 2010, the EPA set a new emissions standard for motor vehicles to reduce GHG emissions. New federal or state restrictions on
emissions of GHGs that may be imposed in areas of the United States in which we conduct business and that apply to our operations could
adversely affect the demand for our products.
Other Government Regulation
The Petroleum Marketing Practices Act, or PMPA, is a federal law that governs the relationship between a refiner and a distributor, as
well as between a distributor and branded dealer, pursuant to which the refiner or distributor permits a distributor or dealer to use a trademark in
connection with the sale or distribution of motor fuel. Under the PMPA, we may not terminate or fail to renew a branded distributor contract
unless certain enumerated preconditions or grounds for termination or nonrenewal are met and we also comply with the prescribed notice
requirements.
Employee Safety
We are subject to the requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act, or "OSHA," and comparable state statutes that regulate the
protection of the health and safety of workers. In addition, OSHA's hazard communication standards require that information be maintained
about hazardous materials used or produced in operations and that this information be provided to employees, state and local government
authorities and citizens. We believe that we are in substantial compliance with the applicable OSHA requirements.
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Title to Properties, Permits and Licenses
We believe we have all of the assets needed, including leases, permits and licenses, to operate our business in all material respects. With
respect to any consents, permits or authorizations that have not been obtained, we believe that the failure to obtain these consents, permits or
authorizations will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash available for distribution to our
unitholders.
We believe we have satisfactory title to all of our assets. Title to property may be subject to encumbrances, including repurchase rights
and use, operating and environmental covenants and restrictions, including restrictions on branded motor fuels that may be sold at such sites. We
believe that none of these encumbrances will detract materially from the value of our sites or from our interest in these sites, nor will they
interfere materially with the use of these sites in the operation of our business. These encumbrances may, however, impact our ability to sell the
site to an entity seeking to use the land for alternative purposes.
Our Employees
We are managed and operated by the board of directors and executive officers of our general partner. Neither we nor our subsidiaries
have any employees. Our general partner has the sole responsibility for providing the employees and other personnel necessary to conduct our
operations. All of the employees that conduct our business are employed by SUSS and its affiliates. Our general partner and its affiliates have
approximately 100 employees performing services for our operations, and appropriate costs are allocated to us. We believe that our general
partner and its affiliates have a satisfactory relationship with those employees. None of these employees are subject to collective bargaining
agreements. Information concerning the executive officers of our general partner is contained in "Item 10. Executive Officers and Directors of
our General Partner."
Item 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Related to Our Business
SUSS is our largest customer, and we are dependent on SUSS for a significant majority of our revenues. Therefore, we are indirectly subject
to the business risks of SUSS. If SUSS changes its business strategy, is unable to satisfy its obligations under our various commercial
agreements for any reason, or significantly reduces the volume of motor fuel it purchases under the SUSS Distribution Contract, our
revenues will decline and our financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and ability to make distributions to our unitholders will be
adversely affected.
For the year ended December 31, 2012 , SUSS would have accounted for approximately 65% of our revenues, 50% of our gross profit
and 65% of our motor fuel volumes sold, had our initial public offering, related contribution transactions and entry into commercial contracts
with SUSS occurred on January 1, 2012. As we expect to continue to derive a significant percentage of our revenues from SUSS for the
foreseeable future, we are subject to the risk of nonpayment or nonperformance by SUSS under the SUSS Distribution Contract. Furthermore,
the SUSS Distribution Contract does not impose any minimum volume obligations on SUSS and SUSS will have a limited ability to remove
Stripes ® convenience stores from the SUSS Distribution Contract. If SUSS changes its business strategy or significantly reduces the volume of
motor fuel it purchases for its Stripes ® convenience stores and independently operated consignment locations, our cash flows will be adversely
impacted. Any event, whether in our areas of operation or otherwise, that materially and adversely affects SUSS' financial condition, results of
operation or cash flows may adversely affect our ability to sustain or increase cash distributions to our unitholders. Accordingly, we are
indirectly subject to the operational and business risks of SUSS, some which are related to the following:
• competitive pressures from convenience stores, gasoline stations, and non-traditional fuel retailers such as supermarkets, club
stores and mass merchants located in SUSS' markets;
• volatility in prices for motor fuel, which could adversely impact consumer demand for motor fuel;
• increasing consumer preferences for alternative motor fuels, or improvements in fuel efficiency;
• seasonal trends in the convenience store industry, which significantly impact SUSS' motor fuel sales;
• the impact of severe or unfavorable weather conditions on SUSS' facilities or communications networks, or on consumer behavior,
travel and convenience store traffic patterns;
• cross-border risks associated with the concentration of SUSS' stores in markets bordering Mexico;
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• SUSS' dependence on information technology systems;
• SUSS' ability to build or acquire and successfully integrate new stores;
• the operation of SUSS' retail stores in close proximity to stores of our other customers; and
• risks relating to SUSS' substantial indebtedness and its dependence on us for cash flow generation.
Finally, we have no control over SUSS, our largest source of revenue and our primary customer. SUSS may elect to pursue a business
strategy that does not favor us and our business. SUSS owns and controls our general partner, which has sole responsibility for conducting our
business and managing our operations. Our general partner and its affiliates, including SUSS, have conflicts of interest with us and limited
fiduciary duties and they may favor their own interests to the detriment of us and our unitholders.
We may not have sufficient cash from operations following the establishment of cash reserves and payment of costs and expenses, including
cost reimbursements to our general partner, to enable us to pay the minimum quarterly distribution to our unitholders.
We may not have sufficient cash each quarter to pay the full amount of our minimum quarterly distribution of $0.4375 per unit, or
$1.75 per unit per year, which will require us to have available cash of approximately $9.6 million per quarter, or $38.3 million per year, based
on the number of common and subordinated units currently outstanding. The amount of cash we can distribute on our common and subordinated
units principally depends upon the amount of cash we generate from our operations, which will fluctuate from quarter to quarter based on a
number of factors, some of which are beyond our control, including, among other things:
• demand for motor fuel in the markets we serve, including seasonal fluctuations in demand for motor fuel;
• competition from other companies that sell motor fuel products in our market areas;
• regulatory action affecting the supply of or demand for motor fuel, our operations, our existing contracts or our operating costs;
• prevailing economic conditions; and
• volatility of prices for motor fuel.
In addition, the actual amount of cash we will have available for distribution will depend on other factors including:
• the level and timing of capital expenditures we make;
• the cost of acquisitions, if any;
• our debt service requirements and other liabilities;
• fluctuations in our working capital needs;
• reimbursements made to our general partner and its affiliates for all direct and indirect expenses they incur on our behalf pursuant
to the partnership agreement;
• our ability to borrow funds and access capital markets;
• restrictions contained in debt agreements to which we are a party; and
• the amount of cash reserves established by our general partner.
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The growth of our wholesale business depends in part on SUSS' ability to construct, open and profitably operate new Stripes® convenience
stores. If SUSS does not construct additional Stripes® convenience stores, our growth strategy and ability to increase cash distributions to
our unitholders may be adversely affected.
A significant part of our growth strategy is to increase our wholesale fuel distribution volumes and rental income relating to newly
constructed Stripes ® convenience stores. SUSS may not be able to construct and open new convenience stores, and any new stores that SUSS
opens may be unprofitable or fail to attract expected volumes of motor fuel sales. Several factors that could affect SUSS' ability to open and
profitably operate new stores include:
• competition in targeted market areas;
• the inability to identify and acquire suitable sites for new stores or to negotiate acceptable leases for such sites;
• difficulties in adapting distribution and other operational and management systems to an expanded network of stores;
• the potential inability to obtain adequate financing to fund its expansion; and
• difficulties in obtaining governmental and other third-party consents, permits and licenses needed to construct and operate
additional stores.
Furthermore, SUSS is not obligated to construct additional Stripes® convenience stores nor enter into additional sale and leaseback
transactions with respect to any newly constructed stores beyond the 75 option stores under the Omnibus Agreement. Additionally, under the
SUSS Distribution Contract, SUSS will continue to have the right to convert a limited number of stores each year to third-party consignment
contracts, and the third-party wholesalers party to such consignment contracts would not be obligated to purchase any motor fuel from us. If
SUSS were to determine in the future that growth via the construction of additional Stripes® convenience stores or additional sale and leaseback
transactions is not attractive or that it is more advantageous to contract for third-party consignment sales of motor fuel at existing or future
locations as opposed to SUSS selling the motor fuel, it could adversely impact our ability to grow our motor fuel volumes and rental income and
our ability to make distributions to our unitholders could be adversely affected.
A substantial majority of our revenues are generated under contracts that must be renegotiated or replaced periodically. If we are unable to
successfully renegotiate or replace these contracts, then our results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.
For the year ended December 31, 2012, on a pro forma basis, SUSS would have accounted for approximately 65% of our revenues,
50% of our gross profit and 65% of our motor fuel volumes sold. The SUSS Distribution Contract has (i) a term of ten years from the IPO with
respect to sales of motor fuel to existing Stripes ® convenience stores and consignment locations, and (ii) a term of ten years from the applicable
option store closing date with respect to any Stripes ® convenience stores we purchase and lease back to SUSS pursuant to the 75 store option.
However, SUSS is under no obligation to renew these volumes under the SUSS Distribution Contract on similar terms or at all, and SUSS'
failure to renew the SUSS Distribution Contract would have a material adverse effect on our business, liquidity and results of operations. In
addition, SUSS' obligation under the Omnibus Agreement to purchase any fuel it sells in the future for its own account will expire after ten
years.
Our third-party revenues are generated under contracts with specified term lengths. As these contracts expire, they must be renegotiated
or replaced. Our existing third-party dealer distribution contracts generally have an initial term of ten years and currently have an average
remaining term of approximately five years. These dealers have no obligation to renew their distribution contracts with us on similar terms or at
all.
We receive rental income from 55 properties that we currently lease or sublease to third parties, and eight Stripes ® locations. Our
lessees have no obligation to renew their contracts. Our third-party rental contracts typically have an initial term of five to ten years, and, as of
December 31, 2012, had an average remaining life of seven years.
We may be unable to renegotiate or replace our third-party distribution contracts or leases when they expire, and the terms of any
renegotiated contracts may not be as favorable as the terms of the contracts they replace. Whether these contracts are successfully renegotiated or
replaced is frequently subject to factors beyond our control. Such factors include fluctuations in motor fuel prices, counterparty ability to pay for
or accept the contracted volumes and a competitive marketplace for the services offered by us. If we cannot successfully renegotiate or replace
our third-party contracts or must renegotiate or replace
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them on less favorable terms, revenues from these arrangements could decline and our ability to make distributions to our unitholders could be
adversely affected.
Our financial condition and results of operations are influenced by changes in the prices of motor fuel, which may adversely impact our
margins, our customers' financial condition and the availability of trade credit.
Our operating results are influenced by prices for motor fuel, pricing volatility and the market for such products. When prices for motor
fuel rise, some of our customers may have insufficient credit to purchase motor fuel from us at their historical volumes. In addition, significant
and persistent increases in the retail price of motor fuel could also diminish consumer demand, which could subsequently diminish the volume of
motor fuel we distribute. Furthermore, higher prices for motor fuel may reduce our access to trade credit support or cause it to become more
expensive. On the other hand, significant decreases in wholesale motor fuel prices could result in lower motor fuel gross margins per gallon due
to the reduction in value of discounts from our suppliers.
A significant decrease in demand for motor fuel in the areas we serve would reduce our ability to make distributions to our unitholders.
A significant decrease in demand for motor fuel in the areas that we serve could significantly reduce our revenues and, therefore, reduce
our ability to make or increase distributions to our unitholders. Our revenues are dependent on various trends, such as trends in commercial truck
traffic, travel and tourism in our areas of operation, and these trends can change. Furthermore, seasonal fluctuations or regulatory action,
including government imposed fuel efficiency standards, may affect demand for motor fuel. Because certain of our operating costs and expenses
are fixed and do not vary with the volumes of motor fuel we distribute, our costs and expenses might not decrease ratably or at all should we
experience a reduction in our volumes distributed. As a result, we may experience declines in our profit margin if our fuel distribution volumes
decrease.
Certain of our contracts with suppliers currently have early payment and volume-related discounts which reduce the price we pay for motor
fuel that we purchase from them. If we are unable to renew these contracts on similar terms, our gross profit will correspondingly decrease.
Certain of our contracts with suppliers currently have early payment and volume-related discounts based on the timing of our payment
and the market price of the fuel and volumes that we purchase. During the year ended December 31, 2012, on a pro forma basis, we would have
received early payment and volume-related discounts on approximately 44 % of all motor fuel volumes purchased. If we were to be unable to
qualify for these discounts, or unable to renew these contracts on similar terms, our gross profit would decrease, which could, in turn, reduce our
cash available for distribution to our unitholders.
We currently depend on two principal suppliers for the majority of our motor fuel. A failure by a principal supplier to renew our supply
agreement, a disruption in supply or an unexpected change in our supplier relationships could have a material adverse effect on our
business.
For fiscal 2012, Valero supplied approximately 35% and Chevron supplied approximately 20% of our consolidated motor fuel
purchases. Our supply agreement with Valero expires in July 2018 and our supply agreement with Chevron expires in August 2014. If Valero or
Chevron elects not to renew their contracts with us, we may be unable to replace the volume of motor fuel we currently purchase from them on
similar terms or at all. Furthermore, a disruption in supply or a significant change in our relationship with our principal fuel suppliers could have
a material adverse effect on our business, results of operation and cash available for distribution to our unitholders.
We are exposed to performance risk in our supply chain. If our suppliers are unable to sell to us sufficient amounts of motor fuel products,
we may be unable to satisfy our customers' demand for motor fuel.
We rely upon our suppliers to timely provide the volumes and types of motor fuels for which they contract with us. We purchase motor
fuels from a variety of suppliers under term contracts. Generally, our supply contracts do not guarantee that we will receive all of the volumes
that we need to fulfill the demands of our distribution customers. In times of extreme market demand or supply disruption, we may be unable to
acquire enough fuel to satisfy the fuel demand of our customers. Furthermore, the feedstock for a significant portion of our supply comes from
other countries, which could be disrupted by political events. In the event that such feedstock becomes scarce, whether as a result of political
events or otherwise, we may be unable to meet our customers' demand for motor fuel.
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Increasing consumer preferences for alternative motor fuels, or improvements in fuel efficiency, could adversely impact our business.
Any technological advancements, regulatory changes or changes in consumer preferences causing a significant shift toward alternative
motor fuels, or non-fuel dependent means of transportation, could reduce demand for conventional petroleum based motor fuels. Additionally, a
shift toward electric, hydrogen, natural gas or other alternative or non-fuel-powered vehicles could fundamentally change consumers' spending
habits or lead to new forms of fueling destinations or new competitive pressures. Finally, new technologies have been developed and
governmental mandates have been implemented to improve fuel efficiency. Any of these outcomes could potentially result in decreased
consumer demand for motor fuel, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash
available for distribution to our unitholders.
The wholesale motor fuel distribution industry is characterized by intense competition and fragmentation, and our failure to effectively
compete could result in lower margins.
The market for distribution of wholesale motor fuel is highly competitive and fragmented, which results in narrow margins. We have
numerous competitors, some of which may have significantly greater resources and name recognition than us. We rely on our ability to provide
value-added, reliable services and to control our operating costs in order to maintain our margins and competitive position. If we were to fail to
maintain the quality of our services, certain of our customers could choose alternative distribution sources and our margins could decrease.
While major integrated oil companies have generally continued to divest retail sites and the corresponding wholesale distribution to such sites,
such major oil companies could shift from this strategy and decide to distribute their own products in direct competition with us, or large
customers could attempt to buy directly from the major oil companies. The occurrence of any of these events could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations and cash available for distribution to our unitholders.
The motor fuel business is subject to seasonal trends, which may affect our earnings and ability to make distributions.
Our customers experience more demand for motor fuel during the late spring and summer months than during the fall and winter.
Travel, recreation and construction activities typically increase in these months in the geographic areas in which we operate, increasing the
demand for motor fuel. Therefore, the volume of motor fuel that we distribute is typically somewhat higher in the second and third quarters of
our fiscal year. As a result, our results from operations may vary from period to period, affecting our earnings and ability to make cash
distributions.
Severe weather could adversely affect our business by damaging our suppliers or our customers' facilities or communications networks.
A substantial portion of our wholesale distribution network is located on the Texas gulf coast. Although South Texas is generally
known for its mild weather, the region is susceptible to severe storms, including hurricanes. A severe storm could damage our facilities or
communications networks, or those of our suppliers or our customers, as well as interfere with our ability to distribute motor fuel to our
customers or our customers' ability to operate their locations. If warmer temperatures, or other climate changes, lead to changes in extreme
weather events, including increased frequency, duration or severity, these weather-related risks could become more pronounced. Any
weather-related catastrophe or disruption could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations, potentially causing
losses beyond the limits of the insurance we currently carry.
Negative events or developments associated with our branded suppliers could have an adverse impact on our revenues.
We believe that the success of our operations is dependent, in part, on the continuing favorable reputation, market value and name
recognition associated with the motor fuel brands sold both at Stripes ® convenience stores and to independent, branded dealers. Erosion of the
value of those brands could have an adverse impact on the volumes of motor fuel we distribute, which in turn could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and ability to make distributions to our unitholders.
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If we cannot otherwise agree with SUSS on fuel supply terms for volumes we sell to SUSS in the future (other than for stores purchased by
us pursuant to our sale and leaseback option), then we will be required to supply volumes at a price equal to our motor fuel cost plus the
alternate fuel sales rate, which will be substantially less than the fixed profit margin of three cents per gallon we will receive for motor fuel
sold pursuant to the SUSS Distribution Contract. Furthermore, if certain of our operating costs increase significantly, we may not realize
our anticipated profit margin with regard to motor fuel distributed to SUSS at the alternate fuel sales rate.
Our Omnibus Agreement provides that if we cannot agree with SUSS on fuel supply terms for volumes we sell to SUSS in the future
(other than for stores purchased by us pursuant to our sale and leaseback option), we will be required to distribute motor fuel to SUSS' newly
built, acquired or added retail stores or consignment locations at a price equal to our motor fuel cost plus the alternate fuel sales rate, which will
be substantially less than the fixed profit margin of three cents we receive for motor fuel sold pursuant to the SUSS Distribution Contract. The
alternate fuel sales rate is a per gallon fee we will receive equal to our prior year per-gallon motor fuel distribution costs, excluding the cost of
the motor fuel, plus 30% of such costs. Our motor fuel distribution costs include direct distribution expenses as well as general and
administrative expenses, maintenance capital expenditures, franchise taxes and other miscellaneous costs. Under the Omnibus Agreement, the
alternate fuel sales rate will reset annually, but the fixed fee included in the rate for a given year will be based on our motor fuel distribution
costs for the immediately preceding year.
Accordingly, even though the alternate fuel sales rate will reset annually, we may not realize our anticipated profit margin on motor fuel
distributed to SUSS at the alternate fuel sales rate. If our operating costs significantly increase in a given year as compared to immediately
preceding year operating costs, the profit margin we receive for fuel distributed at the alternate fuel sales rate will be reduced, which will
negatively impact our results of operations and cash available for distribution to our unitholders.
Due to our lack of geographic diversification, adverse developments in our operating areas could adversely affect our results of operations
and cash available for distribution to our unitholders.
Our operations are located in Texas, New Mexico, Louisiana and Oklahoma. Due to our lack of geographic diversification, an adverse
development in the areas in which we operate, such as a catastrophic weather event or a decrease in demand for motor fuel, could have a
significantly greater impact on our results of operations and cash available for distribution than it would if we operated in more diverse locations.
If we do not make acquisitions on economically acceptable terms, our future growth may be limited.
Our ability to grow depends substantially on our ability to make acquisitions that result in an increase in available cash per unit. We
intend to expand our dealer distribution network through acquisitions, and we anticipate that we may jointly pursue mutually beneficial
acquisition opportunities with SUSS. However, we may be unable to take advantage of accretive opportunities for any of the following reasons:
• we are unable to identify attractive acquisition opportunities or negotiate acceptable terms;
• we are unable to reach an agreement with SUSS regarding the terms of jointly pursued acquisitions;
• we are unable to raise financing for such acquisitions on economically acceptable terms; or
• we are outbid by competitors.
Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement, we have a three-year option to purchase up to 75 new or recently constructed Stripes ®
convenience stores from SUSS and lease them back to SUSS on specified terms set forth in a lease agreement, including a specified lease rate,
for an initial term of 15 years. However, such specified terms may not be economically favorable to us in the future, and we may not choose to
exercise this option.
In addition, we expect to grow through additional sale and leaseback transactions with SUSS beyond the 75 store option set forth in the
Omnibus Agreement. However, SUSS is under no obligation to pursue acquisitions with us, enter into additional sale and leaseback
arrangements with us beyond the 75 store option or generally pursue projects that enhance the value of our business. Finally, we may complete
acquisitions which at the time of completion we believe will be accretive, but which ultimately may not be accretive. If any of these events were
to occur, our future growth would be limited.
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Any acquisitions we complete are subject to substantial risks that could reduce our ability to make distributions to unitholders.
Even if we do make acquisitions that we believe will increase available cash per unit, these acquisitions may nevertheless result in a
decrease in available cash per unit. Any acquisition involves potential risks, including, among other things:
• we may not be able to obtain the cost savings and financial improvements we anticipate or acquired assets may not perform as we
expect;
• we may not be able to successfully integrate the businesses we acquire;
• we may fail or be unable to discover some of the liabilities of businesses that we acquire, including liabilities resulting from a prior
owner's noncompliance with applicable federal, state or local laws;
• acquisitions may divert the attention of our senior management from focusing on our core business;
• we may experience a decrease in our liquidity by using a significant portion of our available cash or borrowing capacity to finance
acquisitions; and
• we face the risk that our existing financial controls, information systems, management resources and human resources will need to
grow to support future growth.
Our operations are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations pertaining to environmental protection and operational safety that
may require significant expenditures or result in liabilities that could have a material adverse effect on our business.
Our business is subject to various federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations, including those relating to underground
storage tanks, the release or discharge of regulated materials into the air, water and soil, the generation, storage, handling, use, transportation and
disposal of hazardous materials, and the exposure of persons to regulated materials. A violation of, liability under or compliance with these laws
or regulations or any future environmental laws or regulations, could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.
Where releases of refined petroleum products, renewable fuels and crude oil have occurred, federal and state laws and regulations
require that contamination caused by such releases be assessed and remediated to meet applicable standards. The costs associated with the
investigation and remediation of contamination, as well as any associated third-party claims, could be substantial, and could have a material
adverse effect on our business and results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our unitholders.
New, stricter environmental laws and regulations could significantly increase our costs, which could adversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition.
The trend in environmental regulation is towards more restrictions and limitations on activities that may affect the environment. Our
business may be adversely affected by increased costs and liabilities resulting from such stricter laws and regulations. We try to anticipate future
regulatory requirements that might be imposed and plan accordingly to remain in compliance with changing environmental laws and regulations
and to minimize the costs of such compliance. However, there can be no assurances as to the timing and type of such changes in existing laws or
the promulgation of new laws or the amount of any required expenditures associated therewith.
We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations that govern the product quality specifications of the refined petroleum
products we purchase, store, transport and sell to our distribution customers.
Various federal, state and local government agencies have the authority to prescribe specific product quality specifications for certain
commodities, including commodities that we distribute. Changes in product quality specifications, such as reduced sulfur content in refined
petroleum products, or other more stringent requirements for fuels, could reduce our ability to procure product, require us to incur additional
handling costs and/or require the expenditure of capital. If we are unable to procure product or recover these costs through increased sales, we
may not be able to meet our financial obligations. Failure to comply with these regulations could result in substantial penalties.
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The dangers inherent in the storage of motor fuel could cause disruptions in our operations and could expose us to potentially significant
losses, costs or liabilities.
We store motor fuel in underground and above ground storage tanks. Our operations are subject to significant hazards and risks inherent
in storing motor fuel. These hazards and risks include, but are not limited to, fires, explosions, spills, discharges and other releases, any of which
could result in distribution difficulties and disruptions, environmental pollution, governmentally-imposed fines or clean-up obligations, personal
injury or wrongful death claims and other damage to our properties and the properties of others. Any such event could significantly disrupt our
operations or expose us to significant liabilities, to the extent such liabilities are not covered by insurance. Therefore, the occurrence of such an
event could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash available for distribution to our
unitholders.
We are not fully insured against all risks incident to our business.
We are not fully insured against all risks incident to our business. We may be unable to obtain or maintain insurance with the coverage
that we desire at reasonable rates. As a result of market conditions, the premiums and deductibles for certain of our insurance policies have
increased and could continue to do so. Certain insurance coverage could become unavailable or available only for reduced amounts of coverage.
If we were to incur a significant liability for which we were not fully insured, it could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition
and ability to make distributions to our unitholders.
Future litigation could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.
We are occasionally exposed to various litigation claims in the ordinary course of our business, including dealer litigation and industrywide or class-action claims arising from the equipment or processes we use or employ or industry-specific business practices. If we were to
become subject to any such claims in the future, our defense costs and any resulting awards or settlement amounts may not be fully covered by
our insurance policies. An unfavorable outcome or settlement of any future lawsuits could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition, results of operation and cash available for distribution to our unitholders.
We rely on SUSS for transportation of all of our motor fuel, which in turn relies, in part, on third-party transportation providers. As a result,
a change in SUSS' transportation providers, a significant change in SUSS' relationship with its transportation providers or nonperformance
or a disruption of motor fuel transportation services by SUSS or by SUSS' transportation providers could have a material adverse effect on
our business.
SUSS transports all of our motor fuel from terminals to its Stripes ® convenience stores and consignment locations, and to our
third-party dealers and other customers pursuant to the SUSS Transportation Contract. SUSS transports a portion of our motor fuel itself and has
contracts with third-party transportation carriers for the remainder of our motor fuel. SUSS' third-party contracts with its transportation
providers may be terminated by either party upon 30 days' notice. A change in transportation providers, a significant change in SUSS'
relationship with its transportation providers or nonperformance or a disruption in service by SUSS or by SUSS' transportation providers could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and cash available for distribution.
We rely on our suppliers to provide trade credit terms to adequately fund our ongoing operations.
Our business is impacted by the availability of trade credit to fund fuel purchases. An actual or perceived downgrade in our liquidity or
operations (including any credit rating downgrade by a rating agency) could cause our suppliers to seek credit support in the form of additional
collateral, limit the extension of trade credit, or otherwise materially modify their payment terms. Any material changes in our payments terms,
including early payment discounts, or availability of trade credit provided by our principal suppliers could impact our liquidity, results of
operations and cash available for distribution to our unitholders.
Because we depend on our senior management's experience and knowledge of our industry, we could be adversely affected were we to lose
key members of our senior management team.
We are dependent on the expertise and continued efforts of our general partner's senior management team. If, for any reason, our senior
executives do not continue to be active in our management, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be adversely affected.
In addition, other than the key man life insurance for Sam L. Susser held by SUSS, our general partner does not maintain key man life insurance
on its senior executives and other key employees.
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Terrorist attacks and threatened or actual war may adversely affect our business.
Our business is affected by general economic conditions and fluctuations in consumer confidence and spending, which can decline as a
result of numerous factors outside of our control. Terrorist attacks or threats, whether within the United States or abroad, rumors or threats of
war, actual conflicts involving the United States or its allies, or military or trade disruptions impacting our suppliers or our customers may
adversely impact our operations. Specifically, strategic targets such as energy related assets (which could include refineries that produce the
motor fuel we purchase or ports in which crude oil is delivered) may be at greater risk of future terrorist attacks than other targets in the United
States. These occurrences could have an adverse impact on energy prices, including prices for motor fuels, and an adverse impact on our
operations. Any or a combination of these occurrences could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and cash
available for distribution to our unitholders.
We rely on our information technology systems to manage numerous aspects of our business, and a disruption of these systems or an act of
cyber-terrorism could adversely affect our business.
We depend on our information technology (IT) systems to manage numerous aspects of our business transactions and provide analytical
information to management. Our IT systems are an essential component of our business and growth strategies, and a serious disruption to our IT
systems could significantly limit our ability to manage and operate our business efficiently. These systems are vulnerable to, among other things,
damage and interruption from power loss or natural disasters, computer system and network failures, loss of telecommunications services,
physical and electronic loss of data, cyber-security breaches or cyber-terrorism, and computer viruses. Any disruption could cause our business
and competitive position to suffer and cause our operating results to be reduced.
Our future debt levels may impair our financial condition.
We had $184.9 million of debt outstanding as of December 31, 2012, of which $148.2 million was secured by marketable securities.
We have the ability to incur additional debt under our revolving credit facility. The level of our future indebtedness could have important
consequences to us, including:
• making it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to our credit agreement governing our revolving credit
facility;
• limiting our ability to borrow additional amounts to fund working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, debt service
requirements, the execution of our growth strategy and other activities;
• requiring us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to pay interest on our debt, which would reduce our
cash flow available to fund working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, execution of our growth strategy and other
activities;
• making us more vulnerable to adverse changes in general economic conditions, our industry and government regulations and in our
business by limiting our flexibility in planning for, and making it more difficult for us to react quickly to, changing conditions; and
• placing us at a competitive disadvantage compared with our competitors that have less debt.
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In addition, we may not be able to generate sufficient cash flow from our operations to repay our indebtedness when it becomes due and
to meet our other cash needs. Our ability to service our debt will depend upon, among other things, our future financial and operating
performance, which will be affected by prevailing economic conditions and financial, business, regulatory and other factors, some of which are
beyond our control. In addition, our ability to service our debt will depend on market interest rates, since we anticipate that the interest rates
applicable to our borrowings will fluctuate. If we are not able to pay our debts as they become due, we will be required to pursue one or more
alternative strategies, such as selling assets, refinancing or restructuring our indebtedness or selling additional debt or equity securities. We may
not be able to refinance our debt or sell additional debt or equity securities or our assets on favorable terms, if at all, and if we must sell our
assets, it may negatively affect our ability to generate revenues.
Our credit facilities have substantial restrictions and financial covenants that may restrict our business and financing activities and our
ability to pay distributions to our unitholders.
We are dependent upon the earnings and cash flow generated by our operations in order to meet our debt service obligations and to
allow us to make cash distributions to our unitholders. The operating and financial restrictions and covenants in our credit facilities and any
future financing agreements may restrict our ability to finance future operations or capital needs, to engage in or expand our business activities or
to pay distributions to our unitholders. For example, our credit facilities restricts our ability to, among other things:
• Incur additional debt or issue guarantees;
• Incur or permit liens to exist on certain property;
• Make certain investments, acquisitions or other restricted payments;
• Modify or terminate certain material contracts; and
• Merge or dispose of all or substantially all of our assets.
In addition, our revolving credit agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain certain financial ratios. See "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources" for additional information.
Our future ability to comply with these restrictions and covenants is uncertain and will be affected by the levels of cash flow from our
operations and other events or circumstances beyond our control. If market or other economic conditions deteriorate, our ability to comply with
these covenants may be impaired. If we violate any provisions of our new credit facilities that are not cured or waived within the appropriate
time periods provided in the applicable credit facility, a significant portion of our indebtedness may become immediately due and payable, our
ability to make distributions to our unitholders will be inhibited and our lenders' commitment to make further loans to us may terminate. We
might not have, or be able to obtain, sufficient funds to make these accelerated payments.
We depend on cash flow generated by our subsidiaries.
We are a holding company with no material assets other than the equity interests in our subsidiaries. We have three subsidiaries that
conduct all of our operations and own all of our assets. These subsidiaries are distinct legal entities and, under certain circumstances, legal and
contractual restrictions may limit our ability to obtain cash from our subsidiaries and our subsidiaries may not be able to, or be permitted to,
make distributions to us. In the event that we do not receive distributions from our subsidiaries, we may be unable to meet our financial
obligations or make distributions to our unitholders.
The impact of derivatives legislation by the United States Congress could have an adverse effect on our ability to use derivative instruments
to reduce the effect of changes in commodity prices and interest rates and other risks associated with our business.
The United States Congress recently adopted comprehensive financial reform legislation that establishes federal oversight and
regulation of the over-the-counter derivatives market and entities, such as us, that participate in that market. The new legislation, known as the
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) was signed into law on July 21, 2010 and requires the
Commodities Futures Trading Commission (the “CFTC”), the SEC and other regulators to promulgate rules and regulations implementing the
new legislation. The CFTC has issued final regulations to set position limits for certain futures and option contracts in the major energy markets
and for swaps that are their economic
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equivalent. Certain bona fide hedging transactions or positions would be exempt from these position limits. The financial reform legislation may
also require compliance with margin requirements and with certain clearing and trade-execution requirements in connection with certain
derivative activities, although the application of those provisions is uncertain at this time. The financial reform legislation may also require the
counterparties to our derivative instruments to spin off some of their derivatives activities to a separate entity, which may not be as creditworthy
as the current counterparty.
The final rules will be phased in over time according to a specified schedule which is dependent on the finalization of certain other rules
to be promulgated jointly by the CFTC and the SEC. The Dodd-Frank Act and any new regulations could significantly increase the cost of some
derivative contracts (including through requirements to post collateral which could adversely affect our available liquidity), materially alter the
terms of some derivative contracts, reduce the availability of some derivatives to protect against risks we encounter, reduce our ability to
monetize or restructure our existing derivative contracts, and potentially increase our exposure to less creditworthy counterparties. Any of these
consequences could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash available for distribution to our
unitholders.
Risks Related to Our Structure
SUSS owns and controls our general partner, which has sole responsibility for conducting our business and managing our operations. Our
general partner and its affiliates, including SUSS, have conflicts of interest with us and limited fiduciary duties and they may favor their own
interests to the detriment of us and our unitholders.
SUSS owns and controls our general partner and appoints all of the officers and directors of our general partner. All of the officers and
certain of the directors of our general partner are also officers and/or directors of SUSS. Although our general partner has a fiduciary duty to
manage us in a manner beneficial to us and our unitholders, the executive officers and directors of our general partner have a fiduciary duty to
manage our general partner in a manner beneficial to SUSS. Therefore, conflicts of interest may arise between SUSS and its affiliates, including
our general partner, on the one hand, and us and our unitholders, on the other hand. In resolving these conflicts of interest, our general partner
may favor its own interests and the interests of its affiliates over the interests of our common unitholders. These conflicts include the following
situations, among others:
• Neither our partnership agreement nor any other agreement requires SUSS to pursue a business strategy that favors us. The
affiliates of our general partner have fiduciary duties to make decisions in their own best interests and in the best interest of their
owners, which may be contrary to our interests. In addition, our general partner is allowed to take into account the interests of
parties other than us or our unitholders, such as SUSS, in resolving conflicts of interest, which has the effect of limiting its
fiduciary duty to our unitholders.
• All of the officers and certain of the directors of our general partner are also officers and/or directors of SUSS and owe fiduciary
duties to SUSS. Certain officers of our general partner will also devote significant time to the business of SUSS and will be
compensated by SUSS accordingly.
• Other than as provided in the Omnibus Agreement, SUSS is not limited in its ability to compete with us and may offer business
opportunities or sell assets to parties other than us.
• The limited partner interests that SUSS owns permit it to effectively control any vote of our limited partners. SUSS is entitled to
vote its units in accordance with its own interests, which may be contrary to the interests of our other unitholders.
• Our partnership agreement limits the liability of, and reduces the fiduciary duties owed by, our general partner and also restricts the
remedies available to unitholders for actions that, without the limitations, might constitute breaches of fiduciary duty. As a result of
purchasing common units, unitholders consent to some actions and conflicts of interest that might otherwise constitute a breach of
fiduciary or other duties under applicable state law.
• Except in limited circumstances, our general partner has the power and authority to conduct our business without unitholder
approval.
• Our general partner determines the amount and timing of asset purchases and sales, borrowings, repayment of indebtedness and
issuances of additional partnership securities and the level of reserves, each of which can affect the amount of cash that is
distributed to our unitholders.
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• Our general partner determines whether or not to purchase and lease stores to SUSS pursuant to our 75 store option.
• Our general partner determines the amount and timing of any capital expenditure and whether a capital expenditure is classified as
a maintenance capital expenditure or an expansion capital expenditure. These determinations can affect the amount of cash that is
distributed to our unitholders which, in turn, affects the ability of the subordinated units to convert to common units.
• Our general partner may cause us to borrow funds in order to permit the payment of cash distributions, even if the purpose or effect
of the borrowing is to make a distribution on the subordinated units, to make incentive distributions or to accelerate the expiration
of the subordination period.
• Our partnership agreement permits us to distribute up to $25 million as operating surplus, even if it is generated from asset sales,
non-working capital borrowings or other sources that would otherwise constitute capital surplus. This cash may be used to fund
distributions on our subordinated units or the incentive distribution rights.
• Our general partner determines which costs incurred by it and its affiliates are reimbursable by us.
• Our partnership agreement does not restrict our general partner from causing us to pay it or its affiliates for any services rendered to
us or entering into additional contractual arrangements with its affiliates on our behalf. There is no limitation on the amounts our
general partner can cause us to pay it or its affiliates.
• Our general partner has limited its liability regarding our contractual and other obligations.
• Our general partner may exercise its right to call and purchase common units if it and its affiliates own more than 80% of the
common units.
• Our general partner controls the enforcement of obligations owed to us by it and its affiliates. In addition, our general partner will
decide whether to retain separate counsel or others to perform services for us.
• SUSS may elect to cause us to issue common units to it in connection with a resetting of the target distribution levels related to
SUSS' incentive distribution rights without the approval of the conflicts committee of the board of directors of our general partner
or our unitholders. This election may result in lower distributions to our common unitholders in certain situations.
Our general partner has limited its liability regarding our obligations.
Other than with respect to our new credit facilities, our general partner has limited its liability under contractual arrangements so that
the counterparties to such arrangements have recourse only against our assets, and not against our general partner or its assets. Our general
partner may therefore cause us to incur indebtedness or other obligations that are nonrecourse to our general partner. Our partnership agreement
provides that any action taken by our general partner to limit its liability is not a breach of our general partner's fiduciary duties, even if we could
have obtained more favorable terms without the limitation on liability. In addition, we are obligated to reimburse or indemnify our general
partner to the extent that it incurs obligations on our behalf. Any such reimbursement or indemnification payments would reduce the amount of
cash otherwise available for distribution to our unitholders.
Our partnership agreement requires that we distribute all of our available cash, which could limit our ability to grow and make acquisitions.
Our partnership agreement requires that we distribute all of our available cash to our unitholders, and we will rely primarily upon
external financing sources, including borrowings under our revolving credit facility and the issuance of debt and equity securities, to fund our
acquisitions and expansion capital expenditures. As a result, to the extent we are unable to finance growth externally, our cash distribution policy
will significantly impair our ability to grow.
In addition, because we distribute all of our available cash, our growth may not be as fast as that of businesses that reinvest their
available cash to expand ongoing operations. To the extent we issue additional units in connection with any acquisitions or expansion capital
expenditures, the payment of distributions on those additional units may increase the risk that we will be unable to maintain or increase our per
unit distribution level. There are no limitations in our partnership agreement or our credit facilities on our ability to issue additional units,
including units ranking senior to the common units. The
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incurrence of bank borrowings or other debt to finance our growth strategy will result in increased interest expense, which, in turn, may impact
the available cash that we have to distribute to our unitholders.
SUSS may compete with us or contract with third-party wholesalers to distribute motor fuel to SUSS' convenience stores on a consignment
basis.
Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement and SUSS Distribution Contract, for a period of ten years, we are the exclusive distributor of all
motor fuel purchased by SUSS for its existing Stripes® convenience stores and independently operated consignment locations. Additionally,
SUSS must purchase any motor fuel it sells at its newly built, acquired or added retail stores from us, except if such stores are already party to a
supply agreement or in the case of third-party consignment sales described below. If these provisions of the SUSS Distribution Contract and
Omnibus Agreement expire at the end of their respective ten-year terms and are not renewed, SUSS will no longer be required to purchase motor
fuel from us (except in the case of delivery arrangements that under the SUSS Distribution Contract extend beyond the ten-year term). SUSS
could then compete with us to deliver motor fuel to its Stripes® stores and consignment locations. Furthermore, subject to our right to participate
in acquisitions, SUSS is permitted to compete with us for investment opportunities, and SUSS is permitted to own an interest in entities that
compete with us.
Under the Omnibus Agreement, SUSS continues to have the right to contract for third-party consignment sales of motor fuel with other
wholesalers at any newly constructed or acquired locations. Under these arrangements, as the consignee, SUSS would not purchase any fuel and
would instead receive a commission on sales made by the wholesaler. As a result, we will not distribute any volumes nor earn any revenues for
fuel sold at these locations. SUSS is under no obligation to purchase fuel from us for its convenience stores if it determines that consignment
arrangements with third parties are more advantageous to SUSS and its shareholders.
Pursuant to the terms of our partnership agreement, the doctrine of corporate opportunity, or any analogous doctrine, does not apply to
our general partner or any of its affiliates, including its executive officers and directors and SUSS. Any such person or entity is not liable to us or
to any limited partner under our partnership agreement for breach of any fiduciary duty or other duty by reason of the fact that such person or
entity pursues or acquires such opportunity for itself, directs such opportunity to another person or entity or does not communicate such
opportunity or information to us. This may create actual and potential conflicts of interest between us and affiliates of our general partner and
result in less than favorable treatment of us and our unitholders.
Our partnership agreement limits the liability and duties of our general partner and restricts the remedies available to us and our common
unitholders for actions taken by our general partner that might otherwise constitute breaches of fiduciary duty.
Our partnership agreement limits the liability and duties of our general partner, while also restricting the remedies available to our
common unitholders for actions that, without these limitations, might constitute breaches of fiduciary duty. Delaware partnership law permits
such contractual reductions of fiduciary duty. By purchasing common units, common unitholders consent to be bound by the partnership
agreement, and pursuant to our partnership agreement, each holder of common units consents to various actions and conflicts of interest
contemplated in our partnership agreement that might otherwise constitute a breach of fiduciary or other duties under Delaware law. Our
partnership agreement contains provisions that reduce the standards to which our general partner would otherwise be held by state fiduciary duty
law. For example:
•

Our partnership agreement permits our general partner to make a number of decisions in its individual capacity, as opposed to its
capacity as general partner. This entitles our general partner to consider only the interests and factors that it desires, and it has no duty
or obligation to give any consideration to any interest of, or factors affecting, our common unitholders. Decisions made by our general
partner in its individual capacity will be made by SUSS, as the owner of our general partner, and not by the board of directors of our
general partner. Examples of these decisions include:
•
•
•
•

•

Whether to exercise its limited call right;
How to exercise its voting rights with respect to any units it may own;
Whether to exercise its registration rights; and
Whether or not to consent to any merger or consolidation or amendment to our partnership agreement.

Our partnership agreement provides that our general partner will not have any liability to us or our unitholders for decisions made in its
capacity as general partner so long as it acted in good faith, meaning it believed that the decisions were not adverse to the interests of
our partnership.
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•

Our partnership agreement provides that our general partner and the officers and directors of our general partner will not be liable for
monetary damages to us for any acts or omissions unless there has been a final and non-appealable judgment entered by a court of
competent jurisdiction determining that our general partner or those persons acted in bad faith or, in the case of a criminal matter, acted
with knowledge that such person's conduct was criminal.

•

Our partnership agreement provides that our general partner will not be in breach of its obligations under the partnership agreement or
its duties to us or our limited partners with respect to any transaction involving an affiliate if the transaction with an affiliate or the
resolution of a conflict of interest is:
• approved by the conflicts committee of the board of directors of our general partner, although our general partner is not
obligated to seek such approval; or
• approved by the vote of a majority of the outstanding common units, excluding any common units owned by our general
partner and its affiliates; or
• the board of directors of our general partner acted in good faith in taking any action or failing to act.

If an affiliate transaction or the resolution of a conflict of interest is not approved by our common unitholders or the conflicts committee
then it will be presumed that, in making its decision, taking any action or failing to act, the board of directors acted in good faith, and in any
proceeding brought by or on behalf of any limited partner or the partnership, the person bringing or prosecuting such proceeding will have the
burden of overcoming such presumption.
Cost reimbursements due to our general partner and its affiliates for services provided to us or on our behalf will reduce cash available for
distribution to our unitholders. The amount and timing of such reimbursements will be determined by our general partner.
Prior to making any distribution on the common units, we will reimburse our general partner and its affiliates for all expenses they incur
and payments they make on our behalf pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement and our partnership agreement. Neither our partnership agreement
nor our Omnibus Agreement will limit the amount of expenses for which our general partner and its affiliates may be reimbursed. Our Omnibus
Agreement and partnership agreement provide that our general partner will determine in good faith the expenses that are allocable to us. The
reimbursement of expenses and payment of fees to our general partner and its affiliates will reduce the amount of cash available to pay cash
distributions to our unitholders.
Our tax treatment depends on our status as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, as well as our not being subject to a material
amount of entity-level taxation by individual states. If the IRS were to treat us as a corporation for federal income tax purposes or we were to
become subject to material additional amounts of entity-level taxation for state tax purposes, then our cash available for distribution to our
unitholders would be substantially reduced.
The anticipated after-tax economic benefit of an investment in our common units depends largely on our being treated as a partnership
for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Despite the fact that we are organized as a limited partnership under Delaware law, it is possible in certain
circumstances for a partnership such as ours to be treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Although we do not believe,
based upon our current operations, that we are so treated, a change in our business (or a change in current law) could cause us to be treated as a
corporation for federal income tax purposes or otherwise subject us to taxation as an entity.
If we were treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes, we would pay federal income tax on our taxable income at the
corporate tax rate, which is currently a maximum of 35%, and would likely pay state income tax at varying rates. Distributions to our unitholders
would generally be taxed again as corporate distributions, and no income, gains, losses, deductions or credits would flow through to our
unitholders. Because a tax would be imposed upon us as a corporation, our cash available for distribution to our unitholders would be
substantially reduced. Therefore, treatment of us as a corporation would result in a material reduction in the anticipated cash flow and after-tax
return to our unitholders, likely causing a substantial reduction in the value of our common units.
We are subject to the entity-level Texas franchise tax. Imposition of any such additional taxes on us or an increase in the existing tax
rates would reduce the cash available for distribution to our unitholders.
Our partnership agreement provides that if a law is enacted or existing law is modified or interpreted in a manner that subjects us to
taxation as a corporation or otherwise subjects us to entity-level taxation for federal, state or local income tax purposes, the minimum quarterly
distribution amount and the target distribution amounts may be adjusted to reflect the impact of that law on us.
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The tax treatment of publicly traded partnerships or an investment in our common units could be subject to potential legislative, judicial or
administrative changes and differing interpretations, possibly on a retroactive basis.
The present federal income tax treatment of publicly traded partnerships, including us, or an investment in our common units may be
modified by administrative, legislative or judicial interpretation at any time. For example, from time to time, members of the U.S. Congress
propose and consider substantive changes to the existing federal income tax laws that affect publicly traded partnerships. One such legislative
proposal would have eliminated the qualifying income exception upon which we rely for our treatment as a partnership for U.S. federal income
tax purposes. We are unable to predict whether any such legislation will be reintroduced or will ultimately be enacted. However, it is possible
that a change in law could affect us and may, if enacted, be applied retroactively. Any such changes could negatively impact the value of an
investment in our common units.
In addition to the risks discussed above, there are certain risks associated with an investment in our common units and the ownership of
a limited partner interest in us, including tax risks to our unitholders. For a discussion of those particular risks, please see the section of the final
prospectus filed with the U.S. Securities Exchange Commission in connection with our IPO on September 21, 2012 captioned "Risk Factors".

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties
In addition to the information presented under "Item 1. Business - Our Business and Properties," the following table provides summary
information of our owned and leased real property as of December 31, 2012, inclusive of executed renewal options:

Leased Locations by Expirations
0-5 Years
6-10 Years
11-15 Years
16 + Years

Owned
Wholesale dealer and
consignment sites
Stripes locations
Total

43
8
51

2
—
2

6
—
6

4
—
4

—
—
—

Total
55
8
63

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Although we may, from time to time, be involved in litigation and claims arising out of our operations in the normal course of business,
we do not believe that we are a party to any litigation that will have a material adverse impact on our financial condition or results of operations.
Similarly, we do not believe that any legal proceedings involving our Predecessor will have a material impact on our financial condition or
results of operations. Our general partner is not involved in any legal proceedings.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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Part II

Item 5. Market for Our Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Our public common units began trading on the NYSE under the symbol "SUSP" on September 20, 2012. Prior to that time, there was
no public market for our securities. As of December 31, 2012 , SUSS owned 14,436 common units and 10,939,436 subordinated units, which
together constitute a 50.1% ownership interest in us. We issued 10,925,000 common units to the public in connection with our IPO. There are
three record holders of our outstanding common units as of March 15, 2012.
The following table sets forth the range of the high and low closing prices of our common units and cash distributions to common
unitholders for the period from September 20, 2012, the date our shares began trading.

Sales Price per
Common Unit
High
Low

Quarterly Cash
Distribution per
Unit

Distribution Date

Record Date

Quarter Ended
December 31, 2012
$ 26.34 $ 23.09 $
0.4375 March 1, 2013
February 19, 2013
September 30, 2012 (1)
$ 24.10 $ 22.52
0.0285 November 29, 2012
November 19, 2012
(1) Sales price per common unit from September 20, 2012, the commencement date of trading. Quarterly cash distribution per unit was prorated
for the six days of operation from September 25, 2012 to September 30, 2012.
Distributions of Available Cash
General
Our partnership agreement requires that, within 60 days after the end of each quarter, beginning with the quarter ending September 30,
2012, we distribute our available cash to unitholders of record on the applicable record date. The distribution for the quarter ended September 30,
2012 was adjusted for the number of days beginning with the completion of the IPO.
Definition of Available Cash
Available cash generally means, for any quarter, all cash and cash equivalents on hand at the end of the quarter;
less , the amount of cash reserves established by our general partner at the date of determination of available cash for the quarter to:
• provide for the proper conduct of our business;
• comply with applicable law, any of our debt instruments or other agreements or any other obligation; or
• provide funds for distributions to our unitholders for any one or more of the next four quarters (provided that our general partner may not
establish cash reserves for distributions unless it determines that the establishment of those reserves will not prevent us from distributing
the minimum quarterly distribution on all common units and any cumulative arrearages on such common units for the current quarter);
plus , if our general partner so determines on the date of determination, all or any portion of the cash on hand immediately prior to the
date of determination of available cash for the quarter, including cash on hand resulting from working capital borrowings made after the end of
the quarter.
Minimum Quarterly Distribution
We intend to make a minimum quarterly distribution to the holders of our common units and subordinated units of $0.4375 per unit, or
$1.75 per unit on an annualized basis, to the extent we have sufficient cash from our operations after the establishment of cash reserves and the
payment of costs and expenses, including payments to our general partner and its affiliates. However, there is no guarantee that we will pay the
minimum quarterly distribution on our units in any quarter. Even if our cash distribution policy is not modified or revoked, the amount of
distributions paid under our policy and the decision to make any distribution is determined by our general partner, taking into consideration the
terms of our partnership agreement.
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Incentive Distribution Rights
The following table illustrates the percentage allocations of available cash from operating surplus between the unitholders and SUSS (in
its capacity as the holder of our IDRs) based on the specified target distribution levels. The amounts set forth under “marginal percentage interest
in distributions” are the percentage interests of SUSS and the unitholders in any available cash from operating surplus we distribute up to and
including the corresponding amount in the column “total quarterly distribution per unit target amount”. The percentage interests shown for our
unitholders and SUSS for the minimum quarterly distribution are also applicable to quarterly distribution amounts that are less than the
minimum quarterly distribution. The percentage interests set forth below for SUSS assume that there are no arrearages on common units and that
SUSS continues to own all of the IDRs.
Marginal percentage interest in
distributions

Minimum Quarterly Distribution
First Target Distribution
Second Target Distribution
Third Target Distribution
Thereafter

Total quarterly distribution per unit
target amount
$0.4375
Above $0.4375 up to $0.503125
Above $0.503125 up to $0.546875
Above $0.546875 up to $0.656250
Above $0.656250

Unitholders
100%
100%
85%
75%
50%

SUSS
—
—
15%
25%
50%

Subordinated Units
SUSS owns, directly or indirectly, all of our subordinated units. The principal difference between our common units and subordinated
units is that in any quarter during the subordination period, holders of the subordinated units will not be entitled to receive any distribution until
the common units have received the minimum quarterly distribution plus any arrearages in the payment of the minimum quarterly distribution
from prior quarters. To the extent that we do not pay the minimum quarterly distribution on our common units, our common unitholders will not
be entitled to receive such payments in the future except during the subordination period. Subordinated units will not accrue arrearages. To the
extent that we have available cash in any future quarter during the subordination period in excess of the amount necessary to pay the minimum
quarterly distribution to holders of our common units, we will use this excess available cash to pay any distribution arrearages on the common
units related to prior quarters before any cash distribution is made to holders of subordinated units. When the subordination period ends, all of
the subordinated units will convert into an equal number of common units.
The subordination period will end on the first business day after we have earned and paid at least (1) $1.75 (the minimum quarterly
distribution on an annualized basis) on each outstanding common and subordinated unit for each of three consecutive, non-overlapping fourquarter periods ending on or after September 30, 2015 or (2) $2.625 (150% of the annualized minimum quarterly distribution) on each
outstanding common and subordinated unit and the related distributions on the incentive distribution rights for the four-quarter period
immediately preceding that date, in each case provided there are no arrearages on our common units at that time.
The subordination period also will end upon the removal of our general partner other than for cause if no subordinated units or common
units held by the holder(s) of subordinated units or their affiliates are voted in favor of that removal.
Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The following table shows selected historical financial data of our Predecessor and the Partnership for the periods and as of the dates
indicated. The selected consolidated financial data as of December 31, 2010 and 2011 and for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2010 and
2011 are derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of the Predecessor. The selected historical financial data for the year ended
December 31, 2012 includes the combined results of the Predecessor through September 24, 2012 and the Partnership for the period from
September 25, 2012 through December 31, 2012, all derived from the Partnership's 2012 audited financial statements. The selected financial data
as of December 31, 2008 and 2009 and for the year ended December 31, 2008 are derived from the unaudited consolidated financial statements
of the Predecessor.
Our assets have historically been a part of the integrated operations of SUSS, and the Predecessor distributed motor fuel and other
petroleum products to SUSS without any profit margin. Accordingly, the gross profit in the Predecessor's
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historical consolidated financial statements relate only to gross profit received from third parties for our wholesale distribution services. In
addition, the Predecessor's results of operations included results from consignment contracts retained by SUSS. At these consignment locations,
the Predecessor provided and controlled motor fuel inventory and retail price at the site and received the actual retail selling price for each gallon
sold, less a commission paid to the independent operator of the location, instead of the fixed profit margin per gallon that we receive for fuel
supplied to SUSS for existing consignment locations. For this reason, as well as the other factors described in “Item 7. Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” our future results of operations are not comparable to the Predecessor's
historical results of operations.

Predecessor Historical
Fiscal Year Ended December 31,
2009
2010
2011
(in thousands, except per unit data)

2008
Statement of Income Data:
Revenues:
Motor fuel sales to third parties
Motor fuel sales to affiliates
Rental income
Other income
Total revenues
Gross profit:
Motor fuel sales to third parties
Motor fuel sales to affiliates
Rental income
Other
Total gross profit
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets
Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Interest expense, net
Income tax expense
Net income

$

$

1,323,494
1,571,810
3,676
5,254
2,904,234

$

875,891
1,205,890
4,245
7,462
2,093,488

$

1,094,273
1,578,653
5,351
5,515
2,683,792

$

1,549,143
2,257,788
5,467
7,980
3,820,378

2012 (1)

$

1,694,025
2,570,757
5,045
7,514
4,277,341

29,844
—
3,676
4,506
38,026

20,584
—
4,245
7,501
32,330

26,065
—
5,351
4,683
36,099

31,217
—
5,467
6,339
43,023

33,292
7,781
5,045
5,384
51,502

14,545
(66)
4,423
18,902
19,124
29
6,874
12,221 $

13,899
(6)
4,901
18,794
13,536
191
4,831
8,514 $

16,506
86
4,771
21,363
14,736
284
5,236
9,216

19,751
221
6,090
26,062
16,961
324
6,039
10,598

$

20,718
341
7,031
28,090
23,412
809
5,033
17,570

$
$

0.42
0.47

Net income per limited partner unit (2)
Cash distribution per unit (2)
Cash Flow Data:
Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities

9,833
(11,025)
—
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17,469
(14,308)
1,142

$

14,263
(18,751)
(21)

16,510
(190,971)
180,973

Predecessor Historical
Fiscal Year Ended December 31,
2009
2010
2011
(in thousands)

2008
Balance Sheet Data (at period end):
Cash and cash equivalents
Property and equipment, net
Total assets
Total liabilities
Total unitholder's equity

$

1,638
47,969
158,673
71,188
87,485

$

446
47,602
192,857
96,858
95,999

$

4,749
35,247
202,587
97,372
105,215

$

240
39,049
231,316
115,503
115,813

2012

$

6,752
68,173
355,800
277,468
78,332

(1) Results represent Predecessor activity prior to September 25, 2012, and Partnership activity beginning September 25, 2012.
(2) Calculated based on operations since September 25, 2012, the date of our IPO.
Item 7.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and notes to consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report, as well as the historical
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto of Susser Petroleum Company LLC, our Predecessor, and the pro forma financial statements
for Susser Petroleum Partners LP included in our prospectus dated September 19, 2012, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) on September 21, 2012.
EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and distributable cash flow are non-GAAP financial measures of performance that have limitations and
should not be considered as a substitute for net income or cash provided by (used in) operating activities. Please see footnote (1) under “Key
Operating Metrics” below for a discussion of our use of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and distributable cash flow in this “Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and a reconciliation to net income for the periods presented.
Safe Harbor Discussion
This report, including without limitation, our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations, and any
information incorporated by reference, contains statements that we believe are “forward-looking statements” under the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and are intended to enjoy protection under the safe harbor for forward-looking statements provided by that Act.
These forward-looking statements generally can be identified by use of phrases such as “believe,” “plan,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,”
“forecast” or other similar words or phrases. Descriptions of our objectives, goals, targets, plans, strategies, costs, anticipated capital
expenditures, expected cost savings and benefits are also forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on our current
plans and expectations and involve a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results and events to vary materially from the
results and events anticipated or implied by such forward-looking statements, including:
•

SUSS' business strategy and operations and SUSS' conflicts of interest with us;

•

Renewal or renegotiation of our long-term distribution contracts with our customers;

•

Changes in the price of and demand for the motor fuel that we distribute;

•

Our dependence on two principal suppliers;

•

Competition in the wholesale motor fuel distribution industry;

•

Seasonal trends;

•

Our ability to make acquisitions;

•

Environmental laws and regulations;

•

Dangers inherent in the storage of motor fuel; and
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•

Our reliance on SUSS for transportation services.

For a discussion of these and other risks and uncertainties, please refer to “Item 1A. Risk Factors.” The list of factors that could affect
future performance and the accuracy of forward-looking statements is illustrative but by no means exhaustive. Accordingly, all forward-looking
statements should be evaluated with the understanding of their inherent uncertainty. The forward-looking statements included in this report are
based on, and include, our estimates as of March 29, 2013. We anticipate that subsequent events and market developments will cause our
estimates to change. However, while we may elect to update these forward-looking statements at some point in the future, we specifically
disclaim any obligation to do so, even if new information becomes available in the future.
Overview
We are a growth-oriented Delaware limited partnership formed by SUSS to engage in the primarily fee-based wholesale distribution of
motor fuels to SUSS and third parties. We closed the initial public offering of our common units, including related restructuring transactions and
entry into certain key agreements with SUSS, as more particularly described in the prospectus relating to our initial public offering on September
25, 2012.
SUSS operates approximately 560 retail convenience stores under its proprietary Stripes ® convenience store brand, primarily in growing
Texas markets. Stripes is a leading independent chain of convenience stores in Texas based on store count and retail motor fuel volumes sold.
Our business is integral to the success of SUSS' retail operations, and SUSS purchases substantially all of its motor fuel from us. For the year
ended December 31, 2012, we distributed 889.8 million gallons of motor fuel to Stripes ® convenience stores and SUSS' consignment locations,
and 560.2 million gallons of motor fuel to other third party customers. We believe we are the largest independent motor fuel distributor by
gallons in Texas, and among the largest distributors of Valero and Chevron branded motor fuel in the United States.
In addition to distributing motor fuel, we also distribute other petroleum products such as propane and lube oil, and we receive rental
income from real estate that we lease or sublease. We purchase motor fuel primarily from independent refiners and major oil companies and
distribute it throughout Texas and in Louisiana, New Mexico and Oklahoma to:
•

Stripes ® convenience stores, pursuant to the SUSS Distribution Contract;

•

approximately 90 other independently operated consignment locations where SUSS sells motor fuel to retail customers, also pursuant
to the SUSS Distribution Contract;

•

over 480 convenience stores and retail fuel outlets operated by independent operators, which we refer to as "dealers," pursuant to
long-term distribution agreements; and

•

over 1,600 other commercial customers, including unbranded convenience stores, other fuel distributors, school districts and
municipalities and other industrial customers.

We entered into several agreements with SUSS concurrent with our IPO. See "Item 13. Certain Relationships, Related Transactions and
Director Independence" for information regarding related party transactions.
Market and Industry Trends and Outlook
We expect that certain trends and economic or industry-wide factors will continue to affect our business, both in the short-term and longterm. We have based our expectations described below on assumptions made by us and on the basis of information currently available to us. To
the extent our underlying assumptions about or interpretation of available information prove to be incorrect, our actual results may vary
materially from our expected results. Read “Item 1A. Risk Factors” for additional information about the risks associated with purchasing our
common units.
Regional Trends
The majority of our fuel distribution business is conducted in Texas. The economy in Texas continues to fare better than many other parts
of the nation, partly as a result of a relatively stable housing market and strong population growth and job creation. In 2012, Texas ranked first in
the United States for job growth according to the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics and first in the United States for population growth for the tenyear period ended 2010 as reflected in the 2010 census report. We also believe the significant expansion of oil and gas development in the Eagle
Ford Shale and Permian Basin has resulted in increased motor fuel usage in South and West Texas.
The Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts has reported that gasoline gallons taxed in Texas have grown significantly during the last
several decades. From 1989 to 2012, gasoline consumption grew approximately 44.9% from 8.5 billion gallons
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to 12.3 billion gallons, or at an approximate 1.6% compound annual growth rate. Gasoline consumption grew in 18 of the 23 years during the
period. As of 2011, Texas motor gasoline consumption totaled approximately 8.9% of U.S. consumption. Similarly, diesel gallons taxed in Texas
have grown significantly during the last several decades. From 1989 to 2012, diesel consumption grew approximately 152.2%, from 1.6 billion
gallons to 4.0 billion gallons, or at an approximate 4.1% compound annual growth rate. Diesel consumption grew in 18 of the 23 years during
this period.
Industry Consolidation
We believe that there is considerable opportunity for consolidation in our industry as major integrated oil companies continue to divest
sites they own or lease, and independent dealers have experienced pressure from increased competition from non-traditional fuel suppliers, such
as Walmart and grocery store chains. We intend to capitalize on the relationship between our wholesale business and SUSS' complementary
retail business by jointly pursuing mixed asset acquisition opportunities with SUSS which may not be attractive to a pure wholesaler or pure
retailer. Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement, we will have a right to negotiate with SUSS to acquire any third-party distribution contracts and to
distribute fuel to any retail stores or consignment locations included in a potential acquisition under consideration by SUSS, other than any retail
stores already party to an existing supply agreement. We therefore expect to have the opportunity to participate with SUSS in acquiring
convenience store operations and related wholesale distribution businesses through (i) directly purchasing any dealer distribution contracts or
other wholesale distribution contracts and assets owned by the acquisition target, (ii) selling additional fuel volumes to convenience stores that
SUSS acquires or to SUSS for any acquired consignment locations, and (iii) entering into additional sale and leaseback arrangements with
respect to acquired stores. We believe these opportunities will provide for growth in both our fuel volumes and rental income.
Seasonality
Our business exhibits some seasonality due to our customers' increasing demand for motor fuel during the late spring and summer months
as compared to the fall and winter months. Travel, recreation and construction activities typically increase in these months in the geographic
areas in which we operate, increasing the demand for motor fuel. Therefore, the volume of motor fuel that we distribute is typically somewhat
higher in the second and third quarters of our fiscal year. As a result, our results from operations may vary from period to period.
How We Evaluate and Assess Our Business
Our management uses a variety of financial measurements to analyze our performance. Key measures we use to evaluate and assess our
business include the following:
•

Motor fuel gallons sold. One of the primary drivers of our business is the total volume of motor fuel sold. Our long-term fuel
distribution contracts with our customers, including SUSS, typically provide that we will distribute motor fuel at a fixed,
volume-based profit margin. As a result, our gross profit is directly tied to the volume of motor fuel that we distribute.

•

Gross profit per gallon. Gross profit per gallon reflects the gross profit on motor fuel divided by the number of gallons sold, which
we typically express in terms of cents per gallon. Historically, sales of motor fuel to SUSS' retail convenience stores have been at
cost and therefore, our Predecessor earned profits only on gallons sold to third parties. Pursuant to the SUSS Distribution Contract,
we receive a fixed profit margin per gallon on all of the motor fuel we distribute to Stripes ® convenience stores and to SUSS'
consignment locations. The financial impact of this fee, if it had been generated on our historical volumes sold, is reflected in our
discussion of pro forma results of operations later in this section. Our gross profit cents per gallon varies among our third-party
customers and is impacted by the availability of certain discounts and rebates from our suppliers. Pursuant to the SUSS
Transportation Contract, SUSS arranges for motor fuel to be delivered from our suppliers to our customers, with the costs being
passed entirely along to our customers. As a result, our cost to purchase fuel and any transportation costs that we incur are
generally passed through to our customers, and therefore do not have a substantial impact on our gross profit cents per gallon.

•

Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow. We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income before net interest expense, income
taxes and depreciation, amortization and accretion, as further adjusted to exclude allocated non-cash stock-based compensation
expense and certain other operating expenses that are reflected in our net income that we do not believe are indicative of our
ongoing core operations, such as the gain or loss on disposal of assets. We define distributable cash flow as Adjusted EBITDA less
cash interest expense, cash state franchise expense, maintenance capital expenditures and other non-cash adjustments.
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We believe Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow are useful to investors in evaluating our operating performance because:
•

securities analysts and other interested parties use such metrics as measures of financial performance, ability to make
distributions to our unitholders and debt service capabilities;

•

they are used as performance measures under our revolving credit facility; and

•

they are used by our management for internal planning purposes, including aspects of our consolidated operating budget
and capital expenditures.

For a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow to their most directly comparable financial measure
calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP, read “Key Operating Metrics” below.
Factors Affecting Comparability of our Financial Results
The Partnership's future results of operations may not be comparable to the Predecessor's historical results of operations for the reasons
described below:
Revenues and Gross Profits . Our assets have historically been a part of the integrated operations of SUSS, and our Predecessor
distributed motor fuel and other petroleum products to SUSS without any profit margin. Accordingly, the revenues and gross profits in our
Predecessor's historical consolidated financial statements do not include the profit margin on fuel sold to SUSS. In addition, our Predecessor's
results of operations included results from consignment contracts that were retained by SUSS following the completion of the IPO.
General and Administrative Expenses . Our Predecessor's general and administrative expenses included direct charges for the
management of its operations as well as certain expenses allocated from SUSS for general corporate services. These expenses were charged, or
allocated, to our Predecessor based on the nature of the expenses. The Partnership continues to incur charges for the management of the
operations contributed to the Partnership as well as an allocation for general corporate services. We also expect to incur additional incremental
general and administrative expenses as a result of being a separate publicly-traded partnership.
Other Operating Expenses and Depreciation, Amortization and Accretion . Our Predecessor's other operating expenses and depreciation,
amortization and accretion include direct charges related to consignment operations not contributed to the Partnership.
Income Tax Expense. Our Predecessor was part of a taxable corporation, and as such, was allocated a portion of federal income tax
expense. Our income tax expense only includes applicable Texas franchise tax and any federal and state income taxes related to PropCo.
Key Operating Metrics
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information concerning key measures we rely on to gauge our operating
performance. Historical results include our Predecessor's results of operations. See the table below for a disaggregation of 2012 results between
our Predecessor (prior to September 25, 2012) and the Partnership (beginning September 25, 2012). The following information is intended to
provide investors with a reasonable basis for assessing our historical operations, but should not serve as the only criteria for predicting our future
performance.
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Year Ended
December 31,
December 31,
December 31,
2010
2011
2012 (1)
Predecessor
Predecessor
(dollars and gallons in thousands, except motor fuel
pricing and gross profit per gallon)
Revenues:
Motor fuel sales to third parties (2)
Motor fuel sales to affiliates (2)
Rental income
Other income
Total revenue
Gross profit:
Motor fuel gross profit to third parties (2)
Motor fuel gross profit to affiliates (2)
Rental income
Other
Total gross profit
Net income
Adjusted EBITDA (3)
Distributable cash flow (3)
Operating Data:
Total motor fuel gallons sold:
Third-party gallons
Affiliated gallons
Average wholesale selling price per gallon
Motor fuel gross profit cents per gallon (2):
Third-party
Affiliated
Volume-weighted average for all gallons

$

1,094,273
1,578,653
5,351
5,515
2,683,792

$

$

$
$
$

26,065
—
5,351
4,683
36,099
9,216
20,145

$

494,209
739,104
2.17

$
$

1,549,143
2,257,788
5,467
7,980
3,820,378

$

$

$
$
$

31,217
—
5,467
6,339
43,023
10,598
23,979

$

522,832
789,578
2.90

$

5.3¢
0.0¢
2.1¢

6.0¢
0.0¢
2.4¢

$

$
$
$

$

1,694,025
2,570,757
5,045
7,514
4,277,341
33,292
7,781
5,045
5,384
51,502
17,570
31,695
10,457

560,191
889,755
2.94
5.9¢
0.9¢
2.8¢

(1) Results represent Predecessor activity prior to September 25, 2012 and Partnership activity beginning September 25, 2012. See the
disaggregated results in the table below.
(2) For the periods presented prior to September 25, 2012, affiliated sales only include sales to Stripes ® convenience stores, for which our
Predecessor historically received no margin, and third-party motor fuel sales and gross profit cents per gallon includes the motor fuel sold
directly to independently operated consignment locations, as well as sales to third-party dealers and other commercial customers. Following
our IPO on September 25, 2012, we sell fuel to SUSS for both Stripes ® convenience stores and SUSS' independently operated consignment
locations at a fixed profit margin of approximately three cents per gallon. As a result, volumes sold to consignment locations are included in
the calculation of third-party motor fuel revenue and gross profit in the historical operating data prior to September 25, 2012, and in the
calculation of affiliated motor fuel gross profit cents per gallon, in the historical data beginning September 25, 2012.
(3) We define EBITDA as net income before net interest expense, income tax expense and depreciation and amortization expense. Adjusted
EBITDA further adjusts EBITDA to reflect certain other non-recurring and non-cash items. We define distributable cash flow as Adjusted
EBITDA less cash interest expense, cash state franchise tax expense, maintenance capital expenditures, and other non-cash adjustments.
Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow are not financial measures calculated in accordance with GAAP. Distributable cash flow for
the year ended December 31, 2012 does not include results related to our Predecessor prior to September 25, 2012.
We believe EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow are useful to investors in evaluating our operating performance
because:
•

Adjusted EBITDA is used as a performance measure under our revolving credit facility;

•

securities analysts and other interested parties use such metrics as measures of financial performance, ability to make distributions to
our unitholders and debt service capabilities;
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•

they are used by our management for internal planning purposes, including aspects of our consolidated operating budget, and capital
expenditures; and

•

distributable cash flow provides useful information to investors as it is a widely accepted financial indicator used by investors to
compare partnership performance, as it provides investors an enhanced perspective of the operating performance of our assets and the
cash our business is generating.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow are not recognized terms under GAAP and do not purport to be alternatives to net
income (loss) as measures of operating performance or to cash flows from operating activities as a measure of liquidity. EBITDA, Adjusted
EBITDA and distributable cash flow have limitations as analytical tools, and one should not consider them in isolation or as substitutes for
analysis of our results as reported under GAAP. Some of these limitations include:
•

they do not reflect our total cash expenditures, or future requirements, for capital expenditures or contractual commitments;

•

they do not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, working capital;

•

they do not reflect interest expense, or the cash requirements necessary to service interest or principal payments on our revolving credit
facility or term loan;

•

although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized will often have to be replaced
in the future, and EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect cash requirements for such replacements; and

•

because not all companies use identical calculations, our presentation of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow may
not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies.

The following table presents a reconciliation of net income to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA:

Net income
Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Interest expense, net
Income tax expense
EBITDA
Non-cash stock-based compensation
Loss on disposal of assets and impairment charge
Adjusted EBITDA

Year Ended
December 31,
December 31,
December 31,
2010
2011
2012
Predecessor
(in thousands)
$
9,216 $
10,598 $
17,570
4,771
6,090
7,031
284
324
809
5,236
6,039
5,033
19,507
23,051
30,443
552
707
911
86
221
341
$
20,145 $
23,979 $
31,695
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The following table is a summary of our results of operations for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, disaggregated for the
periods preceding and following our IPO:

Susser Petroleum
Company LLC
Predecessor

Susser Petroleum
Partners LP

January 1, 2012
Through September 24,
2012

September 25, 2012
Through
December 31, 2012

Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2012

(in thousands)

Revenues:
Motor fuel sales to third parties
Motor fuel sales to affiliates
Rental income
Other income
Total revenue
Gross profit:
Motor fuel gross profit to third parties
Motor fuel gross profit to affiliates
Rental income
Other
Total gross profit
Net income

$

Adjusted EBITDA (a)

1,339,980
1,848,655
4,023
5,764
3,198,422

$

27,678
6
4,023
4,287
35,994
8,420

$

20,272

Distributable cash flow (a)

$

354,045
722,102
1,022
1,750
1,078,919

$

1,694,025
2,570,757
5,045
7,514
4,277,341

$

5,614
7,775
1,022
1,097
15,508
9,150

$

33,292
7,781
5,045
5,384
51,502
17,570

$

11,423

$

31,695

$

10,457

(a) Reconciliation of net income to EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow:
Susser Petroleum
Company LLC
Predecessor

Susser Petroleum
Partners LP

January 1, 2012
Through September 24,
2012

September 25, 2012
Through
December 31, 2012

Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2012

(in thousands)

Net income
Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Interest expense, net
Income tax expense
EBITDA
Non-cash stock-based compensation
Loss on disposal of assets and impairment charge
Adjusted EBITDA

$

$

8,420
5,735
269
4,809
19,233
810
229
20,272

$

Cash interest expense
State franchise tax expense (cash)
Maintenance capital expenditures
Distributable cash flow

$

9,150
1,296
540
224
11,210
101
112

$

11,423

$

17,570
7,031
809
5,033
30,443
911
341
31,695

439
71
456
10,457

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2011
Revenue. Total revenue for 2012 was $4.3 billion , an increase of $457.0 million , or 12.0% , from 2011 . Motor fuel sales to third parties
increased $144.9 million , or 9.4% . Of this increase, $34.2 million was driven by a 2.1% increase in the
32

wholesale selling price per gallon of motor fuel, and $110.7 million was due to a 7.1% increase in gallons sold to third parties. Motor fuel sales
to affiliates increased $313.0 million , or 13.9% , from 2011 . This increase consisted of $286.5 million resulting from a 12.7% increase in
gallons sold to affiliates and an increase of $26.5 million related to a 1.0% increase in the wholesale selling price of motor fuel.
Cost of Sales and Gross Profit. Gross profit for 2012 was $51.5 million , an increase of $8.5 million , or 19.7% , over 2011 . Gross profit
on motor fuel sales to third parties increased $2.1 million primarily attributable to the 7.1% increase in gallons sold to third parties. The sales
price of motor fuel sold to third parties increased by 6.1 cents per gallon, while the cost of fuel increased 6.1 cents per gallon, resulting in a
negligible decrease in gross profit cents per gallon. For the Predecessor, motor fuel was sold to affiliates at cost, resulting in no gross profit on
motor fuel sales to affiliates for all of 2011 and the period from January 1, 2012 through September 24, 2012. Gross profit from motor fuel sold
to affiliates at a fixed three cent profit margin following the IPO from September 25, 2012, was $7.8 million .
Total Operating Expenses. For 2012 , general and administrative expenses, or G&A expenses, increased by $1.5 million , or 13.8% , from
2011 . The increase in G&A expenses was primarily attributable to increased cost of salaries, bonus and benefits related to annual compensation
increases and headcount additions during 2012. We anticipate incurring an incremental $2.0 million of G&A expenses annually resulting from
being a publicly traded partnership, of which less than $0.3 million was incurred during the fourth quarter of 2012. Other operating expenses
increased $0.3 million , or 6.3% , due primarily to increased reserves for bad debt of $0.4 million and environmental costs. Depreciation,
amortization and accretion expense for 2012 of $7.0 million was up $0.9 million , or 15.5% , from 2011 due to depreciation and amortization on
additional capital investments, including the acquisition of 121 dealer distribution agreements made in the fourth quarter of 2011.
Income Tax Expense. For 2012, income tax expense decreased $1.0 million from 2011. The effective tax rate for 2011 was 36.3%
compared to 22.3% for 2012 . Income taxes for 2011 reflect state and federal income taxes of the Predecessor for the entire year. For 2012, taxes
consist of state and federal income taxes of the Predecessor prior to the IPO, but since SUSP is a pass-through entity and is not subject to income
tax, activity post IPO only reflects Texas franchise tax.
Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2010
Revenue. Total revenue for 2011 was $3.8 billion, an increase of $1.1 billion, or 42.4%, from 2010. Motor fuel sales to third parties
increased $454.9 million, or 41.6%. Of this increase, $370.1 million was driven by a 33.8% increase in the wholesale selling price per gallon of
motor fuel, and $84.8 million was due to a 5.8% increase in gallons sold to third parties. Motor fuel sales to affiliates increased $679.1 million,
or 43.0%, from 2010. This increase consisted of $534.8 million related to a 33.9% increase in the wholesale selling price of motor fuel and
$144.3 million related to a 6.8% increase in gallons sold to affiliates. The increase in other income of $2.5 million, or 44.7%, was primarily due
to $2.1 million in increases in freight revenues from third parties.
Cost of Sales and Gross Profit. Gross profit for 2011 was $43.0 million, an increase of $6.9 million, or 19.2%, over 2010. Gross profit
on motor fuel sales to third parties increased $5.2 million, partially attributable to a 13.2% increase in third party gross profit cents per gallon.
While the sales price of motor fuel sold to third parties increased by 74.9 cents per gallon, the cost of fuel increased by 74.2 cents per gallon,
resulting in a 0.7 cents per gallon increase in gross profit, or a $3.4 million increase in gross profit. Also contributing to the increase in motor
fuel gross profit from third parties was the 5.8% increase in gallons sold, resulting in an additional $1.7 million of motor fuel gross profit from
third parties. Motor fuel was sold to affiliates at cost, resulting in no gross profit on motor fuel sales to affiliates. The $1.7 million increase in
other gross profit was primarily related to the growth in transportation services.
Total Operating Expenses. For 2011, general and administrative expenses increased by $2.1 million, or 24.5%, from 2010. Of this
amount, $0.8 million of the increase was due to higher salaries and benefits, partially related to annual compensation increases and partially
related to additional headcount. Another $0.6 million of the increase in general and administrative expenses was due to increased bonus expense.
An additional $0.2 million of corporate overhead expenses was allocated from SUSS in 2011 versus 2010. Other operating costs increased
$0.6 million, or 15.2%, in 2011, consisting of increases in maintenance costs of $0.3 million, customer service costs of $0.2 million and property
taxes of $0.1 million. Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense for 2011 of $6.1 million was up $1.3 million, or 27.6%, from 2010 due
to depreciation and amortization expense on capital investments, including an acquisition made in the fourth quarter of 2010 and an acquisition
made in the fourth quarter of 2011.
Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense increased $0.8 million, or 15.3%, due to the increase in operating income. The effective tax
rate for 2010 was 36.2% compared to 36.3% for 2011.
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Pro Forma Results of Operations
We have provided below certain supplemental pro forma information for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, which give
pro forma effect to (i) the contribution by our Predecessor to us of substantially all of the assets and operations comprising its wholesale motor
fuel distribution business (other than its motor fuel consignment business and transportation assets and substantially all of its accounts receivable
and payable) and the contribution by SUSS and our Predecessor to us of certain convenience store properties and (ii) our entry into the SUSS
Distribution Contract, the SUSS Transportation Contract and the Omnibus Agreement as if such transactions had occurred at the beginning of
the period presented.
Our assets have historically been a part of the integrated operations of SUSS, and our Predecessor distributed motor fuel and other
petroleum products to SUSS, as opposed to third parties, without receiving any profit margin. Accordingly, the gross profit in our Predecessor's
historical consolidated financial statements, prior to our IPO on September 25, 2012, relates only to the profit margin received from third parties
for our wholesale distribution services and from consignment contracts that were retained by SUSS following the completion of our IPO. The
pro forma information presented in the table below was derived based upon known volumes distributed by our Predecessor to SUSS reflected in
our Predecessor's historical financial statements for which our Predecessor did not receive any profit margin, and adjusted for the profit margin
that we will receive going forward pursuant to the SUSS Distribution Contract applied to those volumes. The pro forma information was also
derived based upon the volumes distributed by our Predecessor under consignment arrangements, for which it historically received variable
margins, and the profit margin contained in the SUSS Distribution Contract applied to those volumes.
Management believes the pro forma presentation is useful to investors because, had it been in effect during the historical periods presented,
the SUSS Distribution Contract would have had a substantial impact on our historical results of operations as a result of (i) the fixed profit
margin that we would have earned on the motor fuel distributed to SUSS instead of no margin historically reflected in our Predecessor financial
statements and (ii) the fixed profit margin that we would have received on all volumes sold to consignment locations instead of the variable and
higher margin received by our Predecessor under consignment contracts.

Pro Forma Year Ended
December 31,
2010
2011
2012
(in thousands, except gross profit per gallon)
Revenues:
Motor fuel sales to third parties
Motor fuel sales to affiliates
Rental income
Other income
Total revenue
Gross profit:
Motor fuel sales to third parties
Motor fuel to affiliates
Rental income
Other
Total gross profit
Operating Data:
Motor fuel gallons sold:

$

$

Third-party dealers and other commercial customers

852,002
1,833,163
2,963
4,565
2,692,693
13,756
25,314
2,963
2,675
44,708

388,136
845,177
1,233,313

Affiliated gallons
Total gallons sold
Motor fuel gross profit cents per gallon:
Third-party
Affiliated
Volume-weighted average for all gallons
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$

$

1,216,896
2,605,050
3,304
4,596
3,829,846
17,579
26,956
3,304
2,474
50,313

413,888
898,522
1,312,410

$

$

1,423,762
2,853,052
3,484
5,255
4,285,553
20,957
29,206
3,484
3,125
56,772

475,507
974,439
1,449,946

3.5¢
3.0¢

4.2¢
3.0¢

4.4¢
3.0¢

3.2¢

3.4¢

3.5¢

Pro Forma Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Pro Forma Year Ended December 31, 2011
Pro Forma Revenue . Pro forma revenue for 2012 would have been $4.3 billion , an increase of $455.7 million , or 11.9% , from 2011.
Pro forma motor fuel sales to third parties would have increased $206.9 million , or 17.0% . Of this increase, $25.7 million would have been
driven by a 1.8% increase in the wholesale selling price per gallon of motor fuel, and $181.2 million would have been due to a 14.9% increase in
gallons sold to third parties. Pro forma motor fuel sales to affiliates would have increased $248.0 million , or 9.5% , from 2011. This increase
would have consisted of $220.1 million related to an 8.4% increase in gallons sold to affiliates and an increase of $27.9 million related to a 1.0%
increase in the wholesale selling price of motor fuel.
Pro Forma Cost of Sales and Gross Profit . Pro forma motor fuel gross profit from third-party sales for 2012 would have been $21.0
million , an increase of $3.4 million , or 19.2% , over 2011. This increase would have been attributable to the 14.9% increase in gallons sold to
third parties, increasing gross profit by $2.6 million and an increase of 3.8% in third-party gross profit cents per gallon or $0.8 million . The sales
price of motor fuel sold to third parties increased by 5.4 cents per gallon, while the cost of fuel increased by 5.2 cents per gallon, resulting in a
0.2 cents per gallon increase in gross profit. Pro forma motor fuel gross profit from sales to affiliates for 2012 would have been $29.2 million ,
an 8.3% increase over 2011. The increase would have been entirely due to the increase in gallons sold to affiliates. Cost of sales per gallon
would have increased commensurate with revenue per gallon, which would have resulted in a flat 3.0 cents per gallon gross profit for each
period. Gross profit from rental income and other income on a pro forma basis during 2012 would have been $6.6 million , an increase of $0.8
million over the prior year period.
Pro Forma Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Pro Forma Year Ended December 31, 2010
Pro Forma Revenue. Pro forma revenue for 2011 would have been $3.8 billion, an increase of $1.1 billion, or 42.2%, from 2010. Pro
forma motor fuel sales to third parties would have increased $364.9 million, or 42.8%. Of this increase, $289.2 million would have been driven
by a 33.9% increase in the wholesale selling price per gallon of motor fuel, and $75.7 million would have been due to a 6.6% increase in gallons
sold to third parties. Pro forma motor fuel sales to affiliates would have increased $771.9 million, or 42.1%, from 2010. This increase would
have consisted of $617.2 million related to a 33.7% increase in the wholesale selling price of motor fuel and $154.7 million related to a 6.3%
increase in gallons sold to affiliates. Pro forma rental income would have increased $0.3 million due to increases in contractual rental payments
from third parties.
Pro Forma Cost of Sales and Gross Profit. Pro forma motor fuel gross profit from third-party sales for 2011 would have been
$17.6 million, an increase of $3.8 million, or 27.8%, over 2010. This increase would have been attributable to a 19.8% increase in third-party
gross profit cents per gallon, or 0.7 cents per gallon, contributing $2.7 million. Also, the 6.6% increase in gallons sold to third parties increased
gross profit $1.1 million. The sales price of motor fuel sold to third parties increased by 74.5 cents per gallon while the cost of fuel increased by
73.8 cents per gallon. Pro forma motor fuel gross profit from sales to affiliates for 2011 would have been $27.0 million, a 6.5% increase over
2010. The increase would have been entirely due to a 6.3% increase in gallons sold to affiliates. Cost of sales per gallon would have increased
commensurate with revenue per gallon, which would have resulted in a flat 3.0 cents per gallon gross profit for each period. Pro forma gross
profit from rental income and other income on a pro forma basis during 2011 would have been $5.8 million, an increase of $0.1 million, which
would have been due to the $0.3 million increase in pro forma rental income, partially offset by a $0.2 million decrease in pro forma other gross
profit.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity
Our principal liquidity requirements are to finance current operations, fund capital expenditures, including acquisitions from time to time,
and to service our debt. Historically, our Predecessor's operations were financed as part of SUSS' integrated operations and our Predecessor did
not record any significant costs associated with financing its operations. Additionally, our Predecessor largely relied on internally generated cash
flows to satisfy its capital expenditure requirements. We expect our ongoing sources of liquidity to include cash generated from operations,
liquidation of our marketable securities, borrowings under our revolving credit facility and the issuance of additional partnership units as
appropriate given market conditions. We will sell our marketable securities over time to fund our capital expenditures. Immediately prior to
selling such securities, we will repay an equal amount of term loan borrowings with borrowings under our revolving credit facility. As a result,
our marketable securities provide us with the ability to fund capital expenditures without increasing the net amount of our outstanding
borrowings. We expect that these sources of funds will be adequate to provide for our short-term and long-term
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liquidity needs. Our ability to meet our debt service obligations and other capital requirements, including capital expenditures, as well as make
acquisitions, will depend on our future operating performance which, in turn, will be subject to general economic, financial, business,
competitive, legislative, regulatory and other conditions, many of which are beyond our control. As a normal part of our business, depending on
market conditions, we will from time to time consider opportunities to repay, redeem, repurchase or refinance our indebtedness. Changes in our
operating plans, lower than anticipated sales, increased expenses, acquisitions or other events may cause us to seek additional debt or equity
financing in future periods. There can be no guarantee that financing will be available on acceptable terms or at all. Debt financing, if available,
could impose additional cash payment obligations and additional covenants and operating restrictions. In addition, any of the items discussed in
detail under "Item 1A. Risk Factors" may also significantly impact our liquidity.
We intend to continue to pay a minimum quarterly distribution of $0.4375 per common unit and subordinated unit per quarter, which
equates to approximately $9.6 million per quarter, or $38.3 million per year, based on the number of common and subordinated units currently
outstanding, to the extent we have sufficient cash from our operations after establishment of cash reserves and payment of fees and expenses,
including payments to our general partner and its affiliates. We do not have a legal obligation to pay this distribution.
Cash Flows Provided by Operations
Cash flows provided by operations are our main source of liquidity. Our Predecessor historically relied primarily on cash provided by
operating activities, supplemented as necessary from time to time by borrowings under the SUSS credit facility and other debt or equity
transactions to finance its operations and to fund its capital expenditures. Concurrent with our IPO, we entered into a $250 million revolving
credit facility, described below, to provide liquidity as needed to meet changes in working capital requirements. Our daily working capital
requirements fluctuate within each month, primarily in response to the timing of payments for motor fuel, motor fuel tax and rent. The
Partnership has entered into several commercial agreements with SUSS. Read Note 12 for a detailed discussion of these agreements.
Cash flows from operations were $17.5 million, $14.3 million and $16.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012,
respectively. Changes in our Predecessor's cash flows from operations were primarily driven by increases or decreases in accounts receivable
and accounts payable which are impacted by increasing or decreasing motor fuel prices and costs. Following the IPO, increases in accounts
receivable from affiliates and accounts payable were a result of the Partnership building these account balances as it commenced operations. We
had $6.8 million of cash and cash equivalents on hand at the end of 2012, all of which was unrestricted. At the end of 2011, the Predecessor had
minimal cash on hand as all cash was previously centrally concentrated to SUSS.
Capital Expenditures
Capital expenditures, including purchase of intangibles, before any asset dispositions, were $14.0 million , $19.4 million , and $44.0
million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively. Included in the 2012 amount is $15.0 million incurred by our
Predecessor and $29.0 million related to new stores purchased following our IPO through a sale and leaseback transaction with SUSS. Our
capital spending program is focused on expanding our wholesale distribution network and maintaining our owned properties and equipment.
Capital expenditure plans are generally evaluated based on return on investment and estimated incremental cash flow. We develop annual capital
spending plans based on historical trends of our Predecessor for maintenance capital, plus identified projects for new sites and revenuegenerating capital. In addition to the annually recurring capital expenditures, potential acquisition opportunities are evaluated based on their
anticipated return on invested capital, accretive impact to operating results, and strategic fit.
Subsequent to our IPO, our capital expenditures no longer include the acquisition, replacement and maintenance of certain transportation,
fuel and other equipment and facilities that were not contributed to us, but historically required capital expenditures by our Predecessor. We
estimate that we would have incurred a total of $4.0 million in capital expenditures through the period ended September 24, 2012 related to the
business that was contributed to us. Of this amount, $3.2 million would have been for expansion capital, primarily for new dealer supply
contracts, and $0.8 million would have been for maintenance capital, including payments to renew existing distribution contracts, or to maintain
our real estate leased to third parties in leasable condition, such as parking lot or roof replacement or renovation, or to replace equipment
required to operate our existing business. Such capital expenditures for 2012, together with our activity subsequent to the IPO, would have
totaled $38.2 million in capital expenditures, which includes $37.0 million in expansion capital, of which $29.0 million relates to the sale and
leaseback transactions with SUSS, and $1.2 million in maintenance capital.
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities
In September 2012, we completed our IPO of 49.9% of our limited partner interests, receiving net proceeds of approximately $206
million, after deducting fees and expenses. Approximately $25 million of the proceeds were distributed to SUSS for reimbursement of capital
expenditures in our Predecessor for the prior 24 months, and the balance of $180.7 million was invested in marketable securities. SUSP entered
into a Term Loan and Security Agreement (the “SUSP Term Loan”) under which we borrowed $180.7 million, and pledged the marketable
securities to obtain better terms. The SUSP Term Loan bears interest at a rate equal to LIBOR plus 0.25%, and matures on September 25, 2015,
although it may be prepaid without penalty at any time. Proceeds from the SUSP Term Loan were distributed to SUSS.
Additionally, we entered into a $250 million revolving credit facility, which expires on September 25, 2017 (the “SUSP Revolver”).
The SUSP Revolver can be increased by up to an additional $100 million upon our written request, subject to certain conditions. Interest will be
calculated on either a base rate or LIBOR plus a margin, which ranges from 1.00% to 2.25% in case of a base rate and 2.00% to 3.25% in case of
a LIBOR rate, based on a total leverage ratio. The initial interest rate was set at LIBOR plus 2.00%. We plan to use the SUSP Revolver and the
marketable securities to fund growth capital, which may include purchase and leaseback transactions with SUSS convenience store properties.
The SUSP Revolver requires us to maintain a minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio of not less than 2.50 to 1.00 , and a consolidated
total leverage ratio of not more than 4.50 to 1.00 , subject to certain adjustments. Indebtedness under the SUSP Revolver is secured by a security
interest in, among other things, all of our present and future personal property and all of the personal property of our guarantors, the capital stock
of our subsidiaries, and any intercompany debt. Additionally, if our consolidated total leverage ratio exceeds 3.00 to 1.00 at the end of any fiscal
quarter, we will be required, upon request of the lenders, to grant mortgage liens on all real property owned by the Partnership and its subsidiary
guarantors.
As of December 31, 2012 , the balance outstanding of the SUSP Term Loan was $148.2 million, which was fully collateralized by
marketable securities. Additionally, there were $35.6 million outstanding borrowings under the SUSP Revolver and $12.8 million in standby
letters of credit. The unused availability on the SUSP Revolver at December 31, 2012 was $201.6 million , and we were in compliance with all
covenants.
Contractual Obligations and Commitments
Contractual Obligations . We have contractual obligations which are required to be settled in cash. Our contractual obligations as of
December 31, 2012 were as follows:

2013
Long-term debt obligations (1)
Interest payments (2)
Operating lease obligations

$

Total

$

24
2,301
801
3,126

2014
$

$

25
2,300
803
3,128

Payments Due by Period
2016
2017
(in thousands)
148,193 $
1,023 $
35,590
2,022
1,484
1,086
773
782
793
150,988 $
3,289 $
37,469

2015
$

$

Thereafter
$

$

—
—
4,983
4,983

Total
$

$

184,855
9,193
8,935
202,983

(1) Payments for 2013 through 2017 reflect required principal payments on our promissory and term notes. No principal amounts are due on our
term notes until September 2015. Assumes balance of our revolving credit facility, of which the balance at December 31, 2012 was $35.6
million, remains outstanding until the revolver maturity in September 2017.
(2) Includes interest on term and promissory notes. Includes interest on revolving credit facility balance as of December 31, 2012 and
commitment fees on the unused portion of the facility through September 2017 using rates in effect at December 31, 2012.
We also make various other commitments and become subject to various other contractual obligations that we believe to be routine in
nature and incidental to the operation of our business.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not maintain any off-balance sheet arrangements for the purpose of credit enhancement, hedging transactions or other financial
or investment purposes.
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Impact of Inflation
The impact of inflation has minimal impact on our results of operations, as we generally are able to pass along energy cost increases in
the form of increased sales prices to our customers. Inflation in energy prices impacts our sales and cost of motor fuel products and working
capital requirements. Increased fuel prices may also require us to post additional letters of credit or other collateral if our fuel purchases exceed
unsecured credit limits extended to us by our suppliers. Although we believe we have historically been able to pass on increased costs through
price increases and maintain adequate liquidity to support any increased collateral requirements, there can be no assurance that we will be able to
do so in the future.

Quarterly Results of Operations
See "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Notes to Financial Statements - Note 20. Quarterly Results of Operations"
for financial and operating quarterly data for each quarter of 2010, 2011 and 2012.
Application of Critical Accounting Policies
We prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements, and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
Critical accounting policies are those we believe are both most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of
operations, and require our most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effects of
matters that are inherently uncertain. Judgments and uncertainties affecting the application of those policies may result in materially different
amounts being reported under different conditions or using different assumptions. We believe the following policies will be the most critical in
understanding the judgments that are involved in preparation of our consolidated financial statements.
Business Combinations and Intangible Assets Including Goodwill. We account for acquisitions using the purchase method of
accounting. Accordingly, assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded at their estimated fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of
purchase price over fair value of net assets acquired, including the amount assigned to identifiable intangible assets, is recorded as goodwill.
Given the time it takes to obtain pertinent information to finalize the acquired company's balance sheet, it may be several quarters before we are
able to finalize those initial fair value estimates. Accordingly, it is not uncommon for the initial estimates to be subsequently revised. The results
of operations of acquired businesses are included in the consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date.
Our recorded identifiable intangible assets primarily include the estimated value assigned to certain customer related and
contract-based assets. Identifiable intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which is the period over
which the asset is expected to contribute directly or indirectly to our future cash flows. Supply agreements are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the remaining terms of the agreements, which generally range from five to fifteen years. Favorable/unfavorable lease arrangements are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease terms. In October 2011, we completed the acquisition of 121 wholesale dealer fuel
supply agreements, with a remaining average useful life of six years, and fuel supply rights to 26 commercial accounts, with a remaining average
useful life of one year. The determination of the fair market value of the intangible asset and the estimated useful life are based on an analysis of
all pertinent factors including (1) the use of widely-accepted valuation approaches, the income approach or the cost approach, (2) the expected
use of the asset by us, (3) the expected useful life of related assets, (4) any legal, regulatory or contractual provisions, including renewal or
extension periods that would cause substantial costs or modifications to existing agreements, and (5) the effects of obsolescence, demand,
competition, and other economic factors. Should any of the underlying assumptions indicate that the value of the intangible assets might be
impaired, we may be required to reduce the carrying value and subsequent useful life of the asset. If the underlying assumptions governing the
amortization of an intangible asset were later determined to have significantly changed, we may be required to adjust the amortization period of
such asset to reflect any new estimate of its useful life. Any write-down of the value or unfavorable change in the useful life of an intangible
asset would increase expense at that time.
Under the accounting rules, goodwill is not amortized. Instead, goodwill is subject to annual reviews on the first day of the fourth fiscal
quarter for impairment at a reporting unit level. The reporting unit or units used to evaluate and measure goodwill for impairment are determined
primarily from the manner in which the business is managed or operated. A reporting
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unit is an operating segment or a component that is one level below an operating segment. We have assessed the reporting unit definitions and
determined that we have one operating segment that is appropriate for testing goodwill impairment.
Some of the factors considered in applying this test include the consideration of macroeconomic conditions, industry and market
considerations, cost factors affecting the business, and the overall financial performance of the business. In addition, the key inputs used to
determine fair value were considered, including industry multiples, the weighted average cost of capital, and the cash flow. Because the SUSP is
a new entity, we determined that step one of the two-step goodwill impairment test should be applied in testing the goodwill. The result of this
analysis (in thousands) is as follows:

Fair Value
$
690,267 $

Goodwill

Carrying
Value
250,420 $

Excess
438,847

% Excess
176%

We compute the fair value employing multiple valuation methodologies, including a market approach (market price multiples of
comparable companies) and an income approach (discounted cash flow analysis). The values ascertained using these methods were weighted to
obtain a total fair value. The computations require management to make significant estimates and assumptions. Critical estimates and
assumptions that are used as part of these evaluations include, among other things, selection of comparable publicly traded companies, the
discount rate applied to future earnings reflecting a weighted average cost of capital rate, and earnings growth assumptions.
A discounted cash flow analysis requires us to make various judgmental assumptions about sales, operating margins, capital
expenditures, working capital and growth rates. Assumptions about sales, operating margins, capital expenditures and growth rates are based on
our budgets, business plans, economic projections, and anticipated future cash flows. The annual planning process that we undertake to prepare
the long range financial forecast takes into consideration a multitude of factors including historical growth rates and operating performance,
related industry trends, macroeconomic conditions, inflationary and deflationary forces, pricing strategies, customer demand analysis, operating
trends, competitor analysis, and marketplace data, among others. In determining the fair value of our reporting unit, we were required to make
significant judgments and estimates regarding the impact of anticipated economic factors on our business. Assumptions are also made for a
“normalized” perpetual growth rate for periods beyond the long range financial forecast period.
Our estimates of fair value are sensitive to changes in all of these variables, certain of which relate to broader macroeconomic
conditions outside our control. As a result, actual performance in the near and longer-term could be different from these expectations and
assumptions. This could be caused by events such as strategic decisions made in response to economic and competitive conditions and the
impact of economic factors, such as continued increases in unemployment rates on our customer base. In addition, some of the inherent estimates
and assumptions used in determining fair value of the reporting units are outside the control of management, including interest rates, cost of
capital, tax rates, and our credit ratings. While we believe we have made reasonable estimates and assumptions to calculate the fair value of the
reporting units and other intangible assets, it is possible a material change could occur. If our future actual results are significantly lower than our
current operating results or our estimates and assumptions used to calculate fair value are materially different, the value determined using the
discounted cash flow analysis could result in a lower value. A significant decrease in value could result in a fair value lower than carrying value,
and require us to perform the second step which could result in impairment of our goodwill.
Long-Lived Assets and Assets Held for Sale. Long-lived assets at the individual site level are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. If indicators exist, we compare the
estimated discounted future cash flows related to the asset to the carrying value of the asset. If impairment is indicated, we then would write
down the asset to its net realizable value (fair value less cost to sell). Assumptions are made with respect to cash flows expected to be generated
by the related assets based upon management projections. Any changes in key assumptions used to compile these projections, particularly site
level performance or market conditions, could result in an unanticipated impairment charge. For instance, changes in market demographics,
traffic patterns, competition and other factors may impact the overall operations of certain individual locations and may require us to record
impairment charges in the future.
Properties that have been closed and other excess real property are recorded as assets held and used, and are written down to the lower
of cost or estimated net realizable value at the time we close such stores or determine that these properties are in excess and intend to offer them
for sale. We estimate the net realizable value based on our experience in utilizing or disposing of similar assets and on estimates provided by our
own and third-party real estate experts. Although we have not experienced significant changes in our estimate of net realizable value, changes in
real estate markets could significantly
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impact the net values realized from the sale of assets. When we have determined that an asset is more likely than not to be sold in the next twelve
months, that asset is classified as assets held for sale and reflected in other current assets.
Insurance Liabilities. We use a combination of self-insurance and third-party insurance with predetermined deductibles that cover
certain insurable risks. Our costs are allocated from SUSS, and SUSS carries a liability which represents an estimate of the ultimate cost of
claims incurred as of the balance sheet dates. The estimated undiscounted liability is established based upon analysis of historical data and
includes judgments and actuarial assumptions regarding economic conditions, the frequency and severity of claims, claim development patterns
and claim management and settlement practices. Although we have not experienced significant changes in actual expenditures compared to
actuarial assumptions as a result of increased costs or incidence rates, such changes could occur in the future and could significantly impact our
results of operations and financial position.
Stock and Unit-Based Compensation. Certain employees supporting our operations were historically granted long-term incentive
compensation awards under SUSS' stock-based compensation programs, which consist of stock options and restricted common stock. We were
allocated expenses for such stock-based compensation costs. These costs are included in our general and administrative expenses. Our allocated
expense was $0.6 million, $0.7 million and $0.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively. In addition we
recognized $0.1 million of unit compensation expense related to SUSP unit awards.
Income Taxes. As a limited partnership we are generally not subject to state and federal income tax and would therefore not recognize
deferred income tax liabilities and assets for the expected future income tax consequences of temporary differences between financial statement
carrying amounts and the related income tax basis. We are, however, subject to a statutory requirement that our non-qualifying income cannot
exceed 10% of our total gross income, determined on a calendar year basis under the applicable income tax provisions. If the amount of our nonqualifying income exceeds this statutory limit, we would be taxed as a corporation. Accordingly, certain activities that generate non-qualifying
income are conducted through our wholly owned taxable corporate subsidiary for which we have recognized deferred income tax liabilities and
assets at December 31, 2012. These balances, as well as income tax expense, are determined through management's estimations, interpretation of
tax law for multiple jurisdictions and tax planning. If our actual results differ from estimated results due to changes in tax laws, our effective tax
rate and tax balances could be affected. As such, these estimates may require adjustments in the future as additional facts become known or as
circumstances change.
The benefit of an uncertain tax position can only be recognized in the financial statements if management concludes that it is more
likely than not that the position will be sustained with the tax authorities. For a position that is likely to be sustained, the benefit recognized in
the financial statements is measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized. In determining the future tax
consequences of events that have been recognized in our financial statements or tax returns, judgment is required. Differences between the
anticipated and actual outcomes of these future tax consequences could have a material impact on our consolidated results of operations or
financial position.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk
We are subject to market risk from exposure to changes in interest rates based on our financing, investing and cash management activities.
We currently have a $250.0 million revolving credit facility and a $180.7 million term loan which bears interest at variable rates. We had $35.6
million outstanding borrowings on the SUSP Revolver at December 31, 2012 . The annualized effect of a one percentage point change in
floating interest rates on our variable rate debt obligations outstanding at December 31, 2012 , would be to change interest expense by
approximately $1.8 million . Our primary interest rate exposure relates to:
• Interest rate risk on short-term borrowings and
• The impact of interest rate movements on our ability to obtain adequate financing to fund future acquisitions.
While we cannot predict or manage our ability to refinance existing debt or the impact interest rate movements will have on our existing
debt, management evaluates our financial position on an ongoing basis. From time to time, we may enter into interest rate swaps to reduce the
impact of changes in interest rates on our floating rate debt. We had no interest rate swaps in effect during 2011 or 2012.
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Commodity Price Risk
We have minimal commodity price risk as we purchase over 95% of our motor fuel only when we receive an order from one of our
customers and take title to the motor fuel only for the short period of time (typically less than a day) between pick-up and delivery. In addition, a
substantial majority of our gross profit is generated by fixed fees that we charge for each gallon sold and any transportation costs that we incur
are passed through to our customers.
Our Predecessor periodically purchased motor fuel in bulk and held in inventory or transported it to West Texas or Houston via pipeline.
This commodity price risk was hedged through the use of fuel futures contracts which were matched in quantity and timing to the anticipated
usage of the inventory. These fuel hedging positions have not historically been material to our Predecessor's operations. Our Predecessor had 16
positions with a fair value of ( $12,800 ) outstanding at December 31, 2011 . At December 31, 2012, the Partnership held no fuel futures
contracts. We began periodically buying bulk fuel and hedging the inventory risk in January 2013. For more information on our hedging activity,
see Note 9 in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements at Item 15.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act), that are designed
to provide reasonable assurance that the information that we are required to disclose in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, and such information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. It should be noted that, because of inherent limitations, our disclosure controls and procedures,
however well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the disclosure controls and
procedures are met.
As required by paragraph (b) of Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer have
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this Form 10-K. Based on such evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief
Financial Officer have concluded, as of the end of the period covered by this Form 10-K, that our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective at the reasonable assurance level for which they were designed in that the information required to be disclosed by the Partnership in the
reports we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in SEC rules and forms and such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
From time to time, we make changes to our internal control over financial reporting that are intended to enhance its effectiveness and
which do not have a material effect on our overall internal control over financial reporting. We will continue to evaluate the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting on an ongoing basis and will take action as appropriate.
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Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
The Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, adopted rules requiring
companies to file reports with the SEC to include a management report on the company's internal control over financial reporting in its annual
report. In addition, our independent registered public accounting firm must attest to our internal control over financial reporting. This, our first
Annual Report on Form 10-K, will not include a report of management's assessment regarding internal control over financial reporting or an
attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm due to a transition period established by SEC rules applicable to new
public companies. Management will be required to provide an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting and
our independent registered public accounting firm will report on such assertion as of December 31, 2013.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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Part III
Item 10.

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Executive Officers and Directors of our General Partner
The following table shows information for the executive officers and directors of our general partner. References to "our officers," "our
directors," or "our board" refer to the officers, directors, and board of directors of our general partner. Directors are appointed to hold office until
their successors have been elected or qualified or until the earlier of their death, resignation, removal or disqualification. Executive officers serve
at the discretion of the board.

Name
Sam L. Susser
E.V. Bonner, Jr.
Rocky B. Dewbre
Mary E. Sullivan
Sam J. Susser
Armand S. Shapiro
David P. Engel
Bryan F. Smith, Jr.
Rob L. Jones

Age
49
57
47
56
73
71
62
60
54

Position With Our General Partner
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
Executive Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel
President and Chief Operating Officer
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

Sam L. Susser-Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board. Mr. Sam L. Susser was appointed Chief Executive Officer and
chairman of the board of directors of our general partner in June 2012. Mr. Susser has served as SUSS' President and Chief Executive Officer
since 1992. From 1988 to 1992, Mr. Susser served as SUSS' General Manager and Vice President of Operations. From 1985 through 1987,
Mr. Susser served in the corporate finance division and the mergers and acquisitions group with Salomon Brothers Inc., an investment bank.
Mr. Susser currently serves as a director of a number of charitable, educational and civic organizations. Sam L. Susser is the son of Sam J.
Susser, who is also a member of Susser Holdings Corporation's Board of Directors and a director to our general partner's board of directors. The
Susser family has been in the fuel distribution business for over 70 years. Mr. Susser provides insight into all aspects of our business. We believe
that his financial industry experience along with his in-depth knowledge of our business will greatly help the board of directors of our general
partner in setting strategic, financial and operating strategies.
E.V. Bonner, Jr.-Executive Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel. Mr. Bonner was appointed Executive Vice President,
Secretary and General Counsel of our general partner in June 2012. Mr. Bonner has served as SUSS' Executive Vice President and General
Counsel since March 2000 and prior to joining SUSS, Mr. Bonner was a stockholder in the law firm of Porter, Rogers, Dahlman & Gordon, P.C.
from 1986 to 2000. He is board certified in commercial real estate law by the Texas Board of Legal Specialization. Mr. Bonner has been
involved in numerous charitable, educational and civic organizations.
Rocky B. Dewbre-President and Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Dewbre was appointed President and Chief Operating Officer of our
general partner in June 2012. Mr. Dewbre has served as SUSS' Executive Vice President and President/Chief Operating Officer-Wholesale since
January 2005. Mr. Dewbre served as SUSS' Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer-Wholesale from 1999 to 2005, as Vice
President from 1995 to 1999 and as Manager of Finance and Administration from 1992 to 1995. Before joining SUSS in 1992, Mr. Dewbre was
a corporate internal auditor with Atlantic Richfield Corporation, a petroleum/chemical company, from 1991 to 1992 and an auditor and
consultant at Deloitte & Touche LLP from 1988 to 1991. Mr. Dewbre serves as a director of Tank Owner Members Insurance Company and the
Society of Independent Gasoline Marketers of America.
Mary E. Sullivan-Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer. Ms. Sullivan was appointed Executive Vice
President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of our general partner in June 2012. Ms. Sullivan has served as SUSS' Executive Vice
President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since November 2005 and as SUSS' Vice President of Finance from February 2000 to 2005.
Prior to joining SUSS in 2000, Ms. Sullivan served as Director of Finance for the City of Corpus Christi from 1999 to 2000. Ms. Sullivan's
previous experience includes serving as the Controller and member of the board of directors of Elementis Chromium, a producer of chromium
chemicals, from 1993 to 1999, and various positions with Central Power and Light Company, culminating in Treasurer, over the 13 year period
from 1979 to 1992.
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Sam J. Susser-Director. Mr. Sam J. Susser joined our general partner's board of directors in August 2012 and has served as a member
of SUSS' board of directors since 1988. He also served as chairman of SUSS' board of directors from 1988 to 1992. Mr. Susser was also the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Plexus Financial Services, a holding company based in Dallas, Texas, from 1987 through 1991.
Mr. Susser's experience includes various positions with The Southland Corporation (7-Eleven, Inc.), Plexus Financial Services and CITGO
Petroleum Corporation, where he served as President. Mr. Susser served as a director and member of the Audit Committee and Executive
Committee of Alberto-Culver Company, a manufacturer and marketer of personal care and household brands, for ten years prior to its sale in
2011. Mr. Susser previously has served on the board of directors of Garden Ridge Pottery and Computer Craft, Inc. Sam J. Susser is the father of
Sam L. Susser, the Chief Executive Officer and chairman of the board of directors of our general partner. Mr. Susser's father founded the
family's fuel distribution business in the 1930's. In addition to his entrepreneurial spirit and extensive experience with SUSS, Mr. Susser also has
gained substantial executive experience in other companies and on other boards, which enhances the leadership he provides to our general
partner's board, as well as his insights into corporate governance, risk management, strategic and financial planning, and operating strategy.
David P. Engel-Director. Mr. Engel joined our general partner's board of directors in August 2012 and has served as a member of
SUSS' board of directors since September 2007, and previously served on SUSS' predecessor's board of directors from 2000 to 2005. Mr. Engel
has been the principal of Corpus Christi-based Engel and Associates, LLC since 1999, a company which provides business management
consulting services to public and private companies in the areas of financial performance improvement, acquisitions and divestitures. Prior to
joining Engel and Associates, LLC, Mr. Engel was president of Airgas Southwest, Inc. and he served as CEO, president and owner of Welders
Equipment Company. Mr. Engel serves on the board of directors of several privately held companies. Mr. Engel has been appointed to serve on
our general partner's audit committee effective as of the date of his appointment. Mr. Engel's service on SUSS' board of directors and executive
management and consulting experience is valuable to the board of directors of our general partner in setting strategic direction, and developing
and executing growth and compensation strategies.
Armand S. Shapiro-Director. Mr. Shapiro joined our general partner's board of directors in August 2012 and has served as a member of
SUSS' board of directors since 1997. Mr. Shapiro joined Newport Board Group as a Partner in October of 2011. Newport Board Group is a
partnership of board directors and senior executive leaders that assist emerging growth and middle market companies improve their performance.
Prior to that, Mr. Shapiro served as a business consultant and mentor to chief executive officers of private companies to develop strategies to
improve growth and profitability of the company. He served from October 2001 through January 2006 on the board of directors of Bindview
Development Corporation, then a publicly traded corporation that provided software for proactively managing information technology security
compliance operations. Mr. Shapiro was the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Garden Ridge Corporation from 1990 until June 1999.
During the 1980s, Mr. Shapiro also served as President, a member of the executive management team, and a director of Computer Craft, Inc.,
then a publicly traded retailer of computer products. He was also previously a partner and Chief Operating Officer of Modern Furniture Rentals,
Inc., a family-owned and operated business. Mr. Shapiro is a graduate of Renesselaer Polytechnic Institute and has served as an officer in the
United States Army. Mr. Shapiro has been appointed to serve as the chairman of our general partner's audit committee effective as of the date of
his appointment. Mr. Shapiro's extensive corporate and financial management experience and tenure on SUSS' board of directors, as well as his
specific background in technology and retail operations, provide valuable expertise to the board of our general partner in strategic planning, risk
management, financial and accounting oversight.
Bryan F. Smith, Jr.-Director. Mr. Smith joined our general partner's board of directors in August 2012. Mr. Smith's business
experience includes over 25 years at 7-Eleven, Inc. (formerly the Southland Corporation), beginning in 1980 and culminating with his retirement
in June 2006. During his tenure at 7-Eleven, Mr. Smith served in a variety of positions, most recently as Executive Vice President, Chief
Administrative Officer and Secretary from 2005 to 2006 and Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary from 2002 to 2005,
having been first appointed to the position of General Counsel in 1993, as well as chief compliance officer under the 7-Eleven Code of Conduct
from 1992 to 2006 and a member of the executive committee from 1995 to 2006. Mr. Smith was also briefly engaged as a consultant to
Blockbuster Inc. in late 2007, serving as its interim general counsel. Mr. Smith has been appointed to serve on our general partner's audit
committee and as chairman of our general partner's conflicts committee effective as of the date of his appointment. We believe that Mr. Smith's
broad range of work for 7-Eleven and knowledge of the convenience store industry, apart from SUSS, will enable him to offer a unique
perspective to our general partner's board of directors.
Rob L. Jones-Director. Mr. Jones joined our general partner's board of directors in September 2012. Mr. Jones' experience includes an
over twenty year career in investment banking at Merrill Lynch & Co. and The First Boston Corporation, most recently as co-head of Bank of
America Merrill Lynch Commodities from 2007 until his retirement in June 2012, and prior to that, as co-head of Merrill Lynch's Global Energy
and Power Investment Banking Group and founder of Merrill Lynch Commodity Partners. Mr. Jones will, beginning in September 2012, be an
executive in residence at the McCombs School of Business at the University of Texas at Austin. Mr. Jones is a life member of the advisory
council of the
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McCombs School of Business at the University of Texas at Austin and on the advisory board of Climax Global Energy, Inc. Mr. Jones has been
appointed to serve on our general partner's audit committee and conflicts committee. We believe that Mr. Jones' extensive experience in finance
and the energy industry will enable him to provide unique strategic and management insight to the board of directors.
Board of Directors
Our general partner oversees our operations and activities on our behalf through its board of directors. The board of directors of our
general partner appoints our officers, all of whom are employed by SUSS, and manages our day-to-day affairs. Neither our general partner, nor
the board of directors of our general partner, are elected by our unitholders and neither will be subject to re-election in the future. Rather, the
directors of our general partner are appointed by SUSS, which owns 100% of our general partner. Following our formation in 2012, our board of
directors met four times during 2012 fiscal year and each of its directors, following their appointment, attended at least 75% of those meetings
and 75% of the meetings of any committees on which they served.
Director Independence
NYSE rules generally do not require that the board of directors of our general partner be composed of a majority of independent
directors. Nonetheless, the board of directors of our general partner has affirmatively determined that Messrs. Shapiro, Engel, Smith and Jones,
who were appointed to the board of directors of our general partner in connection with our initial public offering, meet the independence
standards established by the NYSE.
Committees of the Board of Directors
The board of directors of our general partner has an audit committee and a conflicts committee. Messrs. Shapiro, Engel, Smith and
Jones are members of the audit committee and Messrs. Smith and Jones are the initial members of our conflicts committee. We do not have a
compensation committee, but rather our general partner's board of directors approves equity grants to directors and employees and compensation
of our directors, and the compensation committee of SUSS approves compensation of our officers. We do not have a nominating and corporate
governance committee in view of the fact that SUSS, which owns our general partner, controls appointments to the board of directors of our
general partner.
Audit Committee
We are required to have an audit committee of at least three members, and all its members are required to meet the independence and
experience standards established by the NYSE and the Exchange Act. The board of directors of our general partner has determined that each
director appointed to the audit committee is “financially literate,” and Mr. Shapiro, who serves as chairman of the audit committee, has
“accounting or related financial management expertise” and constitutes an audit committee financial expert in accordance with SEC and NYSE
rules and regulations. The audit committee of the board of directors of our general partner serves as our audit committee and will assist the board
in its oversight of the integrity of our consolidated financial statements and our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and
partnership policies and controls. The audit committee operates under a written charter and has the sole authority to (1) retain and terminate our
independent registered public accounting firm, (2) approve all auditing services and related fees and the terms thereof performed by our
independent registered public accounting firm, and (3) pre-approve any non-audit services and tax services to be rendered by our independent
registered public accounting firm. The audit committee is also responsible for confirming the independence and objectivity of our independent
registered public accounting firm. Our independent registered public accounting firm has been given unrestricted access to the audit committee
and our management, as necessary. The audit committee was constituted in connection with our IPO and met once during the remainder of the
2012 fiscal year.
Conflicts Committee
The board of directors of our general partner has established a conflicts committee to review specific matters that the board believes
may involve conflicts of interest (including certain transactions with Susser Holdings Corporation or its affiliates). The conflicts committee will
determine if the resolution of any such conflict of interest is fair and reasonable to us. Our partnership agreement requires the conflicts
committee to have at least one member. The members of the conflicts committee may not be officers or employees of our general partner or
directors, officers, or employees of its affiliates, including SUSS, and must meet the independence standards established by the NYSE and the
Exchange Act to serve on an audit committee of a board of directors, along with other requirements. Any matters approved by the conflicts
committee will be conclusively deemed to be fair and reasonable to us, approved by all of our partners and not a breach by our general partner of
any duties it may owe us or our unitholders.
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance
Each director, executive officer (and, for a specified period, certain former directors and executive officers) of our general partner and
each holder of more than 10 percent of a class of our equity securities is required to report to the SEC his or her pertinent position or
relationship, as well as transactions in those securities, by specified dates. Based solely upon a review of reports on Forms 3 and 4 (including any
amendments) furnished to us during our most recent fiscal year and reports on Form 5 (including any amendments) furnished to us with respect
to our most recent fiscal year, and written representations from officers and directors of our general partner that no Form 5 was required, we
believe that all filings applicable to our general partner's officers and directors, and our beneficial owners, required by Section 16(a) of the
Exchange Act were filed on a timely basis during 2012.
Code of Ethics
Our general partner's board of directors has approved a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics which is applicable to all directors,
officers and employees of our general partner, including the principal executive officer and the principal financial officer. The Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics is available on our website at http://investor.susserpetroleumpartners.com (under the 'Investor Relations/Corporate
Governance' tab) and in print without charge to any unit holder who sends a written request to our secretary at our principal executive offices.
We intend to post any amendments of this code, or waivers of its provisions applicable to directors or executive officers of our general partner,
including its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, at this location on our website.

Item 11.

Executive Compensation

Compensation Committee Report
As discussed below, the responsibility and authority for compensation related decisions for our executive officers resides with the
compensation committee of the Susser Holdings Corporation Board of Directors. Neither we nor our general partner has a compensation
committee. The board of directors of our general partner reviewed and discussed the section of this report entitled “Compensation Discussion
and Analysis” (“CD&A”) and approved its inclusion herein.

Board of Directors of Our General Partner
David P. Engel
Rob L. Jones
Armand S. Shapiro
Bryan F. Smith, Jr.
Sam J. Susser
Sam L. Susser
Compensation Discussion and Analysis
Our general partner has the sole responsibility for conducting our business and for managing our operations, and its board of directors
and officers make decisions on our behalf. References to “our officers” and “our directors” refer to the officers and directors of our general
partner. For the 2012 fiscal year, Sam L. Susser, our Chief Executive Officer; Mary E. Sullivan, our Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer; Rocky B. Dewbre, our President and Chief Operating Officer; and E.V. Bonner, Jr., our Executive Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary were our most highly compensated executive officers (“NEOs”). Each of our NEOs is also an NEO of SUSS and
they allocate their time between managing our business and managing the business of SUSS.
We do not and will not directly employ any of the persons responsible for managing our business and we currently do not have a
compensation committee. Our officers are employed and compensated by SUSS or a subsidiary of SUSS and the responsibility and authority for
compensation-related decisions for our executive officers resides with the SUSS compensation committee (the “Committee”). For information
regarding compensation decisions made by the Committee during 2012, see the proxy statement that is expected to be filed by SUSS on or
before April 29, 2013. In accordance with the terms of our partnership agreement and the Omnibus Agreement, we reimburse SUSS for
compensation related expenses attributable to the portion of the executive's time dedicated to providing services to us. Following our initial
public offering, in 2012, Mr. Susser,
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Ms. Sullivan and Mr. Bonner each devoted approximately 15% of their total business time to our general partner and us and Mr. Dewbre devoted
approximately 60% of his total business time to our general partner and us; however, the NEOs allocation of time in future years and, in turn, our
future compensation allocations may differ from the time and compensation allocated for each NEO in 2012. SUSS has the ultimate
decision-making authority with respect to the total compensation of the NEOs that are employed by SUSS including, subject to the terms of the
partnership agreement, determining the portion of that compensation that is allocated to us based on the time spent by such officers in managing
our business and operations. Any such compensation decisions will not be subject to any approvals by the board of directors of our general
partner or any committees thereof, provided that awards made under our long-term incentive plan to our executive officers, key employees, and
independent directors must be approved by the board of directors of our general partner or a committee thereof that may be established for such
purpose.
Equity Plan Information
In connection with our 2012 initial public offering, we adopted the Susser Petroleum Partners LP 2012 Long Term Incentive Plan (the
“Plan”). The Plan is intended to provide incentives that will attract, retain and motivate highly competent persons as directors and employees of,
and consultants to, SUSS and its subsidiaries, by providing them with opportunities to acquire awards denominated in our common units or to
receive monetary payments. Additionally, the Plan provides the Committee a means of directly tying executives' financial reward opportunities
to unitholders' return on investment.
The Plan allows our general partner to grant common units representing limited partnership interests, as well as certain unit-based
awards, to employees, consultants and directors who perform services for us. Each of our NEOs is eligible to participate in this plan. This plan
initially limits the number of common units that may be delivered pursuant to vested awards to 1,092,500 common units. Additionally, on
January 1 of each calendar year occurring prior to the expiration of this plan, the total number of our common units reserved and available for
issuance shall increase by 500,000 common units if, and only if, we have completed a qualifying sale or other disposition of our common units
during the previous calendar year.
As of December 31, 2012, a total of 32,500 phantom units had been issued under our 2012 Long Term Incentive Plan. Total securities
remaining available for issuance under this plan as of December 31, 2012 were as follows:
Common Units Remaining Available for Issuance Under Our Equity Compensation Plans
Number of
securities to be
issued upon
exercise of
outstanding
options, warrants
and rights

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders
Total
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—
—
—

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding
options, warrants
and rights

$
$

—
—
—

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance
under equity
compensation plans

1,060,000
—
1,060,000

Summary Compensation Table
The following table provides a summary of total compensation allocated to us in connection with the services provided to us by the
NEOs. For the 2012 fiscal year, SUSS allocated to us (i) 15% of the cash compensation expense associated with the services provided by Mr.
Susser, Ms. Sullivan and Mr. Bonner beginning with the September 24, 2012 closing of our IPO, (ii) 60% of the cash compensation expense
associated with the services provided by Mr. Dewbre beginning with the September 24, 2012 closing of our IPO and (iii) 100% of the grant date
fair value of phantom unit awards made under the Plan to the NEOs in 2012. Cash compensation expenses for each NEO were allocated on the
basis of total cash compensation earned by the NEO during the period subsequent to our IPO. For purposes of the summary compensation table
presented below we have disaggregated that allocated expense ratably among the various components reflected in total compensation. SUSS did
not allocate to us any amount of compensation attributable to SUSS equity awards.

Bonus
($) (2)

16,320 (6)

Stock
Awards
($) (3)

Option
Awards
($)

All Other
Compensation
($) (4)

—

—

3,849

39,895

Name and Principal Position

Year

Salary
($) (1)

Total
($)

Sam L. Susser
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

2012

19,726 (5)

Mary E. Sullivan
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer

2012

10,259

9,656

115,450

—

1,214

136,579

E.V. Bonner, Jr.
Executive Vice President,
Secretary and General
Counsel

2012

12,186

11,223

115,450

—

1,499

140,358

Rocky B. Dewbre
2012
41,728
39,653
115,450
—
4,928
201,759
President and Chief
Operating Officer Wholesale
________________
(1) Includes the portion of base salary paid by SUSS and allocated to work performed for us by each NEO during 2012, which contains 26 biweekly pay periods, pro-rated for the period subsequent to September 24, 2012.
(2) Amounts included in the bonus column are the portion of the amounts earned for the 2012 fiscal year and allocated to work performed for us
by each NEO, pro-rated for the period subsequent to September 24, 2012, but such amounts were paid in March of 2013.
(3) The amounts reported for stock awards represent the full grant date fair value of the 5,000 phantom units granted to each of our NEOs, other
than our CEO, in connection with our IPO, calculated in accordance with the accounting guidance on share-based payments.
(4) The details of amounts listed as “All Other Compensation” are presented in the “All Other Compensation” table below.
(5) Mr. Susser received $100,000 of his 2012 base salary as shares of SUSS restricted stock instead of cash. The value of these restricted stock
grants are not included in the salary column.
(6) Mr. Susser elected to receive one-third of his bonus for 2012 in SUSP phantom units instead of cash, which were awarded in March 2013.
The grant date fair values of those phantom units will be reflected in the stock awards column for the year in which they were received
(2013), rather than for the year they were earned (2012). Consequently, the 2012 bonus column for Mr. Susser does not give effect to this
award.
48

All Other Compensation

Year

Name

SUSS
Contributions
to 401(k) and
Deferred
Compensation
Plans
($) (2)

Perquisites
and Other
Personal
Benefits
($) (1)

Total

Sam L. Susser
2012
1,356
2,493
3,849
Mary E. Sullivan
2012
—
1,214
1,214
E.V. Bonner, Jr.
2012
—
1,499
1,499
Rocky B. Dewbre
2012
—
4,928
4,928
________________
(1) For Sam L. Susser, perquisites consisted of the estimated value of personal bookkeeping and secretarial services provided by SUSS
personnel. The above amounts reflect an allocation of the total "all other compensation" attributable to each NEO, based on the percent
allocation of each NEO's time.
(2) Each of our NEOs is eligible to participate in a 401(k) plan that is generally available to all SUSS employees. Additionally, certain highly
compensated employees, including our NEOs, are eligible to participate in the SUSS NQDC plan. The investment options in the NQDC
plan mirror those available in the 401(k) plan, and do not contain any above-market or preferential earnings. SUSS' contributions to the 401
(k) and NQDC plans accrued for fiscal 2012 included a discretionary match of 80% on the first 6% of salary deferred in addition to the
20% guaranteed match. We were allocated a portion of this match for our NEOs based on the percent allocation of each NEO's time.
Grants of Plan-Based Awards
For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2012
The table below reflects awards granted to our NEOs under the Plan during 2012.
Estimated Future Payouts
Under Equity Incentive Plan
Awards (1)

Name

Type of
Award (1)

Grant Date

Approval
Date

Threshold (#)

Sam L. Susser
Mary E. Sullivan
E.V. Bonner, Jr.

Phantom
Units
Phantom
Units
Phantom
Units

Target
(#) (1)

Maximum (#)

All Other
Stock
Awards:
Number of
Shares of
Stock
(#) (2)

Grant Date
Fair Value of
Stock Awards
($)(2)

—

—

—

—

—

9/25/2012

8/31/2012

—

—

—

5,000

115,450

9/25/2012

8/31/2012

—

—

—

5,000

115,450

Rocky B. Dewbre
9/25/2012
8/31/2012
—
—
—
5,000
115,450
________________
(1) All SUSP phantom units were granted on September 25, 2012 at a grant date value per unit of $23.09. The phantom units vest ratably on
each of September 25, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017.
(2) The reported grant date fair value of stock awards was determined in compliance with FASB ASC Topic 718 and are more fully described
in Note 18–Equity-Based Compensation of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

49

Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31, 2012
The following table reflects NEO equity awards granted under our 2012 Long Term Incentive Plan that were outstanding at the end of
our 2012 fiscal year.
Stock Awards (1)

Number
of Shares
or Units
of Stock
That
Have Not
Vested
(#)

Name

Market
Value of
Shares or
Units
That
Have Not
Vested
($) (2)

Equity
Incentive
Plan Awards:
Number of
Unearned
Shares, Units or
Other Rights
That Have Not
Vested
(#)

Equity
Incentive
Plan Awards:
Market or
Payout Value of
Unearned
Shares, Units or
Other Rights
That Have Not
Vested
($) (2)

Mary E. Sullivan
5,000
125,800
(3)
—
E.V. Bonner, Jr.
5,000
125,800
(3)
—
Rocky B. Dewbre
5,000
125,800
(3)
—
________________
(1) Reflects phantom units granted our 2012 Long-Term Incentive Plan. For additional information refer to Note 18–Equity-Based
Compensation of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(2) Based on the closing market price of SUSP common units of $25.16 on December 31, 2012.
(3) The phantom units are scheduled to vest in equal tranches on each of September 25, 2013, September 25, 2014, September 25, 2015,
September 25, 2016 and September 25, 2017.

—
—
—

Option Exercises and Units Vested
No phantom units owned by any NEO vested in fiscal 2012.
Benefit Plans
SUSS maintains a 401(k) benefit plan for the benefit of its employees. All full-time employees who are over 21 years of age and have
greater than six months tenure are eligible to participate. Under the terms of the 401(k) plan, employees can contribute up to 100% of their
wages, subject to IRS limitations, which, for 2012, were generally a maximum contribution amount of $17,000 on maximum compensation of
$250,000. SUSS matches 20% of the first 6% of salary that the employee contributes as a “guaranteed” match. Additionally, SUSS may make a
discretionary match, determined in the first quarter of each year, based on the prior year's financial performance against internal targets.
SUSS has also implemented a non-qualified deferred compensation (NQDC) plan for key executives, officers, and certain other
employees to allow compensation deferrals in addition to that allowable under the 401(k) plan limitations, in that the contribution limits and
compensation limits of the 401(k) plan do not apply to the NQDC plan. Participants in the NQDC plan may defer up to 75% of their salary.
SUSS matches a portion of the participant's contribution each year on the first 6% of salary deferred, using the same percentage of guaranteed
and discretionary matches that are used for its 401(k) plan. The investment options available in the NQDC plan are identical to those offered in
the 401(k) plan. NQDC plan benefits are paid from SUSS' assets upon termination or retirement, and the plan does not otherwise permit early
withdrawals, distributions or loans, except for certain hardship withdrawals in the event of unforeseen emergencies.
Other than its 401(k) and non-qualified deferred compensation plans described elsewhere in this document, SUSS does not maintain
any other plan that provides for payments or other benefits at, following or in connection with retirement.
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Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation
The following table provides information regarding total contributions by SUSS and each NEO participating in its non-qualified
deferred compensation plan during 2012. The table also presents each NEO’s total earnings and year-end balances in the plan. The amounts
included in the All Other Compensation table reflects the portion of SUSS contributions allocated to SUSP based on the allocation formulas
described above.
Executive
Contributions
in 2012
($) (1)

Name

SUSS
Contributions
in 2012
($) (2)

Aggregate
Earnings
in 2012
($) (3)

Aggregate
Balance at Last
Fiscal Year-End
($)

Sam L. Susser
790,010
63,201
415,112
3,525,383
Mary E. Sullivan
20,655
20,655
20,593
223,359
E.V. Bonner, Jr.
49,030
29,946
71,241
616,092
Rocky B. Dewbre
21,010
21,010
47,532
412,495
________________
(1) The amounts shown reflect the executive’s contributions to the NQDC plan during the fiscal year, and are included in the salary and
incentive compensation numbers shown in the Summary Compensation Table, based on the allocation formula.
(2) The amounts included in this column reflect SUSS' total matching contributions to the NQDC plan, and only the allocated portion of those
amounts are included within the amounts reported in “All Other Compensation” for 2012 in the Summary Compensation Table. The
allocated amounts for the NEOs were (in the order in which they appear) $2,493 , $815 , $1,181 and $3,316 , respectively.
(3) Reflects net earnings/(losses) in each participant’s plan account. These amounts do not constitute above market interest or preferential
earnings, and therefore are not included in the Summary Compensation Table above.
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control
Pursuant to the terms of the award agreements issued under the 2012 Long Term Incentive Plan, in the event of a (i) Change of Control
followed by termination or (ii) termination of employment due to death or disability, all phantom units shall vest. In the event of a termination of
employment for any other reason, all phantom units that are still unvested shall be forfeited.
Under the Plan, a “Change of Control” means, and shall be deemed to have occurred upon one or more of the following events: (i) any
“person” or “group” within the meaning of those terms as used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act, other than members of the
General Partner, the Partnership, or an affiliate of either the General Partner or the Partnership, shall become the beneficial owner, by way of
merger, consolidation, recapitalization, reorganization or otherwise, of 50% or more of the voting power of the voting securities of the General
Partner or the Partnership; (ii) the limited partners of the General Partner or the Partnership approve, in one transaction or a series of
transactions, a plan of complete liquidation of the General Partner or the Partnership; (iii) the sale or other disposition by either the General
Partner or the Partnership of all or substantially all of its assets in one or more transactions to any Person other than an affiliate; (iv) the General
Partner or an affiliate of the General Partner or the Partnership ceases to be the general partner of the Partnership; (v) any other event specified as
a “Change of Control” in the equity incentive plan maintained by SUSS at the time of such “Change of Control;” or (vi) any other event
specified as a “Change of Control” in an applicable award agreement. Notwithstanding the above, with respect to a 409A award, a “Change of
Control” shall not occur unless that Change of Control also constitutes a “change in the ownership of a corporation,” a “change in the effective
control of a corporation,” or a “change in the ownership of a substantial portion of a corporation's assets,” in each case, within the meaning of
1.409A-3(i)(5) of the 409A regulations, as applied to non-corporate entities.
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The following table shows the amount of incremental value that would have been received by each of the NEOs upon certain events of
termination or a change of control resulting in the accelerated vesting of the phantom units held by our NEOs on December 31, 2012:

Benefit

Name

Termination
Due to Death
or Disability
($) (1)

Termination by
Executive for
“Good Reason”
except Change of
Control, or by
Company Other
than for “Cause”
($)

Change of
Control
Followed by
Termination for
“Good Reason”
($)

Change of
Control
with Continued
Employment
($)

Sam L. Susser
Stock Vesting
—
—
—
—
Mary E. Sullivan
Stock Vesting
125,800
—
125,800
—
E.V. Bonner, Jr.
Stock Vesting
125,800
—
125,800
—
Rocky B. Dewbre
Stock Vesting
125,800
—
125,800
—
________________
(1) The amounts reflected above represent the product of the number of phantom units that were subject to vesting/restrictions on December 31,
2012 multiplied by the closing price of our common units of $ 25.16 on that date.
For information regarding additional amounts that may become payable to our NEOs under plans and agreements with SUSS, please see
the proxy statement that SUSS is expected to file on or before April 29, 2013.
Compensation of Directors
Directors who are also officers, directors or employees of SUSS receive no additional compensation for serving as directors of SUSP.
Directors of our general partner who are not officers or employees of our general partner or SUSS, or directors of SUSS (i.e., non-employee
directors, who do not also serve on SUSS' board of directors) receive a compensation package including an annual retainer of $60,000 and an
annual grant of phantom units under the Susser Petroleum Partners LP Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “LTIP”).
Under the LTIP, the director will forfeit all unvested phantom units upon a termination of his duties as a director for any reason. If the
director ceases providing services due to death or disability (as defined by the LTIP) prior to the date all phantom units have vested, then all
restrictions lapse and all phantom units become immediately vested. If a Change of Control occurs (as defined under the LTIP) followed by
removal, then all unvested phantom units become fully vested as of the date of the Change of Control. In addition, our directors will be
reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with attending meetings of the board of directors or its committees.
For 2012, the annual retainer was prorated to $20,000 to reflect four months of service, and each of our general partner's non-employee
directors who do not serve on SUSS' board of directors received an award of 5,000 phantom units, which vest ratably on September 25, 2013,
September 25, 2014 and September 25, 2015.
The following table provides a summary of compensation paid to those directors for the 2012 fiscal year:

Name

Fees
Earned or
Paid in
Cash
($) (1)

Stock
Awards
($) (2)

Option
Awards
($)

All Other
Compensation
($)

Total
($)

Rob L. Jones
20,000
115,450
—
—
135,450
Bryan F. Smith, Jr.
20,000
115,450
—
—
135,450
________________
(1) The amounts in this column reflect the aggregate dollar amount of fees earned or paid in cash including the prorated annual retainer fee.
(2) The amounts reported for unit awards represent the full grant date fair value of the awards granted in 2012, calculated in accordance with the
accounting guidance on share-based payments. These amounts do not correspond to the actual value that may be recognized by the recipient
upon any disposition of vested units and do not give effect to any decline or increase in the trading price of our common units since the date
of grant. For a discussion of the assumptions and methodologies used in calculating the grant date fair value of the unit awards reported
above, see Note 18–Equity-Based Compensation in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The following table presents additional information regarding unit awards granted to our non-employee directors during 2012:

Grant Date

Name

Approval Date

Unit Awards:
Number of
Units (#)

Grant Date Fair
Value of Unit and
Option Awards ($)
(1)

Rob L. Jones
9/25/2012 (2)
8/31/2012
5,000
115,450
Bryan F. Smith, Jr.
9/25/2012 (2)
8/31/2012
5,000
115,450
________________
(1) The reported grant date fair value of unit awards was determined in compliance with FASB ASC Topic 718 and are more fully
described in Note 18–Equity-Based Compensation of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(2) The reported grant date fair value of the phantom unit award was determined based on the closing price of our common units on the
grant date of $23.09. The phantom units vest ratably on September 25, 2013, September 25, 2014 and September 25, 2015.
The following table presents the outstanding equity awards held by our non-employee directors as of December 31, 2012:
Unit Awards (1)
Number of
Units
that Have
Not Vested
(#)

Name

Market
Value of
Units that
Have Not
Vested
($)(2)

Rob L. Jones
5,000 (3)
125,800
Bryan F. Smith, Jr.
5,000 (3)
125,800
________________
(1) Reflects phantom units granted under LTIP. For additional information refer to Note 18–Equity-Based Compensation of our Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
(2) Based on unit closing market price of $25.16 on December 31, 2012.
(3) This award will vest in equal installments on September 25, 2013, September 25, 2014 and September 25, 2015.
Item 12.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of common units and subordinated units of Susser Petroleum Partners LP that
are issued and outstanding as of March 15, 2013 and held by:
•

each person or group of persons known by us to be beneficial owners of 5% or more of our common units;

•

each director, director nominee and named executive officer of our general partner; and

•

all of our directors and executive officers of our general partner, as a group.
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Name of Beneficial Owner (1)

Baron Capital Group, Inc. (2)
Clearbridge Investments, LLC (3)
Goldman Sachs Asset Management
LP (4)

Percentage of
Commons Units
Beneficially Owned

Subordinated Units
Beneficially Owned

Percentage of
Subordinated Units
Beneficially Owned

Percentage of Common
and Subordinated Units
Beneficially Owned†

1,688,110

15.4%

—

—

7.7%

897,196

8.2%

—

—

4.1%

658,236

6.0%

—

—

3.0%

Common Units
Beneficially Owned

14,436

*

10,939,436

100.0%

50.1%

Sam L. Susser (6)

263,415

2.4%

—

—

1.2%

E.V. Bonner, Jr. (7)

SUSS (5)

112,805

1.0%

—

—

*

Rocky B. Dewbre

15,000

*

—

—

*

Mary E. Sullivan

25,000

*

—

—

*

Sam J. Susser (8)

11,000

*

—

—

*

5,000

*

—

—

*

David P. Engel (8)

21,940

*

—

—

*

Bryan F. Smith, Jr.

1,000

*

—

—

*

25,000

*

—

—

*

480,160

4.4%

—

—

2.2%

Armand S. Shapiro (8)

Rob L. Jones
All executive officers and directors
as a group (nine persons)

________________
* Represents less than 1%.
† Does not include unvested phantom units that may not be voted or transferred prior to vesting.
(1) As of the date set forth above, there are no arrangements for any listed beneficial owner to acquire within 60 days common units from
options, warrants, rights, conversion privileges or similar obligations. Unless otherwise indicated, the address for all beneficial owners in
this table is 555 East Airtex Drive, Houston, Texas 77073.
(2) The information contained in the table and this footnote with respect to Baron Capital Group, Inc. is based solely on a filing on Schedule
13G/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 14, 2013. Amount represents units reported to be held by a group
comprised of Baron Capital Group, Inc. (BCG), BAMCO, Inc., Baron Capital Management, Inc., Ronald Baron, and Baron Small Cap Fund.
Ronald Baron owns a controlling interest in BCG. The business address of the reporting party is 767 Fifth Avenue, 49th Floor, New York,
New York 10153.
(3) The information contained in the table and this footnote with respect to Clearbridge Investments, LLC is based solely on a filing on
Schedule 13G/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 14, 2013. The business address of the reporting party is
620 8th Avenue, New York, New York 10018.
(4) The information contained in the table and this footnote with respect to Goldman Sachs Asset Management LP is based solely on a filing on
Schedule 13G/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 14, 2013. The business address of the reporting party is
200 West Street, C/O Goldman Sachs & Co., New York, New York 10282.
(5) The address for SUSS, and unless otherwise noted, for each of the directors and executive officers of our general partner, is 4525 Ayers
Street, Corpus Christi, Texas 78415.
(6) In addition to serving as the chairman of the board of directors of our general partner, Mr. Sam L. Susser is also a director of SUSS, and as
such, he is entitled to vote on decisions to vote, or to direct to vote, and to dispose, or to direct the disposition of, the common units and
subordinated units held by SUSS or a wholly owned subsidiary of SUSS but he cannot individually control the outcome of such decisions.
Mr. Sam L. Susser disclaims beneficial ownership of the common units and subordinated units held by SUSS or a wholly owned subsidiary
of SUSS. The number of beneficially-owned units reflected for Mr. Sam L. Susser excludes 87,805 units conveyed to trusts for the benefit
of his children and future grandchildren, of which Mr. Bonner serves as trustee.
(7) Includes 87,805 common units held in a trust for the benefit of Mr. Sam L. Susser's children and future grandchildren. Mr. Bonner acts as
trustee of this trust, and disclaims beneficial ownership of such units.
(8) In addition to serving on the board of directors of our general partner, Messrs. Sam J. Susser, Shapiro and Engel are also directors of SUSS,
and as such, each is entitled to vote on decisions to vote, or to direct to vote, and to dispose, or to direct the disposition of, the common units
and subordinated units held by SUSS or a wholly owned subsidiary of SUSS but each
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cannot individually control the outcome of such decisions. Messrs. Sam J. Susser, Shapiro and Engel each disclaim beneficial ownership of
the common units and subordinated units held by SUSS or a wholly owned subsidiary of SUSS.
The following table sets forth, as of March 15, 2013, the number of shares of common stock of SUSS owned by each of the named
directors of our general partner and all directors and executive officers of our general partner as a group.
Shares of SUSS Common Stock Beneficially Owned
Name of Beneficial Owner (1)

Number of Shares (2)

Sam L. Susser (4)

Percentage of Total Shares (3)

2,310,434

10.7%

E.V. Bonner, Jr. (5)

325,440

1.5%

Rocky B. Dewbre

131,836

*

Mary E. Sullivan

97,722

*

Sam J. Susser

67,775

*

Armand S. Shapiro

32,508

*

David P. Engel

81,392

*

—

*

Bryan F. Smith, Jr.

—

Rob L. Jones
All executive officers and directors of SUSP as a group (nine persons)

3,047,107

*
14.1%

________________
*

Less than 1.0%

(1) Unless otherwise indicated, the address for all beneficial owners in this table is 4525 Ayers Street, Corpus Christi, Texas 78415.
(2) Beneficial ownership for the purposes of the above table is determined in accordance with the rules and regulation of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. These rules generally provide that a person is the beneficial owner of securities if they have or share the power to
vote or direct the voting thereof, or to dispose or direct the disposition thereof, or have the right to acquire such powers with sixty (60) days.
Accordingly, this table does not include options to purchase our shares of common stock which are not scheduled to vest and become
exercisable within the next sixty (60) days, or shares of restricted stock or shares underlying restricted stock units unless any performance
criteria have been satisfied and all time-based restrictions associated therewith will lapse within the next sixty (60) days.
(3) As of March 15, 2013, there were 21,558,027 shares of SUSS common stock deemed to be beneficially owned for purposes of the above
table.
(4) The total number of shares of common stock includes shares held in trust in which Mr. Susser acts as Trustee. Does not include 120,425
shares conveyed to a trust for his children and future grandchildren, of which Mr. Bonner serves as trustee.
(5) Includes 1,000 shares owned by Mr. Bonner's minor children. Includes 120,425 shares held in a trust for the benefit of Mr. Sam L. Susser's
children and future grandchildren, for which Mr. Bonner acts as trustee.
Item 13.

Certain Relationships, Related Transactions and Director Independence

Transactions with SUSS and its Subsidiaries
In connection with our IPO, which closed on September 25, 2012, we consummated a number of transactions with SUSS and its
affiliates. The terms of the transactions and agreements entered into at the closing of that IPO were determined by and among affiliated entities
and, consequently, were not the result of arm's length negotiations. For more information on those agreements, see Note 12 to our financial
statements as well as the section captioned 'Certain Relationships and Related Transactions' beginning on page 164 of the final prospectus
relating to our IPO.
The following table summarizes the distributions and payments made by us to SUSS or its subsidiaries in connection with the IPO, as
well as payments made (and transactions entered into) by us during the 2012 fiscal year subsequent to our IPO.
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Transaction

Explanation

Distribution of units to our general partner
and its affiliates at IPO.

The aggregate equity consideration
received by affiliates of our general partner,
including SUSS, for the contribution of
assets to us and our subsidiaries at
formation.
Cash distribution to our general partner and The aggregate cash consideration received
its affiliates at IPO.
by affiliates of our general partner,
including SUSS, for the contribution of
assets to us and our subsidiaries at
formation and as a reimbursement of
capital expenditures.
2012 Quarterly distributions on limited
Represents the aggregate amount of
partner interests held by affiliates.
quarterly distributions made to affiliates of
our general partner, including SUSS, in
respect of common and subordinated units
during the 2012 fiscal year.
Fuel sold to affiliates.
Total revenues we received under the
SUSS Distribution Contract for fuel gallons
sold by us to affiliates of our general
partner, including SUSS, for the 2012 fiscal
year.
Payments to affiliates for transportation
Total payments we made to affiliates of our
services.
general partner, including SUSS, during the
2012 fiscal year for transportation services
under the SUSS Transportation Contract.
Reimbursement to our general partner for
Total payment to our general partner for
certain allocated overhead and other
reimbursement of overhead and other
expenses.
expenses for the 2012 fiscal year pursuant
to the Omnibus Agreement.
Sale and leaseback transactions with
Total amount paid by us to affiliates of our
affiliates of our general partner.
general partner, including SUSS, during
2012 for the 8 properties we acquired
pursuant to the sale and leaseback option in
our Omnibus Agreement.
Rent from affiliates.
Total amount of rents we received from
affiliates of our general partner, including
SUSS, during the 2012 fiscal year for
properties we lease to them.

Amount/Value
• 14,436 common units;
• 10,939,436 subordinated units;
• 0.0% non-economic general partner
interest; and
• our incentive distribution rights.
$206.0 million

$0.3 million

$625.6 million

$11.9 million

$3.1 million

$29.0 million

$0.1 million

Other Transactions with Related Persons
Financing Transactions with Affiliates
Our indebtedness under our revolving credit agreement and term loan agreement, which was $183.8 million, in the aggregate, at
December 31, 2012, is guaranteed up to $180.7 million by SUSS. In addition, SUSS provides credit support to our suppliers under certain of our
supply contracts.
In connection with our IPO, our executive officers and members of our board of directors purchased an aggregate of 480,160 common
units at the initial public offering price as follows: Sam L. Susser: 351,220 common units; E.V. Bonner, Jr. 25,000 common units; Rocky B.
Dewbre: 15,000 common units; Mary E. Sullivan: 25,000 common units; David P. Engel: 21,940 common units; Rob L. Jones: 25,000 common
units; Armand S. Shapiro: 5,000 common units; Bryan F. Smith, Jr.: 1,000 common units; Sam J. Susser: 11,000 common units.
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Procedures for Review, Approval and Ratification of Transactions with Related Persons
Our general partner's audit committee's written charter requires the audit committee to review and discuss with management and the
independent auditor any transactions or courses of dealings with related parties that are significant in size or involve terms or other
considerations that differ from those that would likely be negotiated with independent parties. Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, in turn,
requires that all potential conflicts of interest (including related party transactions) be disclosed to our General Counsel. If our General Counsel
is notified of a proposed transaction of anything more than nominal value or significance that would, directly or indirectly, benefit one or more
related parties, our conflicts committee is notified of the potential related party transaction.
If a conflict or potential conflict of interest arises between our general partner or its affiliates, on the one hand, and us and our limited
partners, on the other hand, the resolution of any such conflict or potential conflict will be addressed by the board in accordance with the
provisions of our partnership agreement. At the discretion of the board in light of the circumstances, the resolution may be determined by the
board in its entirety or by our conflicts committee.
In the case of any sale of equity by us in which an owner or affiliate of an owner of our general partner participates, we anticipate that
our practice will be to obtain approval of the board for the transaction. We anticipate that the board will typically delegate authority to set the
specific terms to a pricing committee, consisting of the chief executive officer and one independent director. Actions by the pricing committee
will require unanimous approval.
For information regarding the independence of the members of the board of director of our general partner, see “Director
Independence” under Item 10 of this annual report on Form 10-K.
Item 14.

Principal Accounting Fees and Services
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The Audit Committee has selected Ernst & Young LLP to serve as out independent auditor for the fiscal year ending December 31,
2013. The Audit Committee in its discretion may select a different registered public accounting firm at any time during the year if it determines
that such a change will be in the best interests of us and our unitholders.
Audit Fees
The following table presents fees for audit services rendered by Ernst & Young LLP (“Ernst & Young”) for the audit of our annual
consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2012, and fees billed for services rendered by Ernst & Young during the same periods.

Audit Fees
Audit-Related Fees
Tax Fees
All Other Fees

$

Total

$

Fiscal 2012
797,277
—
—
—
797,277

Prior to September 25, 2012, our business was conducted by our Predecessor, and was included in the consolidated financial statements
of SUSS. Therefore, we did not incur any audit fees prior to 2012.
Fees for audit services billed or expected to be billed consisted of the audit of our annual financial statements, reviews of our interim
financial statements and services associated with SEC registration statements and other SEC matters.
In considering the nature of services provided by Ernst & Young, the audit committee determined that such services are compatible
with the provisions of independent audit services. The audit committee discussed these services with Ernst & Young and our management to
determine that they are permitted under the rules and regulations concerning auditor independence promulgated by the SEC to implement the
Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002, as well as the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Policy for Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services
Our audit committee charter requires that all services provided by our independent public accountants, both audit and non-audit, must
be pre-approved by the audit committee. The pre-approval of audit and non-audit services may be given at any time up to a year before
commencement of the specified service.
In determining whether to approve a particular audit or permitted non-audit service, the audit committee will consider, among other
things, whether such service is consistent with maintaining the independence of the independent public accountants. The audit committee will
also consider whether the independent public accountants are best positioned to provide the most effective and efficient service to us and
whether the service might be expected to enhance our ability to manage or control risk or improve audit quality.
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Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Financial Statements, Financial Statement Schedules and Exhibits - The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.
1.

Susser Petroleum Partners LP Audited Consolidated Financial Statements:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2010, December 31, 2011 and December
31, 2012
Consolidated Statements of Unitholders' Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2010, December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2012
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2010, December 31, 2011 and December
31, 2012
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page
F-2
F-3
F-4
F-5
F-6
F-7

2.

Financial Statement Schedules - No schedules are included because the required information is inapplicable or is presented in the
consolidated financial statements or related notes thereto.

3.

Exhibits :
The list of exhibits attached to this Annual Report on Form 10-K is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURE
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Annual
Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Susser Petroleum Partners LP
By:
Susser Petroleum Partners GP LLC, its general partner
/s/ Sam L. Susser
By:
Sam L. Susser
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(On behalf of the registrant, and in his capacity as principal executive officer)
Date:

March 29, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report on Form 10-K has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

Title

Date

/s/ Sam L. Susser
Sam L. Susser

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

March 29, 2013

/s/ Mary E. Sullivan
Mary E. Sullivan

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

March 29, 2013

/s/ David P. Engel
David P. Engel

Director

March 29, 2013

/s/ Rob L. Jones
Rob L. Jones

Director

March 29, 2013

/s/ Armand S. Shapiro
Armand S. Shapiro

Director

March 29, 2013

/s/ Bryan F. Smith Jr.
Bryan F. Smith Jr.

Director

March 29, 2013

/s/ Sam J. Susser
Sam J. Susser

Director

March 29, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors of Susser Petroleum Partners GP LLC and
Unitholders of Susser Petroleum Partners LP
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Susser Petroleum Partners LP (the Partnership) as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations, unitholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2012. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Partnership's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Partnership's internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Partnership's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Susser
Petroleum Partners LP at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2012, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP
San Antonio, Texas
March 29, 2013

F-2

Susser Petroleum Partners LP
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31,
December 31,
2011
2012
Predecessor
(in thousands except units)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $167 at December 31, 2011, and
$103 at December 31, 2012
Receivables from affiliates
Inventories, net
Other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Other assets:
Marketable securities
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Other noncurrent assets
Total assets

$

$

240

$

6,752

31,760
106,553
7,023
1,836
147,412
39,049

33,008
59,543
2,981
821
103,105
68,173

—
20,661
23,309
885
231,316

148,264
12,936
23,131
191
355,800

$

Liabilities and unitholder's equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt
Total current liabilities
Revolving line of credit
Long-term debt
Deferred tax liability, long-term portion
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies:
Unitholders' equity:
Susser Petroleum Partners LP unitholders' equity:
Predecessor equity
Common unitholders - public (10,925,000 units issued and outstanding)
Common unitholders - affiliated (14,436 units issued and outstanding)
Subordinated unitholders - affiliated (10,939,436 units issued and outstanding)
Total unitholders' equity
Total liabilities and unitholders' equity

See accompanying notes
F-3

$

$

98,316
8,010
22
106,348
—
1,098
2,595
5,462
115,503

115,813
—
—
—
115,813
231,316

$

$

88,884
1,101
24
90,009
35,590
149,241
152
2,476
277,468

—
210,462
(175)
(131,955)
78,332
355,800

Susser Petroleum Partners LP
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Year Ended
December 31,
December 31,
December 31,
2010
2011
2012
Predecessor
Predecessor
(dollars in thousands, except unit and per unit amounts)
Revenues:
Motor fuel sales to third parties
Motor fuel sales to affiliates
Rental income
Other income
Total revenues
Cost of sales:
Motor fuel cost of sales to third parties
Motor fuel cost of sales to affiliates
Other
Total cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
General and administrative
Other operating
Rent
Loss on disposal of assets
Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Interest expense, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net income and comprehensive income

$

1,094,273
1,578,653
5,351
5,515
2,683,792

$

1,068,208
1,578,653
832
2,647,693
36,099

$

8,480
4,229
3,797
86
4,771
21,363
14,736
(284)
14,452
(5,236)
9,216 $

1,549,143
2,257,788
5,467
7,980
3,820,378

$

1,517,926
2,257,788
1,641
3,777,355
43,023

1,694,025
2,570,757
5,045
7,514
4,277,341
1,660,733
2,562,976
2,130
4,225,839
51,502

10,559
4,870
4,322
221
6,090
26,062
16,961
(324)
16,637
(6,039)
10,598 $

12,013
5,178
3,527
341
7,031
28,090
23,412
(809)
22,603
(5,033)
17,570

Less: Predecessor income prior to initial public offering on September
25, 2012
Limited partners' interest in net income subsequent to initial public
offering

$

9,150

Net income per limited partner unit:
Common (basic and diluted)
Subordinated (basic and diluted)

$
$

0.42
0.42

8,420

Limited partner units outstanding:
Common units - public
Common units - affiliated
Subordinated units - affiliated

10,925,000
14,436
10,939,436

Cash distribution per unit

$
See accompanying notes
F-4

0.47

Susser Petroleum Partners LP
Consolidated Statements of Unitholders' Equity

Partnership
(in thousands)
Susser Petroleum
Company LLC
Predecessor

Balance at December 31, 2009
$
Net income
Balance at December 31, 2010
Net income
Balance at December 31, 2011
Predecessor net income through September 24,
2012
Balance at September 24, 2012
Net liabilities not assumed by the Partnership
Allocation of net Parent investment to
unitholders
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of
underwriters' discount
Offering costs
Cash distributions to Parent
Distribution to Unitholders
Unit-based compensation
Partnership earnings September 25, 2012 through
December 31, 2012
$
Balance at December 31, 2012

95,999
9,216
105,215
10,598
115,813

CommonPublic

$

—
—
—
—
—

CommonSUSS

$

—
—
—
—
—

SubordinatedSUSS

$

—
—
—
—
—

Total SUSP

$

—
—
—
—
—

Total

$

95,999
9,216
105,215
10,598
115,813

8,420
124,233
(54,653)

—
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
—

(69,580)

—

91

69,489

69,580

—
—
(273)
—
—

—
—
(206,069)
—
50

210,647
(4,493)
(206,342)
(311)
101

210,647
(4,493)
(206,342)
(311)
101

7
(175) $

4,575
(131,955) $

9,150
78,332

9,150
78,332

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

210,647
(4,493)
(311)
51
4,568
$ 210,462

See accompanying notes
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$

8,420
124,233
(54,653)
—

$

Susser Petroleum Partners LP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Year Ended
December 31,
2010

December 31,
2011

Predecessor

Predecessor
(in thousands)

December 31,
2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

$

9,216

$

10,598

$

17,570

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Amortization of deferred financing fees
Loss on disposal of assets and impairment charge
Non-cash stock based compensation
Deferred income tax

4,771
—
86
—
(1,527)

6,090
—
221
—
1,251

7,031
102
341
101
2,428

7,158
(4,573)
853
226
(4,112)
3,702
1,258
17,058

(12,512)
(7,491)
(1,091)
1,294
18,474
(1,708)
(461)
14,665

(57,745)
(35,556)
(7,912)
(63)
93,193
(2,272)
(730)
16,488

(4,743)
(9,220)
—
—
66
(13,897)

(7,388)
(12,050)
—
—
285
(19,153)

(41,493)
(2,513)
(497,426)
349,162
1,321
(190,949)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of Contribution Agreement:
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Inventories
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Other noncurrent liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Purchase of intangibles
Purchase of marketable securities
Redemption of marketable securities
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Revolving line of credit
Loan origination costs
Proceeds from issuance of common units, net of offering costs
Distributions to Parent
Distributions to Unitholders
Predecessor cash retained by Parent
Payments on long-term debt
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

$

1,150
—
—
—
—
—
—
(8)
1,142
4,303
446
4,749 $

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
(21)
(21)
(4,509)
4,749
240 $

180,666
35,590
(1,907)
206,154
(206,342)
(311)
(354)
(32,523)
180,973
6,512
240
6,752

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activities:
Contribution of net assets from Parent

$
$

Interest paid (net of amounts capitalized)

See accompanying notes
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—
332

$
$

—
412

$
$

(69,580)
940

Susser Petroleum Partners LP
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1.

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are composed of Susser Petroleum Partners LP (the "Partnership", "SUSP", "we", "us" or "our"), a
Delaware limited partnership, and its consolidated subsidiaries, which distribute motor fuels in Texas, New Mexico, Oklahoma and Louisiana.
SUSP was formed in June 2012 by Susser Holdings Corporation (“SUSS” or the “Parent”) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Susser Petroleum
Partners GP LLC, our general partner. On September 25, 2012 , we completed our initial public offering (“IPO”) of 10,925,000 common units
representing limited partner interests.
The information presented in this annual report contains the audited consolidated financial results of Susser Petroleum Company LLC
(“Predecessor” or "SPC"), our Predecessor for accounting purposes, for periods presented through September 24, 2012. The consolidated
financial results for the year ended December 31, 2012 also include the results of operations for SUSP for the period beginning September 25,
2012, the date the Partnership commenced operations. The balance sheet as of December 31, 2012 presents solely the consolidated financial
position of the Partnership.
In connection with the IPO and pursuant to the Contribution Agreement between the Partnership, the General Partner, SUSS, Stripes LLC,
Susser Holdings LLC and SPC (the "Contribution Agreement"), the following transactions occurred:
•

SUSS contributed to Susser Petroleum Operating Company LLC (“SPOC”) substantially all of its wholesale motor fuel distribution
business, other than its motor fuel consignment business and transportation assets, which included:
•

marketer, distributor and supply agreements,

•

fuel supply agreements to distribute motor fuel to convenience stores and other retail fuel outlets,

•

real property owned in fee and personal property,

•

leases and subleases under which it was a tenant, and

•

leases and subleases under which it was a landlord.

•

SPC contributed its membership interests in T&C Wholesale LLC to SPOC.

•

SPC contributed its interest in SPOC to the Partnership in exchange for 14,436 common units representing a 0.07% limited partner
interest in the Partnership, 10,939,436 subordinated units representing a 50.0% limited partner interest in the Partnership and all of the
incentive distribution rights of the Partnership.

All of the contributed Predecessor assets and liabilities were recorded at historical cost as this transaction was considered to be a
reorganization of entities under common control.
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Partnership and all of its subsidiaries. The Partnership operates in one
operating segment, with primary operations conducted by the following consolidated wholly owned subsidiaries:
•

Susser Petroleum Operating Company LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, distributes motor fuel to SUSS' retail and
consignment locations, as well as third party customers in Texas, New Mexico, Oklahoma and Louisiana.

•

T&C Wholesale LLC ("TCW"), a Texas limited liability company, distributes motor fuels, propane and lubricating oils, primarily in
Texas.

•

Susser Petroleum Property Company LLC (“PropCo”), a Delaware limited liability company, formed to own and lease convenience
store properties and operate a motor fuel consignment business.
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
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2.

Initial Public Offering

On September 20, 2012 , the Partnership’s public common units began trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol
“SUSP”. On September 25, 2012 , we completed the IPO of 10,925,000 common units at a price of $20.50 per unit, which included a 1,425,000
unit over-allotment option that was exercised by the underwriters.
Property and equipment was contributed by SUSS and its subsidiaries in exchange for:
•

14,436 common units and 10,939,436 subordinated units, representing an aggregate 50.1% limited partner interest in SUSP;

•

All of the incentive distribution rights (as discussed in SUSP's partnership agreement); and

•

An aggregate cash distribution of $206.0 million .

We received net proceeds of $206.2 million from the sale of 10,925,000 units, net of related offering expenses. Additionally, we entered
into a term loan and security agreement (“SUSP Term Loan”) in which we borrowed $180.7 million and entered into a $250.0 million revolving
credit agreement (“SUSP Revolver”), which together are guaranteed by SUSS in a maximum aggregate amount of $180.7 million . See Note 9
for additional information regarding our credit and term loan facilities.
The following table is a reconciliation of cash proceeds from the IPO (in millions):

Gross proceeds
Less: Underwriting and structuring fees and other offering expenses

$

224
(18)
206

Proceeds from the IPO, net of offering costs
Reimbursement to SUSS for capital expenditures during prior 24 months
Investment in marketable securities
Net use of IPO proceeds

$

(25)
(181)
(206)

Term loan proceeds
Proceeds of term loan distributed to SUSS

$
$

181
(181)

The following is a summary of net income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012 disaggregated between Predecessor and the
Partnership:
Susser Petroleum
Company LLC
Predecessor
Through September 24,
2012

Revenues
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Interest expense, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net income

$

$

F-8

3,198,422 $
3,162,428
35,994
22,496
13,498
(269)
13,229
(4,809)
8,420 $

Susser Petroleum
Partners LP

Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2012

From
September 25, 2012
(in thousands)

1,078,919 $
1,063,411
15,508
5,594
9,914
(540)
9,374
(224)
9,150 $

4,277,341
4,225,839
51,502
28,090
23,412
(809)
22,603
(5,033)
17,570

The following is a summary of cash flow for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012 disaggregated between Predecessor and the
Partnership:
Susser Petroleum
Company LLC
Predecessor

Susser Petroleum
Partners LP

Through September 24,
2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of intangibles and capital expenditures
Purchase of marketable securities
Redemption of marketable securities
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Loan origination costs
Proceeds from issuance of common units, net of offering costs
Distributions to Parent
Distributions to Unitholders
Predecessor cash retained by Parent
Payments on long-term debt
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
3.

$

9,183

From
September 25, 2012
(in thousands)

$

(9,806)
—
—
754
(9,052)

$

Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2012

—
—
—
—
—
(354)
(17)
(371)
(240)
240
— $

7,305

$

16,488

(34,200)
(497,426)
349,162
567
(181,897)

(44,006)
(497,426)
349,162
1,321
(190,949)

216,256
(1,907)
206,154
(206,342)
(311)

216,256
(1,907)
206,154
(206,342)
(311)
(354)
(32,523)
180,973
6,512
240
6,752

(32,506)
181,344
6,752
—
6,752 $

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fiscal Year
The Partnership uses calendar month accounting periods, and ends its fiscal year on December 31.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.
Fair Value Measurements
We use fair value measurements to measure, among other items, purchased assets and investments, leases and derivative contracts. We
also use them to assess impairment of properties, equipment, intangible assets, and goodwill.
Where available, fair value is based on observable market prices or parameters, or is derived from such prices or parameters. Where
observable prices or inputs are not available, use of unobservable prices or inputs are used to estimate the current fair value, often using an
internal valuation model. These valuation techniques involve some level of management estimation and judgment, the degree of which is
dependent on the item being valued.
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Acquisition Accounting
Acquisitions of assets or entities that include inputs and processes and have the ability to create outputs are accounted for as business
combinations. The purchase price is recorded for tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on fair value. The excess
of fair value of the consideration conveyed over the fair value of the net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. The Consolidated Statements of
Operations for the years presented include the results of operations for each acquisition from their respective date of acquisition.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months
or less, but exclude debt or equity securities classified as marketable securities.
Marketable Securities
Debt or equity securities are classified into the following reporting categories: held-to-maturity, trading or available-for-sale securities.
The investments in debt securities, which typically mature in one year or less, are currently classified as held-to-maturity and valued at amortized
cost, which approximates fair value. The fair value of marketable securities is measured using Level 1 inputs (See Note 9 for more information
concerning fair value measurements). The maturity dates range from January 10, 2013 to March 22, 2013 and are classified on the balance sheet
in other assets. Included in the marketable securities classification on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are approximately $3.4 million in money
market funds. The carrying value of these approximates fair value and are measured using Level 1 inputs. The gross unrecognized holding gains
and losses as of December 31, 2012 were not material. These investments are used as collateral to secure the SUSP term loan and are intended to
be used only for future capital expenditures.
Accounts Receivable
The majority of the trade receivables are from wholesale fuel customers. Credit is extended based on evaluation of the customer's financial
condition. Receivables are recorded at face value, without interest or discount. The Partnership provides an allowance for doubtful accounts
based on historical experience and on a specific identification basis. Credit losses are recorded when accounts are deemed uncollectible.
Receivables from affiliates have risen from transactions with non-consolidated affiliates and are primarily due to the sale of fuel and other
miscellaneous transactions with SUSS. Predecessor receivables from affiliates also included the concentration of excess cash to SUSS. These
receivables are recorded at face value, without interest or discount.
Inventories
Fuel inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market. Shipping and handling costs are included in the cost of inventories.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets,
estimated to be forty years for buildings, three to fifteen years for equipment and thirty years for underground storage tanks.
Amortization of leasehold improvements is based upon the shorter of the remaining terms of the leases including renewal periods that
are reasonably assured, or the estimated useful lives, which approximate twenty years. Expenditures for major renewals and betterments that
extend the useful lives of property and equipment are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Gains or losses
on the disposition of property and equipment are recorded in the period incurred.
Long-Lived Assets
Long-lived assets (including intangible assets) are tested for possible impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. If indicators exist, the estimated undiscounted future cash flows related to the asset are
compared to the carrying value of the asset. If the carrying value is greater than the estimated undiscounted future cash flow amount, an
impairment charge is recorded within loss on disposal of assets and
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impairment charge in the statement of operations for amounts necessary to reduce the corresponding carrying value of the asset to fair value. The
impairment loss calculations require management to apply judgment in estimating future cash flows and the discount rates that reflect the risk
inherent in future cash flows.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair value of assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a
purchase business combination are recorded at fair value as of the date acquired. Acquired intangibles determined to have an indefinite useful
life are not amortized, but are instead tested for impairment at least annually, and are tested for impairment more frequently if events and
circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. The annual impairment test of goodwill is performed as of the first day of the fourth
quarter of the fiscal year.
The Partnership uses qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not (likelihood of more than 50%) that the fair value of
a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, including goodwill.
During the IPO, an independent valuation of the assets to be contributed to the Partnership was obtained which indicated the value of the
goodwill was in excess of the carrying value. Based on this and other qualitative factors, the Partnership determined that it is more likely than
not that the goodwill had a fair value which exceeded the carrying value. Some of the qualitative factors considered in applying this test include
the consideration of macroeconomic conditions, industry and market considerations, cost factors affecting the business, the overall financial
performance of the business and the performance of the unit price of the Partnership.
If qualitative factors were not deemed sufficient to conclude that the fair value of goodwill more likely than not exceeded the carrying
value of goodwill, then the two-step approach would be applied in making an evaluation. In step one, multiple valuation methodologies,
including a market approach (market price multiples of comparable companies) and an income approach (discounted cash flow analysis) would
be used. The computations require management to make significant estimates and assumptions. Critical estimates and assumptions that are used
as part of these evaluations would include, among other things, selection of comparable publicly traded companies, the discount rate applied to
future earnings reflecting a weighted average cost of capital rate, and earnings growth assumptions. A discounted cash flow analysis requires
management to make various judgmental assumptions about sales, operating margins, capital expenditures, working capital and growth rates.
If after assessing the totality of events or circumstances an entity determines that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting
unit is greater than its carrying amount then performing the two-step test is unnecessary.
If the estimated fair value of a reporting unit is less than the carrying value, a second step is performed to compute the amount of the
impairment by determining an “implied fair value” of goodwill. The determination of the Partnership's “implied fair value” requires the
Partnership to allocate the estimated fair value of the reporting unit to the assets and liabilities of the reporting unit. Any unallocated fair value
represents the “implied fair value” of goodwill, which is compared to the corresponding carrying value. If the "implied fair value" is less than the
carrying value, an impairment charge would be recorded.
Other Intangible Assets
Other intangible assets consist of supply agreements with customers, customer intangibles and favorable/unfavorable lease
arrangements. Separable intangible assets that are not determined to have an indefinite life are amortized over their useful lives and assessed for
impairment. The determination of the fair market value of the intangible asset and the estimated useful life are based on an analysis of all
pertinent factors including (1) the use of widely-accepted valuation approaches, the income approach or the cost approach, (2) the expected use
of the asset by the Partnership, (3) the expected useful life of related assets, (4) any legal, regulatory or contractual provisions, including renewal
or extension period that would cause substantial costs or modifications to existing agreements, and (5) the effects of obsolescence, demand,
competition, and other economic factors. Should any of the underlying assumptions indicate that the value of the intangible assets might be
impaired, we may be required to reduce the carrying value and subsequent useful life of the asset. If the underlying assumptions governing the
amortization of an intangible asset were later determined to have significantly changed, we may be required to adjust the amortization period of
such asset to reflect any new estimate of its useful life. Any write-down of the value or unfavorable change in the useful life of an intangible
asset would increase expense at that time.
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Supply agreements are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the agreements, which generally range from
five to fifteen years. Favorable/unfavorable lease arrangements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease terms.
Environmental Liabilities
Environmental expenditures related to existing conditions, resulting from past or current operations and from which no current or future
benefit is discernible, are expensed by the Partnership. Expenditures that extend the life of the related property or prevent future environmental
contamination are capitalized.
Revenue Recognition
Revenues from motor fuel sales are recognized at the time that fuel is delivered to the customer, with the exception of consignment
sales, which are discussed in greater detail below. Shipment and delivery of motor fuel generally occurs on the same day. The Partnership
charges its wholesale customers for third-party transportation costs, which are recorded net in cost of sales. Through PropCo, our wholly owned
corporate subsidiary, we may sell motor fuel to wholesale customers on a consignment basis, in which we retain title to inventory, control access
to and sale of fuel inventory, and recognize revenue at the time the fuel is sold to the ultimate customer. We derive other income from rental
income, propane and lubricating oils and other ancillary product and service offerings.
Rental Income
Rental income from operating leases is recognized over the term of the lease.
Cost of Sales
We include in “Cost of Sales” all costs we incur to acquire wholesale fuel, including the costs of purchasing, storing and transporting
inventory prior to delivery to our wholesale customers. Cost of sales does not include any depreciation of our property, plant and equipment, as
any amounts attributed to cost of sales would not be significant. Depreciation is separately classified in our Consolidated Statements of
Operations. The portion of fuel volumes purchased from suppliers who accounted for 10% or more of our total combined volume during the
years ended December 31 are as follows:

2010

Valero
Chevron

41%
16%

2011

37%
20%

2012

36%
19%

Motor Fuel Taxes
Certain motor fuel and sales taxes are collected from customers and remitted to governmental agencies either directly or through
suppliers by the Partnership. The Partnership's accounting policy is to exclude the tax collected and remitted from revenues and cost of sales and
account for them as liabilities.

Deferred Branding Incentives
We receive payments for deferred branding incentives related to our fuel supply contracts. Unearned branding incentives are deferred
and amortized as earned over the term of the respective agreement. Deferred branding incentives are amortized on a straight line basis over the
term of the agreement as a credit to cost of sales.
Lease Accounting
The Partnership leases a portion of its properties under non-cancelable operating leases, whose initial terms are typically five to ten
years, along with options that permit renewals for additional periods. Minimum rent is typically expensed on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease including renewal periods that are reasonably assured at the inception of the lease. The Partnership is typically responsible for
payment of real estate taxes, maintenance expenses and insurance. The Partnership also leases certain vehicles, which are typically less than five
years.
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Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
All derivative financial instruments are reported on the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in the fair value are recognized either in
earnings or as other comprehensive income in equity, depending on whether the derivative has been designated as a fair value or cash flow hedge
and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship, the nature of the exposure being hedged, and how effective the derivative is at offsetting
movements in underlying exposure. The Partnership does not engage in the trading of derivatives. All such financial instruments are used to
manage risk.
The Partnership periodically enters into derivatives, such as futures and options, to manage its fuel price risk. Net proceeds received and
the change in value of the derivatives are recorded as increases or decreases to fuel cost of sales. See Note 9 for additional information.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Cash, accounts receivable, certain other current assets, marketable securities, accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current
liabilities are reflected in the consolidated financial statements at fair value because of the short-term maturity of the instruments.
Concentration Risk
Motor fuel sold to SUSS represented approximately 60% of the total motor fuel sales for each of the years ended December 31, 2010 ,
2011 and 2012 . Prior to the IPO, these sales were at cost and no profit was reflected on these sales. Pursuant to the Distribution Contract, sales
subsequent to the IPO reflect a margin of approximately three cents per gallon.
Earnings Per Unit
In addition to the common and subordinated units, we have identified the incentive distribution rights ("IDRs") as participating securities
and compute income per unit using the two-class method under which any excess of distributions declared over net income shall be allocated to
the partners based on their respective sharing of income specified in the partnership agreement. Net income per unit applicable to limited
partners (including common and subordinated unitholders) is computed by dividing limited partners' interest in net income, after deducting any
incentive distributions, by the weighted-average number of outstanding common and subordinated units.
Prior to September 25, 2012, we were wholly owned by SUSS and, accordingly, we did not calculate or report earnings per unit.
Comprehensive Income
We had no transactions which affect comprehensive income and, accordingly, comprehensive income equals net income for all periods
presented.
Stock and Unit-based Compensation
Certain employees supporting our Predecessor's operations were historically granted long-term incentive compensation awards under the
SUSS stock-based compensation programs, which primarily consist of stock options and restricted common stock. Our Predecessor was
allocated expenses for stock-based compensation costs, which are included in general and administrative expenses. The allocated expense was
$0.6 million , $0.7 million and $0.8 million and for the years ended December 31, 2010 , 2011 and 2012 , respectively.
In connection with our IPO, our general partner adopted the Susser Petroleum Partners LP 2012 Long-Term Incentive Plan (“2012 LTIP"),
under which various types of awards may be granted to employees, consultants and directors of our general partner who provide services for us.
We amortize the grant-date fair value of these awards over the vesting period using the straight-line method. Expenses related to unit-based
compensation are included in general and administrative expenses. During 2012 we recognized $0.1 million of stock compensation expense
related to SUSP unit awards.
Income Tax
We are organized as a pass-through for federal income tax purposes. As a result, our partners are responsible for federal income taxes
based on their respective share of taxable income. Net income for financial statement purposes may differ
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significantly from taxable income reportable to unitholders as a result of differences between the tax bases and financial reporting bases of assets
and liabilities and the taxable income allocation requirements under the partnership agreement. We are subject to the Texas franchise tax that is
based on our Texas sourced taxable gross margin for federal income tax purposes.
The Predecessor recognized deferred income tax liabilities and assets for the expected future income tax consequences of temporary differences
between financial statement carrying amounts and the related income tax basis. The Partnership recognized deferred income tax liabilities and
assets related to its subsidiary, PropCo.
The Predecessor recognizes the impact of a tax position in the financial statements, if that position is not more likely than not of being
sustained, based on the technical merits of the position. See Note 16 for additional information regarding de-recognition, classification, interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods and disclosure.
Reclassifications
Certain line items have been reclassified for presentation purposes. On the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, changes in notes
receivable have been reclassified from a financing activity to an operating activity to better reflect the purpose of these notes receivable.
New Accounting Pronouncements
FASB ASU No. 2011-04. In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, "Fair Value Measurement, Amendments to Achieve Common
Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRS (ASC 820—Fair Value Measurement)." This guidance amends
ASC 820 on fair value measurements and disclosures to (1) clarify the board's intent in respect of existing measurement guidance, (2) revise
certain measurement guidance that changes or modifies a principle for measuring fair value, and (3) add disclosure requirements concerning the
measurement uncertainty of Level 3 measurements. The ASU is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011.
The adoption of this amended guidance did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash flows or
related disclosures.
FASB ASU No. 2011-05. In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, "Comprehensive Income: Presentation of Comprehensive
Income (ASC 220—Comprehensive Income)." This guidance removes the presentation options in ASC 220 and requires entities to report
components of comprehensive income in either (1) a continuous statement of comprehensive income or (2) two separate but consecutive
statements. The ASU does not change the items that must be reported in other comprehensive income. It is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2011 (and for interim periods within such years). In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-12, which deferred
certain aspects of ASU No. 2011-05. Our Predecessor adopted this accounting standard in the first quarter of Fiscal 2012. This standard affects
presentation and disclosure, and therefore will not affect our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
FASB ASU No. 2012-02 . In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-02, "Intangibles—Goodwill and Other." This guidance
permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is
impaired as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the quantitative impairment test in accordance with Subtopic 350. The
ASU is effective for annual and interim impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012. The adoption of this
guidance will affect our impairment steps only but will not have an effect on our results of operations, cash flows or related disclosures.
4.

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable, excluding receivables from affiliates, consisted of the following:
December 31,
2011
Predecessor

December 31,
2012

(in thousands)

Accounts receivable, trade
Other receivables
Allowance for uncollectible accounts, trade
Accounts receivable, net

$

$
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30,963 $
964
(167)
31,760 $

32,906
205
(103)
33,008

Accounts receivable from affiliates are $106.6 million and $59.5 million as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012 , respectively.
For additional information regarding our affiliated receivables, see Note 12.
An allowance for uncollectible accounts is provided based on management's evaluation of outstanding accounts receivable. Following is a
summary of the valuation accounts related to accounts and notes receivable (balances for 2010 and 2011 are for the Predecessor):
Balance at
Beginning of
Period

Additions
Charged to
Costs
and Expenses

Amounts
Written
Off, Net of
Recoveries

Allowance
Retained by
Parent

Balance at
End of Period

(in thousands)
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
December 31, 2010
December 31, 2011
December 31, 2012
5.

$

327
346
167

$

214 $
(58)
103

195
121
—

$

—
—
167

$

346
167
103

Inventories
Inventories consisted of the following:
December 31,
2011
Predecessor

December 31,
2012

(in thousands)

Fuel-consignment and dealers
Fuel-wholesale and bulk
Other
Inventories, net
6.

$

$

3,538
2,947
538
7,023

$

1,960
340
681
2,981

$

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consisted of the following:
December 31,
2011
Predecessor

December 31,
2012

(in thousands)

Land
Buildings and leasehold improvements
Equipment
Construction in progress
Total property and equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

$

$

19,552 $
8,315
27,943
1,116
56,926
(17,877)
39,049 $

34,122
23,589
16,049
2,905
76,665
(8,492)
68,173

Depreciation expense on property and equipment was $3.5 million , $3.9 million and $3.7 million for 2010 , 2011 and 2012 ,
respectively.
During 2010 , the Predecessor recorded a net loss of $0.1 million on disposal of assets. During 2011 , the Predecessor recorded a net
loss of $0.2 million on disposal of assets. During 2012 , the Predecessor prior to the IPO and the Partnership post IPO recorded a net loss of $0.3
million on disposal of assets.
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7.

Intangible Assets

Goodwill
The following table reflects goodwill balances and activity for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012 :
Susser Petroleum
Company LLC
Predecessor

Susser Petroleum
Partners LP

Total

(in thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2011
Goodwill contributed to the Partnership
Goodwill retained by the Parent

$

Balance at December 31, 2012

$

20,661 $
(12,936)
(7,725)
— $

—
12,936
—
12,936

$

$

20,661
—
(7,725)
12,936

Other Intangibles
In accordance with ASC 350 “Intangibles-Goodwill and Other” , the Partnership has finite-lived intangible assets recorded that are
amortized. The finite-lived assets consist of supply agreements, favorable/unfavorable leasehold arrangements, customer intangibles and loan
origination costs, all of which are amortized over the respective lives of the agreements or over the period of time the assets are expected to
contribute directly or indirectly to the Partnership's future cash flows. Supply agreements are being amortized over a weighted average period of
approximately seven years. Favorable/unfavorable leasehold arrangements are being amortized over an average period of approximately ten
years. Customer intangibles are fully amortized. Loan origination costs are amortized over the life of the underlying debt as an increase to
interest expense.
In the years ended 2010 and 2011 , we completed acquisitions which included fuel supply contracts and other commercial accounts
valued at $7.8 million and $10.4 million , respectively. We had no acquisitions in 2012.
The following table presents the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization for each major class of intangible assets, excluding
goodwill, at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012 :

December 31, 2011
Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

December 31, 2012
Gross
Carrying
Amount

Net
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Amount

Predecessor
(in thousands)

Amortized
Supply agreements
(Unfavorable) favorable leasehold
arrangements, net
Loan origination costs
Other
Intangible assets, net

$

29,654

$

$

(950)
—
690
29,394 $

6,432

$ 23,222

$

29,803

(391)
(559)
—
—
44
646
6,085 $ 23,309 $

236
1,907
63
32,009

$

8,674

$ 21,129

$

39
102
63
8,878

197
1,805
—
$ 23,131

Total amortization expense on finite-lived intangibles included in depreciation, amortization and accretion for 2010 , 2011 and 2012
was $1.2 million , $2.2 million and $3.3 million , respectively. The loan origination cost amortization included in interest expense for 2012 was
$0.1 million . We had no loan cost amortization in 2010 or 2011. The following table presents the Partnership's estimate of amortization
includable in amortization expense and interest expense for each of the five succeeding fiscal years for finite-lived intangibles as of
December 31, 2012 (in thousands):
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Amortization

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
8.

$

3,106
2,775
2,595
2,264
1,950

Interest

$

381
381
381
381
280

Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Current accrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following:

December 31,
December 31,
2011
2012
Predecessor
(in thousands)
$
4,788 $
71
1,042
299
1,417
—
763
731
$
8,010 $
1,101

Accrued federal and state income taxes
Property and sales tax
Payroll and employee benefits
Deposits and other
Total

At December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012 , the Predecessor prior to our IPO and the Partnership post IPO had approximately $5.0
million and $2.4 million respectively, of deferred incentives related to branding agreements with fuel suppliers, of which $4.8 million and $2.4
million , respectively, are included in deferred branding incentives, long-term portion in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The
Partnership is recognizing the income on a straight-line basis over the agreement periods, which range from three to ten years.
9.

Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt consisted of the following:

Term loan, bearing interest at Prime or LIBOR plus an applicable margin
SUSP Revolver, bearing interest at Prime or LIBOR plus an applicable margin
Notes payable, bearing interest at 6%
Total debt
Less: Current maturities
Long-term debt, net of current maturities
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December 31,
December 31,
2011
2012
Predecessor
(in thousands)
$
— $
148,166
—
35,590
1,120
1,099
1,120
184,855
22
24
$
1,098 $
184,831

At December 31, 2012, scheduled future debt maturities are as follows (in thousands):

2013 $
2014
2015
2016
2017
Thereafter
$

Total

24
25
148,192
1,023
35,591
—
184,855

Term Loan and Security Agreement
On September 25, 2012 , in connection with the IPO, we entered into a Term Loan and Security Agreement with Bank of America, N.A.
for a $180.7 million term loan facility, expiring September 25, 2015 (the “Term Loan”). Borrowings under the Term Loan will bear interest at
(i) a base rate (a rate based off of the higher of (a) the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5% , (b) Bank of America's prime rate or (c) LIBOR plus
1.00% ) or (ii) LIBOR plus 0.25% . At December 31, 2012 , the interest rate on the Term Loan was 0.46% .
In order to obtain the SUSP Term Loan on more favorable terms, SUSP pledged investment grade securities in an amount equal to or
greater than 98% of the outstanding principal amount of the SUSP Term Loan (the “Collateral Account”). The SUSP Term Loan requires SUSP
to, among other things (i) deliver certain financial statements, certificates and notices to Bank of America at specified times and (ii) maintain the
required collateral and the liens thereon (subject to SUSP's ability to withdraw certain amounts of the collateral, as permitted under the SUSP
Term Loan).
Revolving Credit Agreement
On September 25, 2012 , in connection with the IPO, we entered into a revolving credit agreement with a syndicate of banks, including
Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer (the “SUSP Revolver”). The SUSP Revolver is a $250
million revolving credit facility, expiring September 25, 2017 . The facility can be increased from time to time upon our written request, subject
to certain conditions, up to an additional $100 million . Borrowings under the revolving credit facility will bear interest at a base rate (a rate
based off of the higher of (a) the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5% , (b) Bank of America's prime rate or (c) LIBOR plus 1.00% ) or LIBOR, in each
case plus an applicable margin ranging from 2.00% to 3.25% , in the case of a LIBOR loan, or from 1.00% to 2.25% , in the case of a base rate
loan (determined with reference to our consolidated total leverage ratio). In addition, the unused portion of our revolving credit facility will be
subject to a commitment fee ranging from 0.375% to 0.50% , based on our consolidated total leverage ratio.
The SUSP Revolver requires us to maintain a minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio of not less than 2.50 to 1.00 , and a
consolidated total leverage ratio of not more than 4.50 to 1.00 , subject to certain adjustments. Indebtedness under the SUSP Revolver is secured
by a security interest in, among other things, all of our present and future personal property and all of the personal property of our guarantors, the
capital stock of our subsidiaries, and any intercompany debt. Additionally, if our consolidated total leverage ratio exceeds 3.00 to 1.00 at the end
of any fiscal quarter, we will be required, upon request of the lenders, to grant mortgage liens on all real property owned by the Partnership and
its subsidiary guarantors.
As of December 31, 2012 , there were $35.6 million outstanding borrowings under the SUSP Revolver and $12.8 million in standby letters
of credit. The unused availability on the SUSP Revolver at December 31, 2012 was $201.6 million . SUSP was in compliance with all covenants.
Guaranty by SUSS of SUSP Term Loan and SUSP Revolver
SUSS entered into a Guaranty of Collection (the “Guaranty”) in connection with the SUSP Term loan and the SUSP Revolver. Pursuant to
the Guaranty, SUSS guarantees the collection of (i) the principal amount outstanding under the SUSP Term Loan and (ii) the SUSP Revolver.
SUSS' obligation under the Guaranty is limited to $180.7 million . SUSS is not required to make payments under the Guaranty unless and until
(a) SUSP has failed to make a payment on the SUSP Term Loan or SUSP Revolver, (b) the obligations under such facilities have been
accelerated, (c) all remedies of the applicable lenders to collect the unpaid amounts due under such facilities, whether at law or equity, have been
exhausted and (d) the applicable lenders have failed to collect the full amount owing on such facilities. In addition, SUSS entered into a
Reimbursement Agreement with PropCo, whereby SUSS is obligated to reimburse PropCo for any amounts paid by PropCo under the guaranty
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of the SUSP Revolver executed by SUSP's subsidiaries. SUSS' exposure under this reimbursement agreement is limited, when aggregated with
its obligation under the Guaranty, to $180.7 million .
Other Debt
In August 2010 our Predecessor entered into a mortgage note for an aggregate initial borrowing amount of $1.2 million . Pursuant to the
terms of the mortgage note, we make monthly installment payments that are comprised of principal and interest through the maturity date of
July 1, 2016 . The balance outstanding at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012 was $1.1 million and $1.1 million , respectively. The
mortgage note bears interest at a fixed rate of 6.0% . The mortgage note is secured by a first priority security interest in a property owned by the
Partnership.
The estimated fair value of long-term debt is calculated using Level 3 inputs. The fair value of debt as of December 31, 2012 , is estimated
to be approximately $184.9 million , based on the par value of the Term Loan, the current balance of the SUSP Revolver and an analysis of the
net present value of remaining payments on the notes payable rate at a rate calculated off U.S. Treasury Securities.
Fair Value Measurements
We use fair value measurements to measure, among other items, purchased assets and investments, leases and derivative contracts. We
also use them to assess impairment of properties, equipment, intangible assets and goodwill. Fair value is defined as the price at which an asset
could be exchanged in a current transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties. A liability’s fair value is defined as the amount that would
be paid to transfer the liability to a new obligor, not the amount that would be paid to settle the liability with the creditor. Where available, fair
value is based on observable market prices or parameters, or is derived from such prices or parameters. Where observable prices or inputs are not
available, use of unobservable prices or inputs is used to estimate the current fair value, often using an internal valuation model. These valuation
techniques involve some level of management estimation and judgment, the degree of which is dependent on the item being valued.
ASC 820 “ Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value into the following hierarchy:
Level 1

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are either directly or indirectly observable;

Level 3

Unobservable inputs in which little or no market activity exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own
assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing.

The Partnership may periodically enter into derivatives, such as futures and options, to manage its fuel price risk, primarily related to bulk
purchases of fuel. We hedge this inventory risk through the use of fuel futures contracts which are matched in quantity and timing to the
anticipated usage of the inventory. Bulk fuel purchases and fuel hedging positions have not been material to our operations. The fair value of our
derivative contracts is measured using Level 2 inputs, and is determined by either market prices on an active market for similar assets or by
prices quoted by a broker or other market-corroborated prices. This price does not differ materially from the amount that would be paid to
transfer the liability to a new obligor due to the short term nature of these contracts. At December 31, 2011 , our Predecessor held fuel futures
contracts with a fair value of ( $12,800 ) ( 16 contracts representing 0.6 million gallons). At December 31, 2012, the Partnership held no fuel
futures contracts. Our Predecessor recognized a gain in 2010, 2011 and 2012 related to these contracts of less than $0.1 million , $0.8 million
and $1.9 million , respectively. The loss realized on hedging contracts is substantially offset by increased profitability on sale of fuel inventory.
We did not use hedge accounting with regard to these contracts.
10.

Other Noncurrent Liabilities

Other noncurrent liabilities consisted of the following:
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December 31,
December 31,
2011
2012
Predecessor
(in thousands)
$
4,812 $
2,442
600
34
50
—
$
5,462 $
2,476

Deferred branding incentives, long-term portion
Reserve for underground storage tank removal
Reserve for environmental remediation, long-term
Total
11.

Benefit Plans

Employees supporting our operations participate in the SUSS benefit plans: the 401(k) benefit plan and the Non-Qualified Deferred
Compensation Plan. Subsequent to the IPO, SUSS allocated expense related to the benefit plans as part of the allocation of oversight charges as
described in Note 12.
The net expense incurred for these plans for 2010 , 2011 and 2012 , was approximately $0.1 million , $0.2 million and $0.7 million ,
respectively.
12.

Related-Party Transactions
We entered into two long-term, fee-based commercial agreements with SUSS effective upon our IPO, summarized as follows:
•

Distribution Contract - a 10 -year agreement under which we are the exclusive distributor of motor fuel to SUSS' existing Stripes ®
convenience stores and independently operated consignment locations, and to all future sites purchased by SUSP pursuant to the sale
and leaseback option under the Omnibus Agreement, at cost, including tax and transportation costs, plus a fixed profit margin of three
cents per gallon. In addition, all future motor fuel volumes purchased by SUSS for its own account will be added to the distribution
contract pursuant to the terms of the Omnibus Agreement.

•

Transportation Contract - a 10 -year transportation logistics agreement, pursuant to which SUSS will arrange for motor fuel to be
delivered from our suppliers to our customers at rates consistent with those charged by SUSS to third parties for the delivery of motor
fuel.

Omnibus Agreement
In addition to the commercial agreements described above, we also entered into an Omnibus Agreement with SUSS pursuant to which,
among other things, we received a three -year option to purchase from SUSS up to 75 of SUSS' new or recently constructed Stripes ®
convenience stores at their cost and lease the stores back to them at a specified rate for a 15 -year initial term, and SUSP will be the exclusive
distributor of motor fuel to such stores for a period of ten years from the date of purchase. We also received a ten -year right to participate in
acquisition opportunities with SUSS, to the extent SUSP and SUSS are able to reach an agreement on terms, and the exclusive right to distribute
motor fuel to certain of SUSS' newly constructed convenience stores and independently operated consignment locations. In addition, we agreed
to reimburse our general partner and its affiliates for the costs incurred in managing and operating SUSP. The Omnibus Agreement also provides
for certain indemnification obligations between SUSS and SUSP.
Contribution Agreement
On September 25, 2012, in connection with the closing of the Offering, the following transactions, among others, occurred pursuant to the
Contribution Agreement:
•

•

SUSS contributed to SPOC substantially all of its wholesale motor fuel distribution business, other than its motor fuel consignment
business and transportation assets, which included:
• marketer, distributor and supply agreements,
• fuel supply agreements to distribute motor fuel to convenience stores and other retail fuel outlets,
• real property owned in fee and personal property,
• leases and subleases under which it was a tenant, and
• leases and subleases under which it was a landlord.
SPC contributed its membership interests in T&C Wholesale to SPOC.
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•

SPC contributed its interest in SPOC to the Partnership in exchange for 14,436 common units representing a 0.07% limited partner
interest in the Partnership, 10,939,436 subordinated units representing a 50.0% limited partner interest in the Partnership and all of the
incentive distribution rights of the Partnership.

Summary of Transactions
Related party transactions with SUSS are as follows:
The Partnership sells motor fuel to SUSS for resale at its Stripes ® convenience stores and independently operated consignment
locations. Motor fuel sales to affiliates for the period ended December 31, 2012 , subsequent to the IPO, were $722.1 million and
resulted in gross profit of $7.8 million . Prior to September 25, 2012 , the Predecessor sold motor fuel to affiliates at zero gross profit.
Additionally, we collect credit card receipts from the motor fuel suppliers on SUSS' behalf.
• SUSS charged us for general and administrative services under the Omnibus Agreement for oversight of the Partnership and its
Predecessor. Such amounts include certain expenses allocated by SUSS for general corporate services, such as finance, internal audit
and legal services, which are included in general and administrative expenses. These expenses were charged or allocated to the
Partnership based on the nature of the expenses and our proportionate share of employee time and headcount, which management
believes to be reasonable. SUSS charged $1.4 million , $1.6 million and $1.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2010 ,
December 30, 2011 and December 31, 2012 , respectively.
• We reimbursed SUSS for costs of employees supporting our operations of $2.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Prior to
the IPO, these expenses were incurred directly by the Predecessor.
• We distributed $0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 to SUSS as regular distributions on its common and subordinated
units.
• SUSS charged us for transportation services under the Transportation Contract for delivery of motor fuel to our customers of $11.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Prior to the IPO, these expenses were incurred directly by the Predecessor.
• SUSS charged the Predecessor for rent expense on certain real estate, which was in turn subleased by the Predecessor to dealers, of $1.0
million , $1.1 million and $0.8 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2010 , December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012 ,
respectively. No rent expense was incurred subsequent to the IPO.
• We acquired 8 convenience store properties from SUSS for $29.0 million . These stores were leased back to SUSS.
• We charged SUSS rent on the convenience store properties which were purchased by us and leased back to them. For the year ended
December 31, 2012, we charged $0.1 million to SUSS on these leases.
• Net accounts receivable from SUSS were $106.6 million and $59.5 million at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012 ,
respectively.
•

13.

Commitments and Contingencies

Leases
The Partnership leases certain convenience store and other properties under non-cancellable operating leases whose initial terms are
typically 5 to 10 years , along with options that permit renewals for additional periods. Minimum rent is typically expensed on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. We typically are responsible for payment of real estate taxes, maintenance expenses and insurance. These
properties are primarily sublet to third parties.
The components of net rent expense are as follows:

December 31,
2010
Predecessor

December 30,
2011
Predecessor

December 31,
2012

(in thousands)

Store base rent
Equipment rent
Net rent expense

$
$

3,351
446
3,797

$
$

3,729
593
4,322

$
$

3,074
453
3,527

Equipment rent consists primarily of store equipment and vehicles. Sublease rental income for 2010 , 2011 and 2012 was $2.3 million ,
$2.5 million and $2.1 million , respectively, and is included in other income.
Future minimum lease payments for future fiscal years are as follows (in thousands):
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2013 $
2014
2015
2016
2017
Thereafter
$

Total

801
803
773
782
793
4,983
8,935

Environmental Remediation
We are subject to various federal, state and local environmental laws and make financial expenditures in order to comply with
regulations governing underground storage tanks adopted by federal, state and local regulatory agencies. In particular, at the federal level, the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended, requires the EPA to establish a comprehensive regulatory program for the
detection, prevention and cleanup of leaking underground storage tanks (e.g. overfills, spills and underground storage tank releases).
Federal and state regulations require us to provide and maintain evidence that we are taking financial responsibility for corrective action
and compensating third parties in the event of a release from our underground storage tank systems. In order to comply with these requirements,
we, through our Predecessor, have historically obtained private insurance for Texas, New Mexico and Oklahoma. These policies provide
protection from third-party liability claims. For 2012 , our coverage was $1.0 million per occurrence, with a $2.0 million aggregate and $0.5
million self-insured retention. Our sites continue to be covered by this policy.
We are not currently involved in the remediation of motor fuel storage sites. Our Predecessor has accrued for anticipated future costs
and any related probable state reimbursement amounts for its remediation activities. Accordingly, our Predecessor had recorded estimated
undiscounted liabilities for these sites totaling $0.1 million as of December 31, 2011 , which are classified as accrued expenses and other current
liabilities. We have no accrued liabilities for remediation activities as of December 31, 2012 . SUSS has agreed to indemnify us for any
environmental costs that are determined to have been in existence at the time the properties were contributed to us. This indemnity expires
September 2015. Any new releases will be our responsibility.
Under state reimbursement programs, we are eligible to receive reimbursement for certain future remediation costs, as well as the
remediation costs previously paid. Accordingly, our Predecessor has recorded a net receivable of $61,000 for the estimated probable state
reimbursements which are included in other assets as of December 31, 2011 . We had no sites eligible for reimbursement as of December 31,
2012 .
We have additional reserves of less than $0.1 million that represent our estimate for future asset retirement obligations for underground
storage tanks.
Deferred Branding Incentives
We receive deferred branding incentives and other incentive payments from a number of our fuel suppliers. A portion of the deferred
branding incentives may be passed on to our wholesale branded dealers under the same terms as required by our fuel suppliers. Many of the
agreements require repayment of all or a portion of the amount received if we (or our branded dealers) elect to discontinue selling the specified
brand of fuel at certain locations. As of December 31, 2012 , the estimated amount of deferred branding incentives that would have to be repaid
upon de-branding at these locations was $16.5 million . Of this amount, approximately $11.3 million would be the responsibility of the
Partnership's branded dealers under reimbursement agreements with the dealers. In the event a dealer were to default on this reimbursement
obligation, SUSP would be required to make this payment. No liability is recorded for the amount of dealer obligations which would become
payable upon de-branding. We have $2.4 million recorded, net of accumulated amortization, on the balance sheet as of December 31, 2012 ,
which is included in other noncurrent liabilities The Partnership amortizes its retained portion of the incentives to income on a straight-line basis
over the term of the agreements.
14.

Rental Income under Operating Leases
The following schedule details our investment in property under operating leases as of December 31, 2012 (in thousands):
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Land
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Total property and equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation

$

Property and equipment, net

$

33,646
18,282
14,691
66,619
4,344
62,275

The following is a schedule by years of minimum future rental income under noncancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2012
(in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2013 $
2014
2015
2016
2017
Thereafter
$

Total minimum future rentals

5,592
5,289
4,671
3,987
3,451
28,293
51,283

See Note 12 for information regarding rental income and operating leases with SUSS.
15.

Interest Expense and Interest Income
The components of net interest expense are as follows:

December 31,
2010
Predecessor

Year Ended
December 30,
2011
Predecessor

December 31,
2012

(in thousands)

Cash interest expense
Amortization of loan costs
Cash interest income
Interest expense, net

$

$
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332 $
—
(48)
284 $

412 $
—
(88)
324 $

940
102
(233)
809

16.

Income Tax

As a limited partnership, we are generally not subject to state and federal income tax, with the exception of the state of Texas. Included
in our provision for income tax is a tax imposed by the state of Texas of 0.5% of gross margin in Texas (“franchise tax”). Our taxable income or
loss, which may vary substantially from the net income or net loss reported in the consolidated statements of operations, is includable in the
federal and state income tax returns of each unitholder. We are, however, subject to a statutory requirement that our non-qualifying income
cannot exceed 10% of our total gross income, determined on a calendar year basis under the applicable income tax provisions. If the amount of
our non-qualifying income exceeds this statutory limit, we would be taxed as a corporation. Accordingly, certain activities that generate nonqualifying income are conducted through a taxable corporate subsidiary, PropCo. PropCo is subject to federal and state income tax and pays any
income taxes related to the results of its operations. For the year ended December 31, 2012, our non-qualifying income did not exceed the
statutory limit.
The net Federal tax basis of the non-taxable Partnership's assets and liabilities is less than the reported amounts on the financial
statements by approximately $16.0 million as of December 31, 2012.
Our Predecessor was subject to income tax and was included in the consolidated income tax returns of SUSS. Income taxes were
allocated to the Predecessor based on separate-company computations of income or loss. The income tax expense for fiscal years ended
December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2011 are those of our Predecessor. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, included in income tax
expense is the expense of our Predecessor through September 24, 2012. Subsequent to the IPO, income tax expense consists of the franchise tax
and the income tax expense of PropCo.
Components of income tax expense for fiscal years ended December 31, 2010 , December 31, 2011 , and December 31, 2012 are as
follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2011
Predecessor

December 31,
2010
Predecessor

December 31,
2012

(in thousands)

Current:
Federal
State
Total current income tax expense
Deferred:
Federal
State
Total deferred tax expense (benefit)

$

$

Net income tax expense
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6,527
236
6,763
(1,519)
(8)
(1,527)
5,236

$

$

4,524
265
4,789
1,245
5
1,250
6,039

$

$

2,321
284
2,605
2,416
12
2,428
5,033

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the effective tax rate for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2010 ,
December 31, 2011 , and December 31, 2012 are as follows:

December 31, 2010
Predecessor
(in
Tax
thousands)
Rate %
$
Tax at statutory federal rate
Partnership earnings not subject to tax
Corporate subsidiary earnings subject to tax
State and local tax, net of federal benefit
Other
$
Tax expense per financial statement

5,058
—
—
149
29
5,236

35.0% $
—%
—%
1.0%
0.2%
36.2% $

Year Ended
December 31, 2011
Predecessor
(in
Tax
thousands)
Rate %
5,823
—
—
176
40
6,039

December 31, 2012
(in
thousands)

35.0% $
—%
—%
1.0%
0.3%
36.3% $

Tax
Rate %

7,911
(3,281)
153
217
33
5,033

35.0 %
(14.5)%
0.7 %
1.0 %
0.1 %
22.3%

Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31, 2011
Predecessor

December 31, 2012

(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Environmental reserves
Intangible assets
Deferred revenue
Accrued bonuses
Net operating loss carry forwards
Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities:
Fixed assets
Prepaid assets
Other accruals and reserves
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred income tax assets (liabilities)
Current net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

$

$
$
$

Noncurrent net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

112
73
1,047
1,747
517
—
3,496

$

5,297
20
164
5,481
(1,985) $
610 $
(2,595) $

—
—
—
—
—
35
35
187
—
—
187
(152)
—
(152)

PropCo has net operating losses of $0.1 million as of December 31, 2012 . These losses expire as of 2032. We have determined that it is
more likely than not that all deferred tax assets will be realized, and have therefore determined that no valuation allowance is needed as of
December 31, 2010 , December 31, 2011 or December 31, 2012 .
Uncertain Tax Positions
It is our policy to recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in general and administrative expense. Interest and
penalties incurred by us have not been material in 2010 , 2011 or 2012 . Our Parent files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction,
Texas, Oklahoma, Louisiana and New Mexico. These returns are subject to examinations in all jurisdictions for all returns for the 2009 through
2012 tax years.
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As of December 31, 2012 , all tax positions taken by us are considered highly certain. There are no positions we reasonably anticipate
will significantly increase or decrease within 12 months of the reporting date, and therefore no adjustments have been recorded related to
unrecognized tax benefits.

17.

Equity

As of December 31, 2012 , SUSS owned 14,436 common units and 10,939,436 subordinated units, which together constitute a 50.1%
ownership interest in us. We issued 10,925,000 common units to the public in connection with our IPO.
Allocations of Net Income. Our partnership agreement contains provisions for the allocation of net income and loss to the unitholders. For
purposes of maintaining partner capital accounts, the partnership agreement specifies that items of income and loss shall be allocated among the
partners in accordance with their respective percentage interest. Normal allocations according to percentage interests are made after giving
effect, if any, to priority income allocations in an amount equal to incentive cash distributions allocated 100% to SUSS.
The calculation of net income allocated to the partners is as follows (in thousands, except per unit amounts):
Net Income Attributable to Susser Petroleum Partners LP Limited Partner Unit - Common Units
Year Ended December 31,
2012

Distributions (a)
Distributions in excess of net income

$

Limited partners' interest in net income subsequent to initial public offering

$

5,098
(523)
4,575

Net Income Attributable to Susser Petroleum Partners LP Limited Partner Unit - Subordinated Units
Year Ended December 31,
2012

Distributions (a)
Distributions in excess of net income

$

Limited partners' interest in net income subsequent to initial public offering

$

(a) Distributions declared per unit

5,098
(523)
4,575

$0.466

Incentive Distribution Rights . The following table illustrates the percentage allocations of available cash from operating surplus between
the unitholders and SUSS (in its capacity as the holder of our incentive distribution rights or "IDRs") based on the specified target distribution
levels. The amounts set forth under “marginal percentage interest in distributions” are the percentage interests of SUSS and the unitholders in
any available cash from operating surplus we distribute up to and including the corresponding amount in the column “total quarterly distribution
per unit target amount”. The percentage interests shown for our unitholders and SUSS for the minimum quarterly distribution are also applicable
to quarterly distribution amounts that are less than the minimum quarterly distribution. The percentage interests set forth below for SUSS assume
that there are no arrearages on common units and that SUSS continues to own all of the IDRs.
Marginal percentage interest in
distributions

Minimum Quarterly Distribution
First Target Distribution
Second Target Distribution
Third Target Distribution
Thereafter

Total quarterly distribution per unit target
amount
$
0.4375
Above $0.4375 up to $0.503125
Above $0.503125 up to $0.546875
Above $0.546875 up to $0.656250
Above $0.656250

Unitholders
100%
100%
85%
75%
50%

SUSS
—
—
15%
25%
50%

Cash distributions . Our partnership agreement, as amended, sets forth the calculation to be used to determine the amount and priority of
cash distributions that the common and subordinated unitholders will receive. In accordance with our partnership agreement, on November 5,
2012 , we declared a quarterly cash distribution totaling $624 thousand , or $0.0285 per
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unit. The quarterly cash distribution for the three months ended September 30, 2012 was calculated as the minimum quarterly cash distribution
of $0.4375 prorated for the period beginning September 25, 2012 , the date SUSP commenced operations. This distribution was paid on
November 29, 2012 to unitholders of record on November 19, 2012 . On February 7, 2013 , we declared a quarterly cash distribution totaling
$9.6 million , or $0.4375 per unit. The quarterly cash distribution for the three months ended December 31, 2012 was calculated as the minimum
quarterly distribution of $0.4375 . The distribution was paid on March 1, 2013 to unitholders of record on February 19, 2013 .

18.

Equity-Based Compensation

Unit-based compensation expense related to the Partnership and stock-based compensation expense allocated to our Predecessor that was
included in our condensed consolidated statements of operations was as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended
December 31, 2012
2011
2012
Predecessor
$
— $
101
707
810
$
707 $
911

Phantom common units
Predecessor allocated expense
Total equity-based compensation expense

Phantom Common Unit Awards. During the quarter, our general partner issued a total of 32,500 phantom unit awards to certain directors
and employees under the 2012 LTIP in connection with the closing of the IPO. Recipients have no distribution or voting rights on these units
until they vest. The fair value of each phantom unit on the grant date is equal to the market price of our common unit on that date. The estimated
fair value of our phantom units is amortized over the vesting period using the straight-line method. Non-employee director awards vest at the end
of a three -year period and employee awards vest ratably over a five -year service period. Total unrecognized compensation cost related to our
nonvested phantom units totaled $0.6 million as of December 31, 2012 , which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of
three years. The fair value of nonvested service phantom units outstanding as of December 31, 2012 , totaled $0.8 million .
A summary of our phantom unit award activity for the year ended December 31, 2012 , is set forth below:
Number of Phantom
Common Units
—
32,500
32,500

Nonvested at January 1, 2012
Granted
Nonvested at December 31, 2012

19.

Weighted-Average Grant
Date Fair Value
$
—
23.09
$
23.09

Net Income per Unit

Net income per unit applicable to limited partners (including subordinated unitholders) is computed by dividing limited partners' interest in
net income, after deducting any incentive distributions, by the weighted-average number of outstanding common and subordinated units. Our net
income is allocated to the limited partners in accordance with their respective partnership percentages, after giving effect to priority income
allocations for incentive distributions, if any, to SUSS, the holder of the IDRs, pursuant to our partnership agreement, which are declared and
paid following the close of each quarter. Net income per unit is only calculated for the Partnership after the IPO as no units were outstanding
prior to September 25, 2012 . Earnings in excess of distributions are allocated to the limited partners based on their respective ownership
interests. Payments made to our unitholders are determined in relation to actual distributions declared and are not based on the net income
allocations used in the calculation of net income per unit. As of December 31, 2012 , the weighted-average number of units outstanding equals
the total number of units outstanding.
In addition to the common and subordinated units, we have also identified the IDRs as participating securities and use the two-class
method when calculating the net income per unit applicable to limited partners, which is based on the weighted-average number of common
units outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per unit includes the effects of potentially dilutive units on our common units, consisting
of unvested phantom units. Basic and diluted net income per unit applicable to subordinated limited partners are the same because there are no
potentially dilutive subordinated units outstanding.
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We also disclose limited partner units issued and outstanding. There have been no additional changes to the outstanding shares after the
closing of the IPO.

Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands, except units
and per unit amounts)

Net income subsequent to initial public offering
Less: General partner's interest in net income subsequent to initial public offering

$

Limited partners' interest in net income subsequent to initial public offering

$

Weighted average limited partner units outstanding:
Common - basic
Common - equivalents

9,150
—
9,150

Common - diluted

10,939,436
3,723
10,943,159

Subordinated - SUSS (basic and diluted)

10,939,436

Net income per limited partner unit:
Common - basic
Common - diluted
Subordinated - SUSS (basic and diluted)

$
$
$
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0.42
0.42
0.42

20.

Quarterly Results of Operations (unaudited)

The following table sets forth certain unaudited financial and operating data for each quarter during 2010 , 2011 and 2012 . The
unaudited quarterly information includes all normal recurring adjustments that we consider necessary for a fair presentation of the information
shown.
2010
1st
QTR

2nd
QTR

2011
3rd
QTR

4th
QTR

1st
QTR

2nd
QTR

Predecessor

2012 (a)
3rd
QTR

4th
QTR

1st
QTR

2nd
QTR

3rd
QTR

4th
QTR

Predecessor
(dollars and gallons in thousands)

Motor fuel
sales
Rental and
Other
income
Total
revenue

Motor fuel
gross profit
Other gross
profit
Total gross
profit

Income from
operations

Net income

Limited
partners
interest in
net income
subsequent
to IPO:
Net income
per limited
Partner unit:
(c)
Common
(basic and
diluted)
Subordinated
(basic and
diluted)

Fuel gallons

Motor fuel
margin third party
(b)

$637,813 $687,053 $639,623 $708,437 $848,719 $1,008,380 $987,738 $962,094 $1,069,244 $1,083,470 $1,106,118 $1,005,948
2,498

2,353

2,603

3,412

3,011

2,966

4,125

3,345

3,409

3,041

3,499

2,611

640,311

689,406

642,226

711,849

851,730

1,011,346

991,863

965,439

1,072,653

1,086,511

1,109,617

1,008,559

5,210

7,330

7,277

6,248

6,217

9,841

7,720

7,439

7,112

11,570

9,799

12,591

2,207

2,183

2,489

3,155

2,617

2,348

3,816

3,025

2,771

2,610

3,029

2,020

7,417

9,513

9,766

9,403

8,834

12,189

11,536

10,464

9,883

14,180

12,828

14,611

2,341

4,120

4,390

3,885

3,006

5,600

5,002

3,353

2,734

5,897

5,469

9,312

2,761 $

2,420 $ 1,861 $

1,674 $

3,703 $

3,617 $

8,576

$ 1,447 $ 2,588 $

3,527 $ 3,136 $ 2,074 $

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

574

8,576

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

0.03

0.39

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

0.03

0.39

300,962

315,312

307,771

309,268

311,098

322,641

330,903

347,768

351,368

369,028

367,362

362,188

4.3¢

5.7¢

6.0¢

5.1¢

5.1¢

7.7¢

5.9¢

5.2¢

5.0¢

7.5¢

6.3¢

4.5¢

(a) The information presented includes the results of operations of Predecessor for periods presented through September 24, 2012 and of SUSP for the period
beginning September 25, 2012, the date SUSP commenced operations.
(b) Excludes the impact of motor fuel sold to affiliates.
(c) Net income per unit is only calculated for the Partnership after the IPO as no units were outstanding prior to September 25, 2012.
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Filed herewith.

** Filed herewith. Pursuant to SEC Release No. 33-8212, this certification will be treated as “accompanying” this Annual Report on Form 10K and not “filed” as part of such report for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act, as
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amended, or otherwise subject to the liability of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act, as amended, and this certification will not be
deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Exchange Act of 1933, as amended, except to the extent that the
registrant specifically incorporates it by reference.
+

Confidential treatment has been granted with respect to portions of this exhibit.

(1) Incorporated by reference to the current report on Form 8-K filed by the registrant on September 25, 2012.
(2) Incorporated by reference to the registration statement on Form S-1 (Registration Number 333-182276), as amended, originally filed by the
registrant on June 22, 2012.
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LEASE AGREEMENT
THIS LEASE AND AGREEMENT (the “ Lease ”) is made and entered into effective as of the _______ day of
________________, 20_____ by and between SUSSER PETROLEUM PROPERTY COMPANY LLC , a Delaware
limited liability company (the “ Landlord ”), and STRIPES LLC , a Texas limited liability company ( the “ Tenant ”).
W I T N E S SE T H:
WHEREAS, Tenant or Tenant's affiliate is the owner of fee simple title to certain real property located in the
City of __________, County of _________, State of Texas and described in Exhibit A attached hereto (the “ Land ” )
upon which a building has been constructed, together with related site improvements including: (i) the Storage Tank
System as defined in Section 4.5 of this Lease, (ii) canopies on the pump islands, and (iii) the car wash, if any, located
in, on or under the Land (collectively, the “ Improvements ”) (the Land and the Improvements, together with all
licenses, rights, privileges and easements appurtenant thereto shall be collectively referred to herein as the “ Premises
”);
WHEREAS, simultaneously with the date of this Lease Tenant or Tenant's affiliate has conveyed the Premises to
Landlord; and
WHEREAS, Tenant desires to lease back from Landlord, and Landlord has agreed to lease back to Tenant, the
Premises upon the terms and conditions as more particularly hereinafter provided and described;
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises hereof, the sums of money to be paid hereunder,
and the mutual and reciprocal obligations undertaken herein, the parties hereto do hereby covenant, stipulate and agree
as follows:
ARTICLE I.
AGREEMENT TO LEASE
1.1
Demise. Landlord does hereby demise, let and lease unto Tenant, and Tenant does hereby hire, lease and
take as Tenant from Landlord the entire Premises upon those terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.
1.2 Condition . Tenant acknowledges and agrees that the Premises is and shall be leased by Landlord to Tenant
in its present “as is” condition and that Landlord makes absolutely no representations or warranties whatsoever with
respect to the Premises or the condition thereof. Tenant acknowledges that Landlord has not investigated and does not
warrant or represent to Tenant that the Premises is fit for the purposes intended by Tenant or for any other purpose or
purposes whatsoever, and Tenant acknowledges that the Premises is to be leased to Tenant in its existing condition, i.e.,
“as-is”, on and as of the Effective Date. Tenant acknowledges that Tenant shall be solely responsible for any and all
actions, repairs, permits, approvals and costs required for the rehabilitation, renovation, use, occupancy and operation of
the Premises in accordance with applicable governmental requirements, including, without limitation, all governmental
charges and fees, if any, which may be due or payable to applicable authorities. Tenant agrees that, by leasing the
Premises, Tenant warrants and represents that Tenant has
1
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examined and approved all things concerning the Premises which Tenant deems material to Tenant's leasing and use of
the Premises. Tenant further acknowledges and agrees that (a) neither Landlord nor any agent of Landlord has made any
representation or warranty, express or implied, concerning the Premises or which have induced Tenant to execute this
Lease except as contained in this Lease, and (b) any other representations and warranties are expressly disclaimed by
Landlord.
1.3 Quiet Enjoyment . Landlord covenants and agrees that so long as Tenant shall timely pay all rents due to
Landlord from Tenant hereunder and keep, observe and perform all covenants, promises and agreements on Tenant's
part to be kept, observed and performed hereunder, Tenant shall and may peacefully and quietly have, hold and occupy
the Premises free of any interference from Landlord; subject, however, and nevertheless to the terms, provisions and
conditions of this Lease.
ARTICLE II.
TERM
2.1 Term . The initial term of this Lease (the “ Initial Term ”) shall, unless sooner terminated as elsewhere
provided in this Lease, commence on the Effective Date and shall terminate and expire at 11:59 p.m. on the date
immediately preceding the fifteenth (15 th ) anniversary of the Effective Date. The Initial Term, together with any
properly exercised Option Period (defined in Section 2.4 below) shall be collectively referred to herein as the “ Term ”.
2.2 Rental Commencement Date . For the purposes of this Lease, the “ Rental Commencement Date ” shall
be the Effective Date hereof.
2.3 Effective Date . For the purposes of this Lease, the “ Effective Date ” shall be the date set forth in the first
paragraph of this Lease.
2.4 Option to Renew . Tenant shall have and is hereby granted five (5) options (individually an “ Option ”) to
extend this Lease beyond the Initial Term for an additional period of five (5) years each (individually an “ Option
Period ”), upon the same terms, covenants, conditions and rental as set forth herein. Tenant may exercise each such
Option successively by giving written notice to Landlord not less than six (6) months prior to the expiration of the Initial
Term of this Lease or expiration of the then current Option Period, as applicable (the “ Option Notice ”).
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant shall not be entitled to extend the Term of this Lease if, at the time of exercise of
an Option, an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing. If Tenant does not elect to extend, or shall not be entitled
pursuant to the preceding sentence to extend the Term of this Lease for an additional Option Period, all remaining rights
of renewal shall automatically expire.
2.5 Termination . Notwithstanding any present or future law to the contrary, this Lease shall not be terminated
by Tenant for any failure of Landlord to perform pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Lease or otherwise for any
reason except as expressly provided herein.
2
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ARTICLE III.
RENT
3.1 Base Rent . Beginning on the Rental Commencement Date, and subject to proration as set forth below,
Tenant shall pay annual base rent for the Premises during the Initial Term in equal monthly installments of
__________________________ Dollars ($___________) (“ Base Rent ”), together with any sales and use taxes
thereon, if any are ever imposed in the State where the Premises is located. Such Base Rent shall be paid in advance, on
the first (1st) day of each calendar month commencing on the first (1st) day of the calendar month immediately
following the Rental Commencement Date, it being agreed that Base Rent payable with respect to the period between
the Rental Commencement Date and the first day of the following calendar month shall be due at the time that the first
payment of Base Rent is due.
For the purposes of this Lease, the term “ Lease Year ” shall mean and be defined as each twelve month period
commencing on the first day of the calendar month immediately following the Rental Commencement Date; provided,
however, that the first Lease Year shall include the period from the Rental Commencement Date to the first day of the
next following calendar month after the Rental Commencement Date. Base Rent shall be proportionately prorated for
any extended or partial Lease Year (i.e., the first Lease Year and/or the final Lease Year).
3.2

Rent Increases . The Base Rent during the Term shall be calculated as follows:

(a)
The Base Rent during the first Option Period shall be increased on the first day of the
first Option Period by fifteen percent (15%).
(b)
The Base Rent during each of the second through fifth Option Periods shall be
increased on the first day of each Option Period by five percent (5%).
3.3 Additional Rent; Rent Defined . If Landlord shall make any expenditure for which Tenant is responsible or
liable under this Lease, or if Tenant shall become obligated to Landlord under this Lease for any sum other than Base
Rent or as hereinabove provided, the amount thereof shall be deemed to constitute additional rent (“ Additional Rent ”)
and shall be due and payable by Tenant to Landlord, together with all applicable sales taxes thereon, if any,
simultaneously with the next succeeding monthly installment of Base Rent or at such other time as may be expressly
provided in this Lease for the payment of the same.
For the purpose of this Lease, the term “ Rent ” shall mean and be defined as all Base Rent and Additional Rent
due from Tenant to Landlord hereunder.
3.4 Payment of Rent . Each of the foregoing amounts of Rent and other sums shall be paid to Landlord without
demand and without deduction, set-off, claim or counterclaim of any nature whatsoever which Tenant may have or
allege to have against Landlord, and all such payments shall, upon receipt by Landlord, be and remain the sole and
absolute property of Landlord. All such Rent and other sums shall be paid to Landlord in legal tender of the United
States at the address to which notices to Landlord are to be given or to such other party or to such other address as
Landlord may designate from time to time by written notice to Tenant. If Landlord shall at any time accept any such
Rent or other sums after the same shall become due and payable, such acceptance shall not excuse a delay upon
subsequent occasions, or constitute
3
Store No. _____; _____________

or be construed as a waiver of any of Landlord's rights hereunder. At the request of Landlord, Tenant shall pay Base
Rent and any Additional Rent hereunder by electronic funds transfer or by wire, provided Landlord provides to Tenant
appropriate wire instructions or electronic transfer instructions.
3.5 Past Due Rent . If Tenant fails to make any payment of Rent or any other sums or amounts to be paid by
Tenant within five (5) days of the date such payment is due and payable, Tenant shall pay to Landlord an administrative
late charge of two and one-half percent (2.5%) of the amount of such payment. In addition, any past due payment of
Rent shall bear interest from the date such payment became due to the date of payment thereof by Tenant at a rate which
is equal to the lesser of (i) twelve percent (12%) per annum, or (ii) the maximum interest rate then allowable under the
laws of the State in which the Premises is located. Such late charge and interest shall constitute Additional Rent and
shall be due and payable with the next installment of Rent due hereunder.
3.6 No Diminution or Abatement of Rent . No abatement, diminution or reduction (i) of Rent, charges or other
compensation, or (ii) of Tenant's other obligations hereunder shall be allowed to Tenant or any person claiming under
Tenant, under any circumstances or for any reason whatsoever, except as expressly provided otherwise herein.
ARTICLE IV.
USE AND OPERATION OF PREMISES
4.1 Permitted Use . Tenant covenants that it shall, throughout the Term of this Lease, use and occupy the
Premises only for lawful purposes which do not conflict with covenants, restrictions or other matters of record affecting
title to the Premises; notwithstanding the foregoing provision however, the following uses shall be prohibited on the
Premises:
(a)
Any obnoxious odor, noise or sound which can be heard or smelled outside of the Building,
provided that any usual paging system shall be allowed and further provided that typical restaurant odors shall not be
deemed prohibited hereby if such restaurant facilities have been properly constructed and maintained so as not to pollute.
(b)
Any operation primarily used as a warehouse operation and any assembling, manufacturing,
distilling, refining, smelting, agricultural or mining operation.
(c)
Any mobile home, trailer court, labor camp, junk yard or stock yard (except that this provision
shall not prohibit the temporary use of construction trailers during periods of construction, reconstruction or
maintenance).
(d)
Any dumping, disposing, incineration or reduction of garbage (exclusive of garbage
compactors located in the rear or side of any building).
(e)
Any establishment which has as its principal business the selling or exhibiting of pornographic
materials, including, without limitation any adult book or film store and any adult entertainment nightclub.
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(f)

Any so called “head shop” engaged primarily in the sale of rolling paper and other drug

paraphernalia.
4.2

Reserved .

4.3 Compliance With Laws . Tenant shall at all times keep and maintain the Premises in compliance with all
applicable laws, ordinances, statutes, rules, regulations, orders, directions and requirements of all federal, state, county
and municipal governments and of all other governmental agencies or authorities having or claiming jurisdiction over
the Premises or the business activities conducted thereon or therein and of all of their respective departments, bureaus,
agencies or officers, and of any insurance underwriting board or insurance inspection bureau having or claiming such
jurisdiction or any other body exercising similar functions and of all insurance companies from time to time selected by
Tenant to write policies of insurance covering the Premises and any business or business activity conducted thereon or
therein. However, notwithstanding the foregoing, should there be a de minimis issue of non-compliance with applicable
law which does not have a material adverse effect on the Premises, Tenant shall not be obligated to correct such de
minimis violation but Tenant shall have the indemnity obligations set forth in Section 18.2 with respect to any such de
minimis violation, including indemnity against any fines or penalties imposed against the Premises as a result of such de
minimis violations, if any.
Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing, but subject to the proviso set forth in the last sentence of the
preceding paragraph, Tenant shall, at its sole expense, maintain the Premises in full compliance with all applicable
federal, state or municipal laws, ordinances, rules and regulations currently in existence or hereafter enacted or rendered
governing accessibility for the disabled or handicapped, including, but not limited to, any applicable provisions of The
Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, The Rehabilitation Act of 1973, The Americans With Disabilities Act, the
accessibility code(s), if any, of the State in which the Premises is located, and all regulations and guidelines promulgated
under any of the foregoing, as the same may be amended from time to time (collectively the “ Accessibility Laws ”).
4.4 Compliance With Restrictions, Etc . Tenant, at its expense, shall comply with all restrictive covenants or
other title exceptions affecting the Premises and comply with and perform all of the obligations set forth therein to the
extent that the same are applicable to the Premises or to the extent that the same, if not complied with or performed,
would impair or prevent the continued use, occupancy and operation of the Premises. Further, in addition to Tenant's
payment obligations under this Lease, Tenant shall pay (i) all sums charged, levied or assessed under any restrictive
covenants, declaration, reciprocal easement agreement or other title exceptions affecting the Premises promptly as the
same become due and shall furnish Landlord evidence of payment thereof, and (ii) any fees, charges, fines, costs,
assessments, taxes, demands, orders, directives, or other requirements by any governmental agency asserting
jurisdiction, or under any Environmental Laws which arise from or relate to Tenant's use of, or Tenant's activities at, the
Premises, including, but not limited to, Storage Tank System registration fees, any applicable fees, and any consultant or
attorneys' fees related to or arising under any Environmental Laws.
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4.5

Hazardous Materials and Sewage .
(a)
Definitions . The following terms shall have the following meanings:

(i)
“ De Minimis Release ” shall mean a Release which is (i) not reportable under any
governmental authority under any applicable Environmental Laws, or (ii) not above action levels established by TCEQ.
(ii)
“ Environmental Laws or Environmental Requirements ” , as used herein, shall
mean all applicable federal, state, and local government laws (including common law), rules, regulations, statutes, codes,
ordinances, directives, guidance documents, cleanup or other standards, and any other governmental requirements or
standards which pertain to, regulate, or impose liability or standards of conduct concerning the use, storage, human
exposure to, handling, transportation, release, cleanup or disposal of Hazardous Materials.
(iii)
“ Hazardous Materials ” shall mean and be defined as any and all toxic or hazardous
substances, chemicals, materials or pollutants, of any kind or nature, which are regulated, governed, restricted or
prohibited by any federal, state or local law, decision, statute, rule, or ordinance currently in existence or hereafter
enacted or rendered, and shall include (without limitation), all oil, gasoline and petroleum based substances.
(iv)

“ Material Release ” shall mean any Release other than a De Minimis Release.

(v)
“ Pre-Existing Environmental Condition ” means presence of: (i) Hazardous
Materials in soil, groundwater or surface water on or about the Premises which first existed or first occurred prior to the
Effective Date; or (ii) any other environmental condition which first existed or first occurred prior to the Effective Date.
(vi)
“ Release ” shall mean any spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting, emptying,
discharging, injecting, escaping, leaching, dumping, or disposing into the environment any Hazardous Materials on,
over, under, from or affecting the Premises or the air, soil, water vegetation, buildings, personal property, persons or
animals thereon, whether occurring before or during the Term of this Lease.
(vii)
“ Storage Tank System ” means a complex of one or more underground or
aboveground storage tanks and their associated underground, above ground, and/or connected piping and related fuel
dispensing, pumping, mechanical, control and detectional equipment, as more particularly located on the Land.
(b)
Environmental Compliance . Tenant shall comply with all laws, including
Environmental Laws, relating to the use, storage, transportation, dispensing, sale or Release of Hazardous Materials at
the Premises, except for any noncompliance of a de minimis nature or for which the result of noncompliance would not
have a material adverse effect on the Premises. Without limiting the foregoing, Tenant shall comply with all laws,
including Environmental Laws, relating to Storage Tank Systems, their construction, operation, maintenance, calibration
and alarm systems, and promptly shall implement any and all upgrade requirements promulgated by any government
agency having jurisdiction at the earliest possible time, but in no event, no
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later than any applicable deadline announced or promulgated by the government agency. Tenant shall not intentionally
Release, and shall use commercially reasonable efforts to prevent any employee, contractor, agent, sublessee, invitee or
licensee from Releasing, any Hazardous Materials on the Premises, into the air or the surrounding land, surface water or
ground water; provided, however, a De Minimis Release on the Premises shall not be a violation of or a default of
Tenant under the Lease (but Tenant shall have the remediation and indemnity obligations set forth in Section 4.5(c) and
4.5(d) below). Tenant shall provide Landlord with copies of all reports, studies, complaints, claims, directives, citations,
demands, inquiries, notices of violation, or orders relating to Hazardous Materials at or emanating from or to the
Premises, at any time, or any alleged non-compliance with Environmental Laws at the Premises, reasonably promptly
(and in no event later than fifteen (15) days) after such documents are provided to or generated by Tenant. Tenant also
shall notify Landlord of any Material Release of Hazardous Materials at, on, under or from the Premises promptly upon
notification of Tenant thereof, and promptly shall abate and remove any such Releases as required in this Article. A
Material Release in and of itself shall not be a violation of or a default under this Lease, unless such Material Release
shall result from the intentional acts of Tenant or from Tenant's failure to use commercially reasonable efforts to prevent
any employee, contractor, agent, lessee, invitee or licensee from Releasing, any Hazardous Materials on the Premises,
into the air or the surrounding land, surface water or ground water; provided, however, Tenant's failure to respond or
take action after a Material Release as otherwise required in this Lease shall be a default hereunder. Any fuel spills
immediately shall be removed and cleaned up using absorbent or other appropriate materials. All reporting, investigation
and/or remediation requirements under any Environmental Law with respect to any and all Releases of Hazardous
Materials at, on, from or near the Premises are the responsibility of Tenant.
(c)
Tenant's Responsibility for Hazardous Materials . Hazardous Materials at the Premises
shall be the responsibility of Tenant and Tenant shall be liable for and responsible for such Hazardous Materials,
including without limitation, at Tenant's sole cost (i) any Pre-Existing Environmental Condition (provided, however, that
Tenant represents that based on the environmental information in Tenant's files, there are no known Pre-Existing
Environmental Conditions on the date of this Lease, and based on such information, the possibility of such a PreExisting Environmental Condition is remote); (ii) permitting, reporting, assessment, testing, investigation, treatment,
removal, remediation, transportation and disposal of such Hazardous Materials as directed by any governmental agency,
as required by Environmental Laws; (iii) damages, costs, expenditures and claims for injury to persons, property, the
Premises and surrounding air, land, surface water, and ground water resulting from such Hazardous Materials; (iv)
claims by any governmental agency or third party associated with injury to surrounding air, land, surface water and
ground water or other damage resulting from such Hazardous Materials; (v) damages for injury to the buildings, fixtures,
appurtenances, equipment and other personal property of Landlord to the extent caused by such Hazardous Materials;
(vi) fines, costs, fees, assessments, taxes, demands, orders, directives or any other requirements imposed in any manner
by any governmental agency asserting jurisdiction, or under any Environmental Laws with respect to such Hazardous
Materials; (vii) damages, costs and expenditures for injury to natural resources to the extent caused by such Hazardous
Materials as directed by any governmental agency or otherwise as required by applicable law, including Environmental
Laws; (viii) compliance with Environmental Laws regarding the use, storage, transportation, release, disposal,
dispensing or sale of Hazardous Materials; and (ix) any other liability or obligation
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related to such Hazardous Materials. Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.5(f) below, Landlord is not required to
incur any costs, fees (including attorney, consultant and expert witness fees) or expenses for environmental compliance,
testing, investigation, assessment, remediation or cleanup relating to Hazardous Materials, and should Landlord incur
any such reasonable costs, expenses or fees relating to Hazardous Materials at the Premises or surrounding lands or
surface water or ground water, Tenant shall promptly reimburse Landlord for said costs, expenses or fees (except to the
extent such costs, fees or expenses arise from other property owned by Landlord, if any).
(d)
Tenant's Environmental Indemnification . Tenant shall indemnify, defend, and hold Landlord
harmless from any and all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs, liabilities, or losses (including, without
limitation, diminution in value of the Premises, damages for the loss or restriction on use of rentable or usable space or
of any amenity of the Premises, damages arising from any adverse impact on marketing of space of the Premises, and
sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys' fees, consultation fees, and expert fees) which arise before, or during the
term of the Lease as a result of Hazardous Materials (provided, however, that Tenant represents that based on the
environmental information in Tenant's files, there are no known Pre-Existing Environmental Conditions on the date of
this Lease, and based on such information, the possibility of such a Pre-Existing Environmental Condition is remote).
This indemnification of Landlord by Tenant includes, without limitation, costs incurred in connection with any
investigation or site conditions or any cleanup, remedial, removal, or restoration work required by any federal, state, or
local governmental agency or political subdivision because of Hazardous Materials present in the soil or ground water
on or under the Premises. Without limiting the foregoing, if the presence of any Hazardous Materials on the Premises
results in any contamination of the Premises, Tenant shall promptly take all actions at its sole expense as are
recommended by environmental consultants of Tenant and are necessary to return the Premises to the condition required
by the appropriate governmental authority; provided that Landlord's approval of such actions shall first be obtained,
which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld so long as such actions would not potentially have any material
adverse long-term or short-term effect on the Premises. Should Tenant obtain a “no further action” closure letter or
similar evidence of the completion of remediation from TCEQ (an “ NFA Letter ”) Tenant shall have no obligation to
further remediate the Premises, but Tenant shall continue to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Landlord for any
claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs, liabilities, or losses as more particularly set forth in the beginning of
this paragraph. Notwithstanding the foregoing, as more particularly provided for in Section 4.6(b), upon the end of the
Lease Term, should Tenant obtain an NFA Letter, Tenant's indemnity obligations under this subsection shall be
modified as more particularly set forth in Section 4.6(b).
(e)
Tenant's Notification Obligation . Tenant promptly shall notify Landlord of any of the
following: (i) any correspondence or communication from any governmental entity regarding the application of
Environmental Laws to the Premises or Tenant's operation of the Premises, if such communication would enlarge or
materially change or has the potential to materially change Tenant's or Landlord's obligations or liabilities under the
Environmental Laws; (ii) any correspondence, communication or notifications as are required by either the Federal or
State Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Acts if such communication would enlarge or materially
change or has the potential to materially change Tenant's or Landlord's obligations or liabilities under the Environmental
Laws; (iii) any material
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change in Tenant's operations on the Premises that will enlarge or materially change or has the potential to materially
change Tenant's obligations or liabilities under the Environmental Laws; (iv) any Material Release or suspected Material
Releases of any and all Hazardous Materials at, from or near the Premises. In addition, within thirty (30) days of
Landlord's written request, Tenant shall provide to Landlord a copy of Tenant's “ Leaseback Environmental Status
Report ” or a similar report if such report is no longer created by Tenant, which describes all testing and test results of
the Premises during the prior year. Such request of Tenant shall not be made by Landlord more than twice in any
calendar year.
(f)
Landlord's Right of Entry . If there has been a Material Release, at Landlord's sole
expense and sole discretion, Landlord may enter upon the Premises (without interfering with Tenant's business and
operations on the Premises) and make any inspection, tests, borings, measurements, investigation or assessment
Landlord deems necessary in the exercise of its reasonable judgment in order to determine the presence of Hazardous
Materials. Provided, however, that Landlord shall not conduct any soil borings or other invasive testing procedures
unless there has been a Material Release or Landlord has a reasonable basis to suspect there has been a Material Release
on the Premises. Landlord shall select a qualified environmental consultant to complete such tasks and shall not conduct
any such inspections or other activities described herein without consulting and coordinating such efforts with the
Tenant's environmental team. Nothing herein shall be deemed to require Landlord to conduct any such testing,
measurement, investigation or assessment. Landlord shall give Tenant a minimum of five (5) days written notice prior to
conducting any such inspection, tests, borings, measurements, investigation or assessment, so that Tenant may have the
opportunity to be present and to receive split test samples and/or to observe such testing. Landlord agrees to consult with
and coordinate such actions with Tenant's environmental team. In conducting any such inspections, and testing,
Landlord shall not unduly interrupt or interfere with the conduct of Tenant's business. Notwithstanding any other
provisions of this Lease to the contrary, Landlord shall be solely responsible for any costs, claims, damages, expenses or
liabilities that arise as a result of Landlord's inspections and testing to the extent attributable to the negligence or
misconduct of Landlord or Landlord's agents. Provided, however, no notice from Landlord to Tenant shall be required
under urgent or emergency conditions. Tenant shall be provided with a copy of each report setting forth the results of
any test performed by Landlord promptly upon receipt. Landlord's right of entry and inspection shall include the right to
inspect Tenant's records required to be maintained pursuant to Environmental Laws.
(g)
Tenant's Environmental Records . Landlord shall have the right to require Tenant to
provide to Landlord access to Tenant's file with respect to environmental matters affecting the Premises upon two (2)
business days prior written notice. Upon such request, not to be made more than once in any calendar year, Tenant shall
provide a copy of all new correspondence, reports and other written material in Tenant's environmental file for the
Premises.
4.6

Resolution of Environmental Matters at Expiration or Termination of Tenancy .

(a)
Tenancy Close-Out Environmental Assessment and Report . Not later than (i) thirty
(30) days prior to the expiration of the Lease or (ii) ninety (90) days after an earlier termination of the tenancy,
whichever may apply, Tenant shall submit to the Landlord (i) a copy
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of all of Tenant's records relating to obligations under this Article IV, and (ii) a report of any environmental assessment
pursuant to ASTM and/or prevailing industry standards, conducted by a qualified, and adequately insured consultant
firm, to (1) identify and assess the presence of Hazardous Materials on, in, at, and, where information indicates
migration of Hazardous Materials off site and it is practical to do so, off site of the Premises; (2) all records relating to
the determination of the integrity and tightness of all Storage Tank Systems on the Premises; and (3) determine any
needed remedial actions needed or pending regulatory obligations performance or resolution of which is required to
comply with Environmental Laws or restore the Premises as set forth in this Section 4.6. Tenant shall update and
supplement such report as needed through the date of the end of the tenancy to reflect any change in conditions or new
information pertaining to the methodology or findings of the report. Tenant shall not be in default under this Lease for
failure to complete the matters in this paragraph if Tenant is actively and diligently pursuing such matters.
(b)
Remedial and Corrective Actions; Closure of Storage Tank Systems : Not later than
(i) the expiration of the Lease, (ii) six (6) months after the earlier termination of the Lease, (iii) or such longer time as is
approved in writing by Governmental Authorities, if any is required, or as may be necessary to complete such corrective
action in compliance with Governmental Authorities, and in any event, as consented to by Landlord, which consent shall
not be unreasonably withheld, Tenant shall provide Landlord with written evidence and assurances that, as of the date of
the end of the tenancy, or as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter, the Premises and any Storage Tank Systems left at
the Premises comply (or will comply if any remediation is required) with all Environmental Laws and, where applicable,
any required regulatory closures or NFA Letter have been obtained. Upon delivery of the evidence required hereunder,
Tenant shall no longer have any indemnity obligations under this Lease with respect to any new suit or claim brought
against Landlord or the Premises after the end of the Term regarding any Release that occurred on the Premises during
the Term.
4.7
Right to Contest . Tenant may, at its sole cost and expense, contest, or cause to be contested, by
appropriate legal proceedings conducted in good faith and with due diligence, the application of laws, ordinances,
statutes or regulations to the Premises, including the application of Environmental Laws or Environmental Requirements
to the Premises, provided Tenant indemnifies and holds Landlord harmless from any expenses (including reasonable
attorney's fees) or liability arising out of such contest, and posts any bond or security required by law in connection with
such contest.
4.8 Sewage . Tenant shall not discharge or permit to be discharged from the Premises any sewage other than
that which is normal waste water for the business conducted by Tenant on, in or from the Premises. Any sewage which
is produced or generated in connection with the use or operation of the Premises shall be handled and disposed of by
Tenant as required by and in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, ordinances and rules or
regulations.
4.9 Survival . The provisions of this Article IV shall survive expiration or termination of the tenancy but
nothing herein shall obligate Tenant for any environmental conditions first existing on the Premises after the date of
expiration or termination of Tenant's tenancy hereunder.
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ARTICLE V.
TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS
5.1 Real Estate Taxes and Assessments . From and after the Effective Date and continuing throughout the
Term of this Lease Tenant's obligations with respect to Real Estate Taxes (as hereinafter defined) shall be as follows:
(a)
As used herein, " Real Estate Taxes " shall mean all taxes, assessments and other
governmental impositions and charges of every kind and nature whatsoever, extraordinary as well as ordinary, and each
and every installment thereof which during the Term hereof or prior to the Term of the Lease shall be or have been
charged, laid, levied, assessed, or imposed upon, or arise in connection with, the use, occupancy or possession of the
Premises or any part thereof, including, without limitation, ad valorem real and personal property taxes, and all taxes
charged, laid, levied, assessed or imposed in lieu of or in addition to any of the foregoing by virtue of all present or
future laws, ordinances, requirements, orders, directions, rules or regulations of federal, state, county and municipal
governments and of all other governmental authorities whatsoever.
Tenant shall pay directly to the taxing authorities all Real Estate Taxes on or before the date
(b)
such Real Estate Taxes are due and payable. Landlord, with Tenant's cooperation, shall cause the taxing authorities to
deliver all bills for Real Estate Taxes directly to Tenant or should any taxing authority refuse to deliver a tax bill directly
to Tenant, Landlord shall deliver said tax bill to Tenant no later than twenty (20) days after receipt from the taxing
authority. Upon written request from Landlord, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord evidence of the payment of the Real
Estate Taxes for the calendar year no later than twenty (20) days after the date Tenant has paid the Real Estate Taxes.
(c)

Reserved .

(d)
Landlord agrees that Tenant has the first right to manage and conduct all negotiations of the
Real Estate Taxes and shall also have the right to contest the validity or the amount of any Real Estate Taxes by such
appellate or other proceedings as may be appropriate in the jurisdiction, and may, if applicable, defer payment of such
obligations if payment would operate as a bar to such contest, and, if applicable, pay same under protest, or take such
other steps as Tenant may deem appropriate, provided, however, that Tenant indemnifies Landlord from any expense
(including reasonable attorney's fees) or liability arising out of such contest, pursues such contest in good faith and with
due diligence, posts any bond or security required by law in connection with such contest, gives Landlord written notice
of its intention to contest, and takes no action which shall cause or allow the institution of any foreclosure proceedings or
similar action against the Premises. Landlord shall, at Tenant's expense, cooperate in the institution and prosecution of
any such proceedings initiated by Tenant, if so requested by Tenant, and shall execute any documents which Landlord
may reasonably be required to execute and shall make any appearances which Landlord may reasonably be required to
make in connection with such proceedings. Further provided, that if Landlord receives any letters or communications
from any taxing entity regarding the purchase price of the Premises paid by Landlord, or any other purchaser, or any
request or information regarding the appraisal of the Premises, Landlord shall promptly forward such communications to
Tenant for Tenant to
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respond. Landlord agrees not to respond directly to such requests, but rather to forward all such requests to Tenant.
(e)
If Tenant elects not to institute proceedings to contest the validity or the amount of any Real
Estate Taxes, Landlord may do so, after giving Tenant fifteen (15) days prior written notice, and Tenant shall cooperate
and shall make any appearances which Tenant may reasonably be required to make in such proceedings but shall not be
obligated to incur any expense in connection therewith; provided, however, that Landlord pursues such contest in good
faith and with due diligence and Landlord shall take no action which shall cause or allow the institution of any
foreclosure proceedings or similar action against the Premises which might result in the termination of this Lease.
Should any of the proceedings referred to in the preceding two paragraphs (d) and (e) of this
(f)
Section 5.1 result in reducing the total annual Real Estate Taxes, Tenant shall be entitled to receive all refunds by the
taxing authorities attributable to the Premises for any period for which Tenant has paid Real Estate Taxes after deducting
therefrom payment of all of the reasonable expenses incurred by Landlord and Tenant, if any, incurred in any such
proceeding in which a refund is paid. If no refund shall be secured in any such proceeding, the party instituting the
proceeding shall bear the entire cost, or if Landlord institutes the proceeding at Tenant's request, Tenant shall bear the
entire cost.
Except for Real Estate Taxes, nothing in this Article 5 shall require Tenant to pay or reimburse
(g)
Landlord for the payment of (i) any income, profit, inheritance, estate, succession, gift, franchise, margin or transfer
taxes which are or may be imposed upon Landlord, its successors or assigns, by whatever authority imposed or however
designated, (ii) any tax imposed upon the sale of all or a part of the Premises by Landlord, or (iii) any tax, assessment,
charge or levy imposed or levied upon or assessed against any property of Landlord other than the Premises or any
income to, or business activity of, Landlord not in connection with the Premises. Nothing herein shall require Tenant to
pay or reimburse Landlord for the payment of any tax if Tenant's payment of such tax or reimbursement of Landlord for
the payment of such tax would violate any applicable law.
(h)
Tenant shall pay and discharge, when due, all taxes assessed during the Term of this Lease
against any leasehold interest or personal property of any kind owned by or placed in the Premises by Tenant. In
addition to the Rent and any other sums or amounts required to be paid by Tenant to Landlord pursuant to the provisions
of this Lease, Tenant shall also pay to Landlord, simultaneously with such payment of such Rent or other sums or
amounts, the amount of any applicable sales, use or excise tax on any such Rent or other sums or amounts so paid by
Tenant to Landlord, whether the same be levied, imposed or assessed by the State in which the Premises is located or
any other federal, state, county or municipal governmental entity or agency. Any such sales, use or excise taxes shall be
paid by Tenant to Landlord at the same time that each of the amounts with respect to which such taxes are payable are
paid by Tenant to Landlord.
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ARTICLE VI.
UTILITIES
From and after the Effective Date Tenant shall be liable for and shall pay directly all charges, rents and fees
(together with any applicable taxes or assessments thereon) when due for water, gas, electricity, air conditioning, heat,
septic, sewer, refuse collection, telephone and any other utility charges or similar items in connection with the use or
occupancy of the Premises during the Term of this Lease. From and after the Effective Date Landlord shall not be
responsible or liable in any way whatsoever for the impairment, interruption, stoppage, or other interference with any
utility services to the Premises not caused by Landlord, its agents, employees, contractors or licensees. In any event no
interruption, termination or cessation of utility services to the Premises shall relieve Tenant of its duties and obligations
pursuant to this Lease, including, without limitation, its obligation to pay all Rent as and when the same shall be due
hereunder.
ARTICLE VII. - RESERVED
ARTICLE VIII.
INSURANCE
8.1 Insurance by Tenant . From and after the Effective Date and continuing throughout the Term of this Lease,
Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect the following types and amounts of insurance
coverage:
(a)
Special form insurance on the Improvements, including all permitted alterations, changes,
additions and replacements thereof and thereto, including without limitation, insurance against loss or damage caused
by: (i) fire, windstorm and other hazards and perils generally included under extended coverage; (ii) sprinkler leakage;
(iii) vandalism and malicious mischief; and (iv) boiler and machinery, all in an amount which reasonably assures there
will be sufficient proceeds to replace the Improvements in the event of a loss against which such insurance is issued.
Such insurance shall (i) contain an agreed amount endorsement or equivalent clause within the policy with respect to the
Improvements, (ii) provide for no deductible in excess of ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS
($100,000.00), and (iii) contain endorsements insuring against liability for “demolition costs” and “increased cost of
construction”, as well as “ordinance or law” coverage and an “enforcement” endorsement if any of the Improvements or
the use of the Premises shall at any time constitute legally non-conforming structures or uses. All insurance required
hereunder, and all other insurance maintained by Tenant on the Improvements in excess of or in addition to that required
hereunder, shall be carried in favor of Landlord and Tenant, as their respective interests may appear.
(b)
Commercial general liability and property damage insurance providing coverage against
liability for personal and bodily injury, death and property damage having limits of not less than ONE MILLION AND
NO/100 DOLLARS ($1,000,000.00) (evidenced as $800,000 excess of a $200,000 self-insured retention) per occurrence
with a general aggregate of not less than TEN MILLION AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($10,000,000.00), and with an
umbrella liability policy in the amount of FIVE MILLION AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($5,000,000.00).
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Such insurance shall cover at least the following hazards: (i) premises and operations; (ii) products and completed
operations; (iii) independent contractors; (iv) blanket contractual liability for all written and oral contracts; and (v)
contractual liability covering the indemnities contained in Article XVIII hereof to the extent the same is available. Such
insurance, and any and all other liability insurance maintained by Tenant in excess of or in addition to that required
hereunder, shall name Landlord as an additional insured with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Landlord.
(c)
Workers' compensation insurance or employee liability insurance, in the minimum amounts
required by the state in which the Premises is located, if any.
Builders' risk insurance in accordance with the requirements of this Article, but only prior to
(d)
the commencement of and during the construction of any permitted rehabilitation, replacement, reconstruction,
restoration, renovation or alteration to the Premises.
(e)
Flood hazard insurance if any portion of the Improvements is currently or at any time in the
future located in a federally designated “special flood hazard area” and in which flood insurance has been made
available under the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968 (and any successor thereto) in an amount which reasonably
assures that there will be sufficient proceeds to replace the Improvements in the event of a loss against which such
insurance is issued.
(f)
Environmental Insurance covering the Premises and the Underground Storage Tank System (i)
in an amount of at least $1,000,000.00 per occurrence, and $5,000,000 in the aggregate, or in such greater amount as
may be required by law, providing coverage for remediation of any Hazardous Materials contamination at the Premises,
and (ii) in the amount of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence providing coverage for compensation of any related personal
injuries and third party liability.
(g)
If Tenant's use of the Premises involves selling or distributing alcoholic beverages for off
premises consumption, Tenant shall provide, keep and maintain in full force and effect liquor liability insurance in the
amount of not less than ONE MILLION AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($1,000,000.00) (evidenced as $800,000 excess of a
$200,000 self-insured retention), with umbrella policy of at least $5,000,000.
(h)
In addition, Tenant shall, at Landlord's reasonable request, provide, keep and maintain in full
force and effect such other insurance for such risks and in such amounts as may from time to time be commonly insured
against in the case of business operations in the same county where the Premises is located, similar to those
contemplated by this Lease to be conducted by Tenant on the Premises.
8.2 Carriers and Features . Tenant has provided to Landlord copies of insurance certificates evidencing all
insurance required by this section simultaneously with execution of this Lease, and Landlord has approved the same. All
insurance policies required to be carried by Tenant as provided in this Article shall be issued by insurance companies
approved by Landlord authorized to do business in the State in which the Premises is located. The insurance companies
must have: (i) an investment grade rating for claims paying ability assigned by a credit rating
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agency approved by Landlord and (ii) a general policy rating of A minus or better and a financial class of VII or better
by A.M. Best Company, Inc. (with the exception of the environmental insurance policy described above). All such
policies shall be for periods of not less than one year and Tenant shall renew the same at least thirty (30) days prior to
the expiration thereof. All such policies shall name Landlord as additional insured and any wholly or principally owned
subsidiaries of Landlord that may now or hereafter exist, as well as any mortgagee or collateral assignee of Landlord,
and shall require not less than thirty (30) days written notice to Landlord prior to any cancellation thereof or any change
reducing coverage thereunder. Landlord shall not be liable for any insurance premiums thereon or subject to any
assessments thereunder.
Tenant shall pay the premiums for all insurance policies which Tenant is obligated to carry under this Article
VIII and, at least fifteen (15) days after the date any such insurance must be in effect, and at least five (5) days before the
expiration date of the prior policy, deliver to Landlord a copy of the policy or policies, or a certificate or certificates
thereof (on ACORD 27 forms or equivalent), along with evidence that the premiums therefor have been paid for at least
the next ensuing quarter-annual period.
8.3 Failure to Procure Insurance . In the event Tenant shall fail to procure insurance required under this Article
and fail to maintain the same in full force and effect continuously during the Term of this Lease, Landlord shall be
entitled to immediately procure the same and Tenant shall promptly reimburse Landlord for such premium expense as
Additional Rent.
8.4

Self-Insurance .

(a) Notwithstanding anything else contained herein, should Tenant or Guarantor have a net worth of
$100,000,000 (excluding goodwill) during any part of the Term of this Lease, Tenant may self-insure for some or all
insurance obligations contained hereunder for so long as Tenant maintains said net worth requirement, except to the
extent insurance is required by the State where the Premises is located and such State does not allow such liability to be
self-insured. If Tenant desires to self-insure pursuant to this Section 8.4(a), Tenant shall deliver to Landlord at least
thirty (30) days prior to self-insuring a notice that it intends to self-insure hereunder, together with financial statements
evidencing that Tenant has met the net worth requirement set forth above. If at any time during the Term, Tenant is selfinsuring pursuing to this Section 8.4(a) and Tenant's net worth falls below the minimum net worth requirement set forth
above, then Tenant shall no longer be entitled to self-insure under this Subsection, and Tenant shall procure all insurance
otherwise required by this Article VIII. If Tenant is self-insuring under this Subsection, rather than delivering the
insurance certificate called for at the times set forth in Section 8.2 above, Tenant shall deliver a certificate of selfinsurance to Landlord.
(b)
Tenant may increase its self-insured retention on the liability insurance to be carried by Tenant under
Section 8.1(b) and (g) above to amounts reasonably agreed to by Tenant and Landlord.
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ARTICLE IX.
ADDITIONS, ALTERATIONS AND REMOVALS
9.1 Prohibition . Except as hereinafter expressly provided in Section 9.2, no portion of the Premises shall be
demolished, removed, modified or altered by Tenant in any manner whatsoever.
9.2 Permitted Renovations . Tenant shall be entitled and obligated to undertake all alterations to the Premises
required by any applicable law or ordinance including, without limitation, any alterations required by any Accessibility
Laws. Tenant shall be entitled to make Minor Alterations, as defined herein, to the Premises without Landlord's prior
consent, and without prior notice to Landlord. As used herein, “ Minor Alterations ” shall mean an alteration to the
Premises the cost of which does not exceed $250,000 and which does not decrease the value or the square footage of the
Improvements. Except for Minor Alterations, Tenant shall not be entitled to make any alterations or renovations to the
Premises without Landlord's consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. It shall be reasonable for Landlord to
withhold its consent to any alteration, modification or renovation if such alteration, modification or renovation decreases
the value of the Improvements or the Premises, or decreases the square footage of the Improvements. In performing any
alterations or renovations to the Premises, including Minor Alterations, Tenant shall meet and comply with all of the
following conditions:
(a)
Before the commencement of any such alterations, Tenant shall furnish to Landlord plans and
specifications therefor or a detailed itemization thereof; provided, however, for non-structural Minor Alterations Tenant
shall have no obligation to deliver plans and specifications or an itemization of the work to Landlord before
commencement of such work.
(b)
Before the commencement of any such alterations, Tenant shall obtain the approval (if any is
required) thereof by all governmental departments or authorities having or claiming jurisdiction of or over the Premises,
as more particularly required by Section 4.3 hereof.
(c)
Tenant represents and warrants to Landlord that all such alterations will be performed in a
good and workmanlike manner, in accordance with the terms, provisions and conditions of this Lease, and for structural
alterations (other than Minor Alterations), in accordance with the plans and specifications or itemization thereof
approved by Landlord.
(d)
Landlord shall have the right to inspect any such work at all times during normal working
hours and to maintain at the Premises for that purpose (at its own expense) such inspector(s) as it may deem necessary so
long as such inspections do not interfere with Tenant's work (but Landlord shall not thereby assume any responsibility
for the proper completion of the alterations in accordance with the terms of this Lease, nor any liability arising from the
improper performance thereof).
(e)
All such alterations shall be performed at Tenant's cost and expense and free of any expense to
Landlord and free of any liens on Landlord's title, as more particularly provided for in Section 15.2 hereof.
(f)
Upon substantial completion of any such alterations Tenant shall procure a certificate of
occupancy or other written approval, from the appropriate governmental authorities
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verifying the substantial completion thereof and shall provide a copy of same to Landlord, but only if such certificate of
occupancy or other written approval is required by the governmental authority.
(g)
Tenant shall, and hereby agrees to, indemnify and save and hold Landlord
harmless from and against and reimburse Landlord for any and all loss, damage, cost and expense (including, without
limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees) incurred by or asserted against Landlord which is occasioned by or results, directly
or indirectly, from any construction or renovation activities conducted upon the Premises; whether or not the same is
caused by or is the fault of Tenant or any contractor, subcontractor, laborer, supplier, materialman or any other third
party.
9.3 Permitted Access Easements . Tenant shall be entitled to enter into reciprocal access easements between
the Premises and any adjoining property; provided, however, such reciprocal access easement requires Landlord's
consent which will not be unreasonably withheld.
ARTICLE X.
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS
10.1 Repairs by Tenant . From and after the Effective Date and continuing throughout the Term of this Lease
Tenant shall at all times and at its sole cost and expense, put, keep, replace and maintain the Premises (including,
without limitation, the roof, plumbing systems, electric systems and HVAC systems) in good repair and in good, safe
and substantial order and condition, shall make all repairs and replacements thereto, both inside and outside, structural
and non-structural, ordinary and extraordinary, howsoever the necessity or desirability for repairs may occur, and
whether or not necessitated by wear, tear, obsolescence or defects, latent or otherwise, and shall use all reasonable
precautions to prevent waste, damage or injury. Tenant shall also, at its own cost and expense, put, keep, replace and
maintain all landscaping, signs, sidewalks, roadways, driveways and parking areas within the Premises in good repair
and in good, safe and substantial order and condition and free from dirt, standing water, rubbish and other obstructions
or obstacles, ordinary wear and tear excepted.
10.2
Landlord's Obligation . Landlord shall not be required to make any alterations, reconstructions,
replacements, changes, additions, improvements or repairs of any kind or nature whatsoever to the Premises or any
portion thereof (including, without limitation, any portion of the Improvements) at any time during the Term of this
Lease.
ARTICLE XI.
DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION
11.1 Restoration and Repair . If, during the Term of this Lease, the Improvements shall be destroyed or
damaged in whole or in part by fire, windstorm or any other cause whatsoever, Tenant shall give Landlord immediate
notice thereof and shall repair, reconstruct or replace the Improvements, or the portion thereof so destroyed or damaged
(whichever is reasonably required), at least to the extent of the value and character thereof existing immediately prior to
such occurrence. All work shall be started as soon as practicable and completed, at Tenant's sole cost and expense.
Tenant shall, however, promptly take such action as is necessary to assure that
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the Premises (or any portion thereof) does not constitute a nuisance or otherwise present a health or safety hazard. There
shall be no abatement or reduction in Rent as a result of a casualty. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary if there is a
casualty to the Premises in the last two (2) Lease Years of the Term or of the then current Option Term which damages
the Improvements by more than twenty five percent (25%), then Tenant, at its option, may terminate this Lease, by
delivering written notice of termination to Landlord within thirty (30) days of the event of casualty. All Rent shall be
paid through the date of Landlord's receipt of Tenant's notice of termination. In the event of such termination, Landlord
shall be entitled to any and all insurance proceeds relating to such casualty to be paid under all insurance policies to be
carried under Article VIII of this Lease or any other insurance policies carried by Tenant on the Premises, or in the event
Tenant has self insured pursuant to Section 8.4, then Tenant shall pay to Landlord the amount that would have been
payable to Landlord had Tenant carried the insurance otherwise required by Article VIII.
11.2
Escrow of Insurance Proceeds . In the event of a casualty resulting in a loss payment for the
Improvements in an amount greater than FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($500,000.00), the
proceeds of all insurance policies maintained by Tenant shall be deposited in Landlord's name in an escrow account at a
bank or other financial institution designated by Landlord, and shall be used by Tenant for the repair, reconstruction or
restoration of the Improvements. Such proceeds shall be disbursed periodically by Landlord upon certification of the
architect or engineer having supervision of the work that such amounts are the amounts paid or payable for the repair,
reconstruction or restoration. Tenant shall, at the time of establishment of such escrow account and from time to time
thereafter until said work shall have been completed and paid for, furnish Landlord with adequate evidence that at all
times the undisbursed portion of the escrowed funds, together with any funds made available by Tenant, is sufficient to
pay for the repair, reconstruction or restoration in its entirety. Tenant shall obtain and make receipted bills available to
Landlord and, upon completion of said work, full and final waivers of lien. Upon the final completion of the repair,
reconstruction or restoration, any un-disbursed portion of the escrowed funds, plus any interest earned thereon, shall be
delivered to Landlord. In the event of a casualty resulting in a loss payment for the Improvements in an amount equal to
or less than the amount stated above, the proceeds shall be paid to Tenant, and shall be applied towards repair,
reconstruction and restoration.
11.3 Uninsured Losses . Nothing contained herein shall relieve Tenant of its obligations under this Article if
the destruction or damage is not covered, either in whole or in part, by insurance.
ARTICLE XII.
CONDEMNATION
12.1 Complete Taking . If the whole of the Premises shall be taken or condemned for any public or quasipublic use or purpose, by right of eminent domain or by purchase in lieu thereof, or if a substantial portion of the
Premises shall be so taken or condemned such that the portion or portions remaining is or are not sufficient and suitable,
in the mutual reasonable judgment of Landlord and Tenant, for the continued operation of the business contemplated by
this Lease to be conducted thereon, therein or therefrom so as to effectively render the Premises untenantable, then this
Lease and the Term hereby granted shall cease and terminate as of the
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date on which the condemning authority takes possession and all Rent shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord up to that
date or refunded by Landlord to Tenant if Rent has previously been paid by Tenant beyond that date.
12.2 Partial Taking . If a portion of the Premises is taken, and the portion or portions remaining can, in the
mutual reasonable judgment of Landlord and Tenant, be adapted and used for the conduct of Tenant's business
operation, then the Tenant shall promptly restore the remaining portion or portions thereof to a condition comparable to
their condition at the time of such taking or condemnation, less the portion or portions lost by the taking, and this Lease
shall continue in full force and effect except that the Rent payable hereunder shall, if necessary, be equitably adjusted to
take into account the portion or portions of the Premises lost by the taking.
12.3 Award . The entire award for the Premises or the portion or portions thereof so taken shall be apportioned
between Landlord and Tenant as follows: (i) if this Lease terminates due to a taking or condemnation, Landlord shall be
entitled to the entire award; and (ii) if this Lease does not terminate due to such taking or condemnation, Tenant shall be
entitled to the award to the extent required for restoration of the Premises, and Landlord shall be entitled to the balance
of the award not applied to restoration. If this Lease does not terminate due to a taking or condemnation, Tenant shall,
with due diligence, restore the remaining portion or portions of the Premises in the manner hereinabove provided. In
such event, if the proceeds of the award to be applied to restoration exceed $500,000, then the proceeds of the award to
be applied to restoration shall be deposited with a bank or financial institution designated by Landlord as if such award
were insurance proceeds, and the amount so deposited will thereafter be treated in the same manner as insurance
proceeds are to be treated under Section 11.2 of this Lease until the restoration has been completed and Tenant has been
reimbursed for all the costs and expenses thereof. Upon the final completion of the repair, reconstruction or restoration,
any funds in such account, together with any interest earned thereon, shall be delivered to Landlord. If the award is
insufficient to pay for the restoration, Tenant shall be responsible for the remaining cost and expense of such restoration.
12.4 Disputes . If Landlord and Tenant cannot agree in respect of any matters to be determined under this
Article, a determination shall be requested of the court having jurisdiction over the taking or condemnation; provided,
however, that if said court will not accept such matters for determination, either party may have the matters determined
by a court otherwise having jurisdiction over the parties.
ARTICLE XIII.
LANDLORD'S RIGHT TO INSPECT
Landlord and its agents shall have the right to enter upon the Premises or any portion thereof at any reasonable
time to inspect, by giving to Tenant two (2) business days prior written notice, the operation, sanitation, safety,
maintenance and use of the same, or any portions of the same and to assure itself that Tenant is in full compliance with
its obligations under this Lease (but Landlord shall not thereby assume any responsibility for the performance of any of
Tenant's obligations hereunder, nor any liability arising from the improper performance thereof). In making any such
inspections, Landlord shall not unduly interrupt or interfere with the conduct of Tenant's business. Notwithstanding any
other provisions of this Lease to the contrary, Landlord
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shall be solely responsible for any costs, claims, damages, expenses or liabilities that arise as a result of Landlord's
inspection to the extent attributable to the negligence or misconduct of Landlord or Landlord's agents.
ARTICLE XIV.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING BY TENANT
Tenant may assign its interest in this Lease or sublet the whole or any part of the Premises without the prior
consent of Landlord provided that (i) Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a copy of the instrument(s) of assignment or
sublease, and (ii) any such assignee or sublessee shall agree in writing to assume and perform all of the terms and
conditions of this Lease on Tenant's part to be performed with respect to the assigned or subleased estate from and after
the commencement date of such assignment or subletting. Tenant shall remain primarily liable and responsible under
this Lease in the event of any such assignment or sublease and any such assignment or sublease shall not operate to
release Tenant from its obligations hereunder. Any assignment of this Lease or subletting of the Premises without
notification to Landlord shall not be effective as to Landlord and Landlord shall not be bound thereby until receipt of
such notification. Any assignment of this Lease or subletting of the Premises for an unlawful or prohibited use or a use
restricted by matters of title shall be void and of no force and effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Stripes LLC, as
Tenant, may be released from continuing liability under this Lease should Tenant assign this Lease to an entity that has
both (i) at the time of said assignment, a net worth (excluding goodwill) of $75,000,000 as evidenced by audited
financial statements of assignee evidencing said net worth delivered by Tenant to Landlord at the time of such
assignment, and (ii) experience and creditworthiness substantially similar to Tenant at the time of said assignment.
Landlord agrees that with regard to any sublease or other occupancy agreement entered into by Tenant on or in
the Premises, so long as this Lease is in place and Tenant has not committed an Event of Default hereunder, all income
from any said sublease or occupancy agreement shall belong to Tenant and Landlord hereby waives any claims with
respect to the income from any sublease or any occupancy rights granted by Tenant on the Premises, which shall remain
the Property of Tenant. Should Tenant sublease any part of the Premises or otherwise enter into any occupancy
agreements during the Term, nothing in this Lease shall obligate Landlord to recognize the rights of any subtenants or
other parties in occupancy of the Premises.
ARTICLE XV.
LANDLORD'S INTEREST NOT SUBJECT TO LIENS
15.1 Liens, Generally . Tenant shall not create or cause to be imposed, claimed or filed upon the Premises, or
any portion thereof, or upon the interest of Landlord therein, any lien, charge or encumbrance whatsoever. If, because of
any act or omission of Tenant, any such lien, charge or encumbrance shall be imposed, claimed or filed, Tenant shall, at
its sole cost and expense, cause the same to be fully paid and satisfied or otherwise discharged of record (by bonding or
otherwise) and Tenant shall indemnify and save and hold Landlord harmless from and against any and all costs,
liabilities, suits, penalties, claims and demands whatsoever, and from and against any and all attorneys' fees, at both trial
and all appellate levels, resulting or on
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account thereof and therefrom. In the event that Tenant shall fail to comply with the foregoing provisions of this Section
15.1, Landlord shall have the option of paying, satisfying or otherwise discharging (by bonding or otherwise) such lien,
charge or encumbrance and Tenant agrees to reimburse Landlord, upon demand and as Additional Rent, for all sums so
paid and for all costs and expenses incurred by Landlord in connection therewith, together with interest thereon as
provided in this Lease, until paid. The terms and conditions of this section shall in no way limit Tenant's right to place a
lien upon any of Tenant's personalty or trade fixtures located on the Premises. In addition, Tenant shall have the
unconditional right to grant mortgages (a “ Leasehold Mortgage”) covering the leasehold interest created by this Lease
and in and to the Improvements and any fixtures, furnishings, machinery or equipment owned by Tenant and located
therein. The following terms and provisions shall apply to any Leasehold Mortgage:
Tenant may give notice to Landlord that all notices under this Lease should also be
(i)
given to the holder of the Leasehold Mortgage (the “ Leasehold Mortgagee ”), and upon receipt of such notice,
Landlord will copy the Leasehold Mortgagee on any notices of default sent under this Lease, at the address provided by
Tenant. A Leasehold Mortgagee may, but shall not be obligated to, cure any default or perform any obligation to be
performed by Tenant hereunder in the same period of time provided for Tenant to perform or cure any non-performance
hereunder.
(ii)
No assignment of this Lease to a Leasehold Mortgagee, or foreclosure by a Leasehold
Mortgagee against Tenant's interest under this Lease or its interest in the Improvements and/or any subleases thereof,
shall be deemed an assignment in violation of this Lease. Landlord agrees that any Leasehold Mortgagee who has been
identified by Tenant as a Leasehold Mortgagee may notify Landlord that such Leasehold Mortgagee has succeeded to
the interest of “Tenant” hereunder, and Landlord thereafter shall treat such Leasehold Mortgagee as the Tenant
hereunder without any obligation to inquire into the validity of such Leasehold Mortgagee's right to succeed to the
interest of “Tenant” hereunder.
15.2 Mechanics Liens . Landlord's interest in the Premises shall not be subjected to liens of any nature by
reason of Tenant's construction, alteration, renovation, repair, restoration, replacement or reconstruction of any
improvements on or in the Premises, or by reason of any other act or omission of Tenant (or of any person claiming by,
through or under Tenant) including, but not limited to, mechanics' and materialmen's liens. All persons dealing with
Tenant are hereby placed on notice that such persons shall not look to Landlord or to Landlord's credit or assets
(including Landlord's interest in the Premises) for payment or satisfaction of any obligations incurred in connection with
the construction, alteration, renovation, repair, restoration, replacement or reconstruction thereof by or on behalf of
Tenant. Tenant has no power, right or authority to subject Landlord's interest in the Premises to any mechanic's or
materialmen's lien or claim of lien. If a lien, a claim of lien or an order for the payment of money shall be imposed
against the Premises on account of work performed, or alleged to have been performed, for or on behalf of Tenant,
Tenant shall, within thirty (30) days after written notice of the imposition of such lien, claim or order, cause the Premises
to be released therefrom by the payment of the obligation secured thereby or by furnishing a bond or by any other
method prescribed or permitted by law. If a lien is released, Tenant shall thereupon establish the release as a matter of
record by recording or filing it in the appropriate office of land records of the County in which the Premises is located,
and shall furnish Landlord with a copy of same.
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15.3 Contest of Liens . Tenant may, at its option, contest the validity of any lien or claim of lien if Tenant shall
have first posted an appropriate and sufficient bond in favor of the claimant or paid the appropriate sum into court, if
permitted by law, and thereby obtained the release of the Premises from such lien. If judgment is obtained by the
claimant under any lien, Tenant shall pay the same promptly after such judgment shall have become final and the time
for appeal therefrom has expired without appeal having been taken. Tenant shall, at its own expense, defend the interests
of Tenant and Landlord in any and all such suits; provided, however, that Landlord may, at its election, engage its own
counsel and assert its own defenses, in which event Tenant shall cooperate with Landlord and make available to
Landlord all information and data which Landlord deems necessary or desirable for such defense.
15.4 Notices of Commencement of Construction . If required by the laws of the State in which the Premises is
located, prior to commencement by Tenant of any work on the Premises Tenant shall record or file a notice of the
commencement of such work (the “ Notice of Commencement ”) in the land records of the County in which the
Premises is located, identifying Tenant as the party for whom such work is being performed, stating such other matters
as may be required by law and requiring the service of copies of all notices, liens or claims of lien upon Landlord. Any
such Notice of Commencement shall clearly reflect that the interest of Tenant in the Premises is that of a leasehold estate
and shall also clearly reflect that the interest of Landlord as the fee simple owner of the Premises shall not be subject to
mechanics or materialmen's liens on account of the work which is the subject of such Notice of Commencement. A copy
of any such Notice of Commencement shall be furnished to and approved by Landlord and its attorneys prior to the
recording or filing thereof, as aforesaid.
ARTICLE XVI.
SUBORDINATION, ATTORNMENT AND NON-DISTURBANCE
16.1 Subordination . This Lease, Tenant's interest hereunder and Tenant's leasehold interest in and to the
Premises are hereby agreed by Tenant to be and are hereby made junior, inferior, subordinate and subject in right, title,
interest, lien, encumbrance, priority and all other respects to any mortgage or mortgages now or hereafter in force and
effect upon or encumbering Landlord's interest in the Premises, or any portion thereof, and to all collateral assignments
by Landlord to any third party or parties of any of Landlord's rights under this Lease or the rents, issues and profits
thereof or therefrom as security for any liability or indebtedness, direct, indirect or contingent, of Landlord to such third
party or parties, and to all future modifications, extensions, renewals, consolidations and replacements of, and all
amendments and supplements to any such mortgage, mortgages or assignments, and upon recording of any such
mortgage, mortgages or assignments, the same shall be deemed to be prior in dignity, lien and encumbrance to this
Lease, Tenant's interest hereunder and Tenant's leasehold interest in and to the Premises irrespective of the dates of
execution, delivery or recordation of any such mortgage, mortgages or assignments; provided, however, such
subordination shall be upon the express condition that the validity of this Lease shall be recognized by the holder of any
such mortgage or assignment, and that, notwithstanding any default by the Landlord with respect to such mortgage or
assignment, such holder of such mortgage or assignment shall agree, pursuant to a Subordination, Non-Disturbance and
Attornment Agreement in a form reasonably acceptable to lender, Landlord and Tenant that Tenant's possession and
right of use under this Lease in and to the Premises shall not be disturbed by such mortgagee or ground lessor unless and
until an Event
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of Default shall have occurred and be continuing and, as a result of such Event of Default, this Lease or Tenant's right to
possession hereunder shall have been terminated in accordance with the provisions of this Lease. The foregoing
subordination provisions of this Section shall be automatic and self-operative without the necessity of the execution of
any further instrument or agreement of subordination on the part of Tenant. However, if Landlord or the holder or
proposed holder of any such mortgage, mortgages or assignments shall request that Tenant execute and deliver any
further instrument or agreement of subordination of this Lease, Tenant's interest hereunder or Tenant's leasehold interest
in the Premises to any such mortgage, mortgages or assignments in confirmation or furtherance of or in addition to the
foregoing subordination provisions of this Section, Tenant shall execute and deliver the same to the requesting party
within ten (10) business days following Tenant's receipt of such a written request.
16.2 Attornment . Tenant shall and hereby agrees to attorn, and be bound under all of the terms, provisions,
covenants and conditions of this Lease, to any successor of the interest of Landlord under this Lease for the balance of
the Term of this Lease remaining at the time of the succession of such interest to such successor. In particular, in the
event that any proceedings are brought for the foreclosure of any mortgage or security interest encumbering or collateral
assignment of Landlord's interest in the Premises, or any portion thereof, Tenant shall attorn to the purchaser at any such
foreclosure sale and recognize such purchaser as Landlord under this Lease, subject, however, to all of the terms and
conditions of this Lease. Tenant agrees that neither the purchaser at any such foreclosure sale nor the foreclosing
mortgagee or holder of such security interest or collateral assignment shall have any liability for any act or omission of
Landlord, be subject to any offsets or defenses which Tenant may have as claim against Landlord, or be bound by any
advance rents which may have been paid by Tenant to Landlord for more than the current period in which such rents
come due.
16.3 Rights of Mortgagees and Assignees . At the time of giving any notice of default to Landlord, Tenant
shall mail or deliver to the holders of any mortgage on the Premises or holder of security interest in or collateral
assignment of this Lease who have, in writing, notified Tenant of their interests (individually a “ Mortgagee ”) a copy of
any such notice. No notice of default or termination of this Lease by Tenant shall be effective until every Mortgagee
shall have been furnished a copy of such notice by Tenant. In the event Landlord fails to cure any default by it under this
Lease, any Mortgagee shall have, at its option, a period of thirty (30) days within which to remedy such default of
Landlord or to cause such default to be remedied. In the event that a Mortgagee elects to cure any such default by
Landlord, then Tenant shall accept such performance on the part of such Mortgagee as though the same had been
performed by Landlord, and for such purpose Tenant hereby authorizes any Mortgagee to enter upon the Premises to the
extent necessary to exercise any of Landlord's rights, powers and duties under this Lease. If any Mortgagee promptly
commences and diligently pursues to cure a default by Landlord which is reasonably capable of being cured by that
Mortgagee, then Tenant will not terminate this Lease or cease to perform any of its obligations under this Lease so long
as the Mortgagee is, with due diligence, engaged in the curing of such default.

23
Store No. _____; _____________

ARTICLE XVII.
END OF TERM
17.1 Surrender of Premises . Tenant shall, on or before the last day of the Term of this Lease or upon the
sooner termination thereof, peaceably and quietly surrender and deliver to Landlord the Premises (including, without
limitation, all Improvements and all additions thereto and replacements thereof made from time to time over the Term of
this Lease), in good order, condition and repair, and free and clear of all liens and encumbrances other than those which
exist on the Rental Commencement Date or are otherwise specifically approved and acknowledged by Landlord in
writing and free of Tenant's Personal Property. In addition, Tenant shall comply with the close out requirements of
Section 4.6 of this Lease.
The provisions of this Article shall survive the termination or expiration of this Lease.
17.2 Holding Over . If Tenant or any other person or party shall remain in possession of the Premises or any
part thereof following the expiration of the Term or earlier termination of this Lease or should Tenant leave any of
Tenant's Personal Property on the Premises, without an agreement in writing between Landlord and Tenant with respect
thereto, the person or party remaining in possession shall be deemed to be a tenant at sufferance, and during any such
holdover, the Rent payable under this Lease by such tenant at sufferance shall be double the rate or rates in effect
immediately prior to the expiration of the Term or earlier termination of this Lease. In no event, however, shall such
holding over be deemed or construed to be or constitute a renewal or extension of this Lease.
ARTICLE XVIII.
LIABILITY OF LANDLORD; INDEMNIFICATION
18.1 Liability of Landlord . Except as otherwise provided in this Lease, Landlord shall not be liable to Tenant,
its employees, agents, business invitees, licensees, customers, clients, or guests for any damage, injury, loss,
compensation or claim, including, but not limited to, claims for the interruption of or loss to Tenant's business, based on,
arising out of or resulting from any cause whatsoever (except the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord, its
successors and assigns, and their respective directors, officers, employees and agents), including, but not limited to: (i)
repairs to any portion of the Premises; (ii) interruption in Tenant's use of the Premises; (iii) any accident or damage
resulting from the use or operation (by Landlord, Tenant or any other person or persons) of any equipment within the
Premises, including without limitation, heating, cooling, electrical or plumbing equipment or apparatus; (iv) the
termination of this Lease by reason of the condemnation or destruction of the Premises in accordance with the provisions
of this Lease; (v) any fire, robbery, theft, mysterious disappearance or other casualty; (vi) the actions of any other person
or persons; and (g) any leakage or seepage in or from any part or portion of the Premises, whether from water, rain or
other precipitation that may leak into, or flow from, any part of the Premises, or from drains, pipes or plumbing fixtures
in the Improvements. Any storage or placement by the Tenant or its employees of goods, property or personal effects in
or about the Premises shall be done at the sole risk of the Tenant.
18.2 Indemnification of Landlord . Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 18.1 above, Tenant shall
defend, indemnify and save and hold Landlord harmless from and against
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any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, injunctions, suits, actions, fines, penalties, claims, demands, costs
and expenses of every kind or nature (except as may arise through the gross negligence or willful misconduct of
Landlord, its successors and assigns, and their respective directors, officers, employees and agents) , including
reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs, incurred by Landlord, arising directly or indirectly from or out of: (i) any
failure by Tenant to perform any of the terms, provisions, covenants or conditions of this Lease on Tenant's part to be
performed; (ii) any accident, injury or damage which shall happen at, in or upon the Premises, however occurring; (iii)
any matter or thing growing out of the condition, occupation, maintenance, alteration, repair, use or operation by any
person of the Premises, or any part thereof, or the operation of the business contemplated by this Lease to be conducted
thereon, thereat, therein, or therefrom; (iv) any failure of Tenant to comply with any laws, ordinances, requirements,
orders, directions, rules or regulations of any governmental authority, including, without limitation, the Accessibility
Laws; or (v) any other act or omission of Tenant, its employees, agents, invitees, customers, licensees or contractors.
Tenant's indemnity obligations under this Article and elsewhere in this Lease arising prior to the expiration or earlier
termination of this Lease shall survive any such expiration or termination, subject to the limitations in Section 4.6(b) and
subject to Tenant's release from continuing liability under Article XIV hereof (after an assignment to an assignee that
meets the net worth requirements set forth in the first paragraph of Article XIV hereof).
18.3 Notice of Claim or Suit / Notice of Environmental Matters . Tenant shall promptly notify Landlord of any
claim, action, proceeding or suit involving the Premises which is instituted or threatened against Tenant or Landlord of
which Tenant receives notice or of which Tenant acquires knowledge. In the event Landlord is made a party to any
action for damages or other relief against which Tenant has indemnified Landlord, as aforesaid, Tenant shall defend
Landlord, pay all costs and shall provide effective counsel to Landlord in such litigation or, at Landlord's option, shall
pay all reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred by Landlord in connection with its own defense or settlement of said
litigation.
18.4 Limitation on Liability of Landlord . In the event Tenant is awarded a money judgment against Landlord,
Tenant's sole recourse for satisfaction of such judgment shall be limited to execution against the Premises. In no event
shall any officer, director, employee or shareholder of Landlord be personally liable for the obligations of Landlord
hereunder. Nothing in this section shall limit Landlord's liability for or Tenant's ability to recover against Landlord for,
any gross negligence or willful misconduct by Landlord or Landlord's agents against Tenant or any other person on, in
or about the Premises, including the grossly negligent acts of Landlord or Landlord's agents while inspecting the
Premises pursuant to any of the terms or provisions of this Lease.
ARTICLE XIX.
DEFAULT
19.1 Events of Default . Each of the following events shall be an event of default hereunder by Tenant and
shall constitute a breach of this Lease (individually an “ Event of Default ”):
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(a)
If Tenant shall fail to pay, when due, any Rent, or portion thereof, or any other sum
due to Landlord from Tenant hereunder, and such failure shall continue for a period of ten (10) days after notice from
Landlord; provided, however, after Tenant's first failure to pay in any calendar year during the Term, the cure period
shall be five (5) days instead of ten (10) days.
If Tenant shall violate or fail to comply with or perform any other term, provision, covenant,
(b)
agreement or condition to be performed or observed by Tenant under this Lease, and such violation or failure shall
continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice thereof from Landlord; provided, however, Tenant shall have
more than thirty (30) days to cure the non-monetary default as is necessary provided Tenant commences to cure said
default within thirty (30) days of receipt of Landlord's notice, Tenant diligently pursues said cure to completion, and
Tenant completes said cure within one hundred and eighty (180) days of receipt of Landlord's notice, or longer if Tenant
is diligently pursuing remediation of a Material Release in, on or under the Premises in compliance with the applicable
governmental authority.
(c)
If, at any time during the Term of this Lease, Tenant shall file in any court, pursuant to any
statute of either the United States or of any State, a petition in bankruptcy or insolvency, or for reorganization or
arrangement, or for the appointment of a receiver or trustee of all or any portion of Tenant's property, including, without
limitation, its leasehold interest in the Premises, or if Tenant shall make an assignment for the benefit of its creditors or
petitions for or enters into an arrangement with its creditors.
(d)
If, at any time during the Term of this Lease, there shall be filed against Tenant in any courts
pursuant to any statute of the United States or of any State, a petition in bankruptcy or insolvency, or for reorganization,
or for the appointment of a receiver or trustee of all or a portion of Tenant's property, including, without limitation, its
leasehold interest in the Premises, and any such proceeding against Tenant shall not be dismissed within sixty (60) days
following the commencement thereof.
(e)
If Tenant's leasehold interest in the Premises or property therein shall be seized under any levy,
execution, attachment or other process of court where the same shall not be vacated or stayed on appeal or otherwise
within sixty (60) days thereafter, or if Tenant's leasehold interest in the Premises is sold by judicial sale and such sale is
not vacated, set aside or stayed on appeal or otherwise within ninety (90) days thereafter.
(f)
If Tenant commits an anticipatory breach of this Lease, as defined herein. As used herein,
“Anticipatory Breach” shall mean either (i) Tenant's repudiation of the Lease in writing, or (ii) Tenant's failure to pay
Rent or other amounts due under this Lease as and when they are due and payable, after any applicable notice period as
set forth in this Section 19.1.
19.2 Remedies on Default . If any of the Events of Default hereinabove specified shall occur, Landlord, at any
time thereafter, shall have and may exercise any of the following rights and remedies:
(a)
Landlord may, pursuant to written notice thereof to Tenant, terminate this Lease and,
peaceably or pursuant to appropriate legal proceedings, re-enter, retake and resume possession of the Premises for
Landlord's own account and, for Tenant's breach of and default
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under this Lease, recover promptly from Tenant any and all rents and other sums and damages due or in existence at the
time of such termination, including, without limitation, (i) all Rent and other sums, charges, payments, costs and
expenses agreed and/or required to be paid by Tenant to Landlord hereunder, (ii) all costs and expenses of Landlord in
connection with the recovery of possession of the Premises, including reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs, and (iii)
all costs and expenses of Landlord in connection with any reletting or attempted reletting of the Premises or any part or
parts thereof, including, without limitation, brokerage fees, attorneys' fees and the cost of any alterations or repairs
which may be reasonably required to so relet the Premises, or any part or parts thereof.
(b)
Landlord may, pursuant to any prior notice required by law, and without terminating
this Lease, peaceably or pursuant to appropriate legal proceedings, re-enter, retake and resume possession of the
Premises for the account of Tenant, make such alterations of and repairs to the Premises as may be reasonably necessary
in order to relet the same or any part or parts thereof and relet or attempt to relet the Premises or any part or parts thereof
for such term or terms (which may be for a term or terms extending beyond the Term of this Lease), at such rents and
upon such other terms and provisions as Landlord, in its sole, but reasonable, discretion, may deem advisable. If
Landlord relets or attempts to relet the Premises, Landlord shall at its sole discretion determine the terms and provisions
of any new lease or sublease and whether or not a particular proposed new tenant or sublessee is acceptable to Landlord.
Upon any such reletting, all rents received by the Landlord from such reletting shall be applied, (a) first, to the payment
of all costs and expenses of recovering possession of the Premises, (b) second, to the payment of any costs and expenses
of such reletting, including brokerage fees, attorneys' fees and the cost of any alterations and repairs reasonably required
for such reletting; (c) third, to the payment of any indebtedness, other than Rent, due hereunder from Tenant to the
Landlord, (d) fourth, to the payment of all Rent and other sums due and unpaid hereunder, and (e) fifth, the residue, if
any, shall be held by the Landlord and applied in payment of future Rents as the same may become due and payable
hereunder. If the rents received from such reletting during any period shall be less than that required to be paid during
that period by the Tenant hereunder, Tenant shall promptly pay any such deficiency to the Landlord and failing the
prompt payment thereof by Tenant to Landlord, Landlord shall immediately be entitled to institute legal proceedings for
the recovery and collection of the same. Such deficiency shall be calculated and paid at the time each payment of rent
shall otherwise become due under this Lease, or, at the option of Landlord, at the end of the Term of this Lease.
Landlord shall, in addition, be immediately entitled to sue for and otherwise recover from Tenant any other damages
occasioned by or resulting from an Event of Default under this Lease other than a default in the payment of rent. No
such re-entry, retaking or resumption of possession of the Premises by the Landlord for the account of Tenant shall be
construed as an election on the part of Landlord to terminate this Lease unless a written notice of such intention shall be
given to the Tenant or unless the termination of this Lease be decreed by a court of competent jurisdiction.
Notwithstanding any such re-entry and reletting or attempted reletting of the Premises or any part or parts thereof for the
account of Tenant without termination, Landlord may at any time thereafter, upon written notice to Tenant, elect to
terminate this Lease or pursue any other remedy available to Landlord for Tenant's previous breach of or default under
this Lease. Landlord, in the exercise of its reasonable business judgment, shall minimize or mitigate Landlord's damages
as a result of the Event of Default of Tenant under this Lease.
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(c)
Landlord may, (i) without re-entering, retaking or resuming possession of the Premises,
sue for all Rent and all other sums, charges, payments, costs and expenses due from Tenant to Landlord hereunder as
they become due under this Lease, taking into account that Tenant's right and option to pay the Rent hereunder on a
monthly basis in any particular Lease Year is conditioned upon the absence of a default on Tenant's part in the
performance of its obligations under this Lease, or (ii) at Landlord's option, dispossess Tenant and to the fullest extent
permitted by law, collect the difference between the total of all Rent provided for in this Lease for the remainder of the
Term and the reasonable rental value for the Premises for such period, such difference discounted to the present value.
In addition to the remedies hereinabove specified and enumerated, Landlord shall have and may exercise the
right to invoke any other remedies allowed at law or in equity as if the remedies of re-entry, unlawful detainer
proceedings and other remedies were not herein provided. Accordingly, the mention in this Lease of any particular
remedy shall not preclude Landlord from having or exercising any other remedy at law or in equity. Nothing herein
contained shall be construed as precluding the Landlord from having or exercising such lawful remedies as may be and
become necessary in order to preserve the Landlord's right or the interest of the Landlord in the Premises and in this
Lease, even before the expiration of any notice periods provided for in this Lease, if under the particular circumstances
then existing the allowance of such notice periods will prejudice or will endanger the rights and estate of the Landlord in
this Lease and in the Premises; provided, however, that nothing herein shall entitle Landlord to receive more than
Landlord is otherwise entitled to receive under this Lease.
19.3 Landlord May Cure Tenant Defaults . If an Event of Default shall occur, other than the payment of Rent,
Landlord may, after notice to Tenant and a reasonable time to perform after such notice (or without notice if, in
Landlord's reasonable opinion, an emergency exists) perform the same for the account and at the expense of Tenant. If,
at any time and by reason of such default, Landlord is compelled to pay, or elects to pay, any sum of money or do any
act which will require the payment of any sum of money, or is compelled to incur any expense in the enforcement of its
rights hereunder or otherwise, such sum or sums, together with interest thereon at the highest rate allowed under the laws
of the State of Texas, shall be deemed Additional Rent hereunder and shall be repaid to Landlord by Tenant promptly
when billed therefor, and Landlord shall have all the same rights and remedies in respect thereof as Landlord has in
respect of the rents herein reserved.
19.4 Waiver of Landlord's Lien . Landlord hereby expressly waives all liens, constitutional, statutory or
otherwise, which it may have with regard to Tenant's personal property, trade fixtures, furniture, equipment, stock,
goods, merchandise, inventory, and other property placed on the Premises during the term of this Lease.
19.5 Rights Cumulative . The rights and remedies provided and available to Landlord in this Lease are distinct,
separate and cumulative remedies, and no one of them, whether or not exercised by Landlord, shall be deemed to be in
exclusion of any other.
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ARTICLE XX.
NOTICES
Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Lease shall be deemed given if delivered personally or
sent by (a) United States registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or (b) overnight courier
service, and addressed as follows:
If to Landlord:

Susser Petroleum Property Company LLC
Attention: President
555 East Airtex Drive
Houston, Texas 77073

With copy to:

Susser Petroleum Property Company LLC
Attention: Legal Department
555 East Airtex Drive
Houston, Texas 77073

If to Tenant:

Stripes LLC
Attn: President
P. O. Box 9036
Corpus Christi, Texas 78369

With a copy to: Stripes LLC
Attention: Legal Department
P.O. Box 9036 (Mailing Address)
Corpus Christi, Texas 78469
4525 Ayers Street (Physical Address)
Corpus Christi, Texas 78415
or such other address as may be designated by either party by written notice to the other. Except as otherwise provided in
this Lease, every notice, demand, request or other communication hereunder shall be deemed to have been given or
served upon actual receipt thereof. Accordingly, a notice shall not be effective until actually received. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, any notice mailed to the last designated address of any person or party to which a notice may be or is
required to be delivered pursuant to this Lease shall not be deemed ineffective if actual delivery cannot be made due to a
change of address of the person or party to which the notice is directed or the failure or refusal of such person or party to
accept delivery of the notice.
ARTICLE XXI.
MISCELLANEOUS
21.1 “Triple Net” Lease . Landlord and Tenant acknowledge and agree that both parties intend that this Lease
shall be and constitute what is generally referred to in the real estate industry as a “triple net” or “absolute net” lease,
such that Tenant shall be obligated hereunder to pay all costs and expenses incurred with respect to, and associated with,
the Premises and the business operated thereon and therein, including, without limitation, all taxes and assessments,
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utility charges, insurance costs, maintenance costs and repair, replacement and restoration expenses (all as more
particularly herein provided) together with any and all other assessments, charges, costs and expenses of any kind or
nature whatsoever related to, or associated with, the Premises and the business operated thereon and therein; provided,
however, that Landlord shall nonetheless be obligated to pay any debt service on any mortgage encumbering Landlord's
fee simple interest in the Premises, and Landlord's personal income taxes with respect to the rents received by Landlord
under this Lease. Except as expressly provided in this Lease, Landlord shall bear no cost or expense of any type or
nature with respect to, or associated with, the Premises.
21.2 Estoppel Certificates . At any time and from time to time, Landlord and Tenant shall, at no cost to the
non-requesting party, promptly and in no event later than twenty (20) days after a request from either Tenant (or any
Leasehold Mortgagee), or Landlord, execute, acknowledge and deliver to the requesting party or any present or proposed
mortgagee of the leasehold estate or the fee estate, or any proposed assignee, a certificate in the form set forth on Exhibit
B , certifying: (i) that the Lease is in full force and effect and has not been modified (or if modified, setting forth all
modifications), or if the Lease is not in full force and effect, the certificate shall so specify the reasons therefore; (ii) the
commencement and expiration dates of the Lease Term; (iii) the date to which the rentals have been paid under the
Lease and the amount thereof then payable; (iv) whether there are then any existing known defaults by Tenant (or
Landlord) in the performance of its obligations under this Lease, and, if there are any such known defaults, specifying
the nature and extent thereof; (v) that no notice has been received by Landlord (or Tenant) of any default under this
Lease which has not been cured, except as to defaults specified in the certificate; (vi) the capacity of the person
executing such certificate, and that such person is duly authorized to execute the same on behalf of Landlord; (vii) an
agreement to provide notice of default to any mortgagee of the leasehold estate (or fee estate) and the same opportunity
provided herein (within the same time period) to Landlord or Tenant to cure said default; (viii) the number of options
remaining in the term, if any; and (ix) any other information reasonably requested by Tenant or Landlord or its present
or proposed assignee or mortgagee. If Landlord or Tenant shall fail or refuse to sign an estoppel certificate in accordance
with the provisions of this Section within the time period set forth above following a request by the other party to this
Lease, the party failing to respond irrevocably constitutes and appoints the other party as its attorney-in-fact for the sole
purpose of executing and delivering the certificate to any such third party.
21.3 Brokerage . Landlord and Tenant hereby represent and warrant to each other that they have not engaged,
employed or utilized the services of any business or real estate brokers, salesmen, agents or finders in the initiation,
negotiation or consummation of the business and real estate transaction reflected in this Lease. On the basis of such
representation and warranty, each party shall and hereby agrees to indemnify and save and hold the other party harmless
from and against the payment of any commissions or fees to or claims for commissions or fees by any real estate or
business broker, salesman, agent or finder resulting from or arising out of any actions taken or agreements made by them
with respect to the business and real estate transaction reflected in this Lease.
21.4 No Partnership or Joint Venture . Landlord shall not, by virtue of this Lease, in any way or for any
purpose, be deemed to be a partner of Tenant in the conduct of Tenant's
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business upon, within or from the Premises or otherwise, or a joint venturer or a member of a joint enterprise with
Tenant.
21.5 Entire Agreement . This Lease contains the entire agreement between the parties and, except as otherwise
provided herein, can only be changed, modified, amended or terminated by an instrument in writing executed by the
parties. It is mutually acknowledged and agreed by Landlord and Tenant that there are no verbal agreements,
representations, warranties or other understandings affecting the same; and that Tenant hereby waives, as a material part
of the consideration hereof, all claims against Landlord for rescission, damages or any other form of relief by reason of
any alleged covenant, warranty, representation, agreement or understanding not contained in this Lease. This Lease shall
not be changed, amended or modified except by a written instrument executed by Landlord and Tenant.
21.6 Waiver . No release, discharge or waiver of any provision hereof shall be enforceable against or binding
upon Landlord or Tenant unless in writing and executed by Landlord or Tenant, as the case may be. Neither the failure
of Landlord or Tenant to insist upon a strict performance of any of the terms, provisions, covenants, agreements and
conditions hereof, nor the acceptance of any Rent by Landlord with knowledge of a breach of this Lease by Tenant in the
performance of its obligations hereunder, shall be deemed a waiver of any rights or remedies that Landlord or Tenant
may have or a waiver of any subsequent breach or default in any of such terms, provisions, covenants, agreements and
conditions.
21.7 Time . Time is of the essence in every particular of this Lease, including, without limitation, obligations
for the payment of money.
21.8 Costs and Attorneys' Fees . If either party shall bring an action to recover any sum due hereunder, or for
any breach hereunder, and shall obtain a judgment or decree in its favor, the court may award to such prevailing party its
reasonable costs and reasonable attorneys' fees, specifically including reasonable attorneys' fees incurred in connection
with any appeals (whether or not taxable as such by law). Landlord shall also be entitled to recover its reasonable
attorneys' fees and costs incurred in any bankruptcy action filed by or against Tenant, including, without limitation,
those incurred in seeking relief from the automatic stay, in dealing with the assumption or rejection of this Lease, in any
adversary proceeding, and in the preparation and filing of any proof of claim.
21.9 Captions and Headings . The captions and headings in this Lease have been inserted herein only as a
matter of convenience and for reference and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of, or otherwise
affect, the provisions of this Lease.
21.10 Severability . If any provision of this Lease shall be deemed to be invalid, it shall be considered deleted
therefrom and shall not invalidate the remaining provisions of this Lease.
21.11 Successors and Assigns . The agreements, terms, provisions, covenants and conditions contained in this
Lease shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Landlord and Tenant and, to the extent permitted herein, their
respective successors and assigns.
21.12 Applicable Law . This Lease shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the
State in which the Premises is located.

31
Store No. _____; _____________

21.13 Recordation of Memorandum of Lease . At either party's option, a short form memorandum of this
Lease, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C shall be recorded or filed among the appropriate land records of the
County in which the Premises is located, and Tenant shall pay the recording costs associated therewith. In the event of a
discrepancy between the provisions of this Lease and such short form memorandum thereof, the provisions of this Lease
shall prevail.
21.14 Waiver of Jury Trial . TENANT AND LANDLORD HEREBY KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND
INTENTIONALLY WAIVE THE RIGHT EITHER OF THEM OR THEIR HEIRS, PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVES, SUCCESSORS OR ASSIGNS MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT TO ANY
LITIGATION ARISING OUT OF, UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS LEASE OR ANY AGREEMENT
CONTEMPLATED TO BE EXECUTED IN CONJUNCTION HEREWITH, OR ANY COURSE OF CONDUCT,
COURSE OF DEALING, STATEMENTS (WHETHER VERBAL OR WRITTEN) OR ACTIONS OF ANY PARTY.
THIS PROVISION IS A MATERIAL INDUCEMENT TO LANDLORD'S ACCEPTING THIS LEASE.
21.15 Counterparts . This Lease may be executed in counterparts by the parties hereto and each shall be
considered an original, but all such counterparts shall be construed together and constitute one Lease between the parties
hereto.
21.16 Not a Security Arrangement . The parties hereto agree and acknowledge that this transaction is not
intended as a security arrangement or financing secured by real property, but shall be construed for all purposes as a true
operating lease.
21.17 Tenant's Personal Property . During the term of this Lease Tenant may, at Tenant's expense, place or
install such furniture, trade fixtures, equipment, machinery, furnishings, face plates of signage and other articles of
movable personal property (collectively, “ Tenant's Personal Property ”) on the Premises as may be needed for the
conduct of Tenant's business. It is expressly understood that the term Tenant's Personal Property as used herein shall in
no event extend to leasehold improvements, fixtures or similar “vanilla shell” items such as light fixtures, HVAC
equipment, or other fixtures and equipment, including any canopies, permanently affixed to the Premises.
21.18 Maintenance Records and Contracts . Tenant shall keep and maintain at all times complete and accurate
books and records regarding the maintenance and repair of the Premises, and upon the request of Landlord not to be
made more than once in any calendar year, Tenant shall furnish to Landlord within thirty (30) days of such request,
copies of all maintenance and repair records for the Premises in Tenant's possession for that year, including any
maintenance or service contracts.
21.19 Tenant's Personal Property . During the term of this Lease, Tenant may, at Tenant's expense, place or
install such furniture, trade fixtures, equipment, machinery, furnishings, face plates or signage and other articles of
movable personal property (collectively, “Tenant's Personal Property” ) on the Premises as may be needed for the
conduct of Tenant's business. It is expressly understood that the term Tenant's Personal Property as used herein shall in
no event extend to leasehold improvements, fixtures or similar “vanilla shell” items such as
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light fixtures, HVAC equipment, or other fixtures and equipment, including any canopies, permanently affixed to the
Premises.
21.20 Landlord's Cooperation . Landlord agrees, upon Tenant's request, but at no cost or expense to Landlord,
to provide such information as is reasonably necessary to assist Tenant in procuring any permits or licenses necessary to
operate the Premises as a convenience store with gas facilities or any other permitted use hereunder.
21.21

Substitution .

(a) Subject to the fulfillment of all of the conditions set forth in the following subsection (b), Tenant shall have
the right to deliver a rejectable offer to Landlord (each, a " Rejectable Substitution Offer" ) to substitute one or more
properties, together with all rights, privileges and appurtenances associated therewith and all buildings, structures,
fixtures and other improvements located thereon (the “Substitute Property” ) for the Premises if Tenant concludes in
its reasonable judgment, that it would be in its best interest to cease its business operations at the Premises based upon
(x) unacceptable or substandard performance of the Premises or (y) Tenant's economic analysis as to the value of the
Premises.
Each Rejectable Substitution Offer shall identify the proposed Substitute Property in reasonable detail and
contain a certificate executed by a duly authorized officer of Tenant pursuant to which Tenant shall certify that in
Tenant's good faith judgment such proposed Substitute Property satisfies as of the date of such notice, or will satisfy as
of the date of the closing of such substitution, all of the applicable conditions to substitution set forth in this Section
21.21. Tenant agrees to deliver to Landlord all of the diligence information and materials contemplated by the provisions
of Section 21.21 of this Lease within 30 days after the delivery to Landlord of a Rejectable Substitution Offer.
Landlord shall have sixty (60) days from the delivery of a Rejectable Substitution Offer notice satisfying the
requirements of the preceding paragraph to deliver to Tenant written notice of its election to either accept or reject the
Rejectable Substitution Offer. Landlord's failure to deliver such notice within such time period shall be deemed to
constitute Landlord's acceptance of the Rejectable Substitution Offer. If Landlord accepts the Rejectable Substitution
Offer or is deemed to have accepted the Rejectable Substitution Offer, then Tenant shall complete such substitution,
subject, however, to the satisfaction of each of the applicable terms and conditions set forth in this Section 21.21.
If Landlord rejects the Rejectable Substitution Offer pursuant to the previous paragraph for reasons other than
that, in Landlord's reasonable judgment, the proposed Substitute Property would not have satisfied the applicable
substitution conditions set forth in this Section 21.21, then this Lease shall terminate on the next scheduled payment date
for Base Rent (the “ Early Substitution Termination Date ”) provided Tenant has paid to Landlord all Base Rent,
Additional Rent and all other sums and obligations then due and payable under this Lease as of such Early Substitution
Termination Date.
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(b) The substitution of a Substitute Property for the Premises pursuant to the preceding subsection (a) shall be
subject to the fulfillment of all of the following terms and conditions:
(i)

The Substitute Property must:
(1)

be a convenience store with a storage tank system.

(2) have a fair market value no less than the greater of the then fair market value of the
Premises being replaced or the fair market value of such Premises as of the Effective Date (in each case, determined
without regard to this Lease, but assuming that while this Lease has been in effect, Tenant has complied with all of the
terms and conditions of this Lease), as determined by Landlord, based upon the sum of (x) the fair market value of the
land comprising the Premises and (y) the replacement cost of the improvements located thereon;
(3) have improvements which have a remaining useful life substantially equivalent to,
or better than that of the improvements located at the Premises to be replaced;
(4) be conveyed to Landlord by special or limited warranty deed, free and clear of all
liens and encumbrances, except such matters as are reasonably acceptable to Landlord (the "Substitute Property
Permitted Exceptions" );
(5)
be located in either (a) a state in which any of the Premises is located, or (b) in
another state acceptable to Landlord in Landlord's reasonable discretion (provided, however, Landlord shall not be
deemed to be unreasonable in withholding its consent if Tenant does not agree to pay Landlord's additional
administrative, legal, accounting or other costs associated with such state); and
(6)

have the approximate same annual fuel volume of the Premises.

(ii)
Landlord shall have inspected and approved the Substitute Property utilizing Landlord's
customary site inspection and underwriting approval criteria. Tenant shall have reimbursed Landlord for all of their
reasonable costs and expenses incurred with respect to such proposed substitution. Tenant shall be solely responsible for
the payment of all, costs and expenses resulting from such proposed substitution, regardless of whether such substitution
is consummated.
(iii) Tenant shall have executed such documents as may be reasonably required by Landlord as
a result of such substitution, including amendments to this Lease and the Memorandum (the "Substitute Documents"), all
of which documents shall be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Landlord;
(iv)
Tenant shall have delivered to Landlord certificates of insurance showing that insurance
required by the Substitute Documents is in full force and effect;
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(v) the date of the closing of the substitution shall occur no later than twenty (20) days after the
date of acceptance (or deemed acceptance) by Landlord of the Rejectable Substitution Offer;
(vi)
Tenant shall have delivered a fuel supply agreement for the Substitute Property to
Landlord's affiliate containing terms comparable to the fuel supply agreement for the Premises.
(c) Upon satisfaction of the foregoing conditions set forth in Section 21.21 and provided Landlord has
accepted the Rejectable Substitution Offer or is deemed to have accepted the Rejectable Substitution Offer:
(i)
(ii)
the definition of Premises;
(iii)

the proposed Substitute Property shall be deemed substituted for the Premises to be replaced;
the Substitute Property shall be referred to herein as the “Premises” and included within
the Substitute Documents shall be dated as of the date of the substitution; and

(iv) Landlord shall convey the Premises to be replaced to Tenant or a designee of Lessee "as-is"
by special warranty deed, subject to all matters of record (except for any mortgage corresponding to the Premises to be
replaced and any other consensual liens granted by Landlord and without representation or warranty.
21.22 Right of Refusal to Purchase . During the term and any extensions or renewals hereof, should Landlord
receive a bona fide offer from any third party (Other than any affiliate of Landlord) to purchase the Premises which
Landlord desires to accept, Landlord shall, before accepting such offer, notify Tenant in writing of all the terms and
conditions thereof (including a copy of the offer) and shall first offer in writing to sell the Premises to Tenant upon the
same terms and conditions. Upon receipt of any such notice and offer from Landlord, Tenant shall have twenty (20) days
thereafter within which to accept the same. Should Tenant fail to accept any such offer within said twenty (20) day
period, Landlord shall be free to sell the Premises to the original offeror upon the same terms and conditions offered to
Tenant without further notice to Tenant. Should Landlord, after having made such offer to Tenant as above-described,
fail to sell the Premises upon the same terms and conditions offered to Tenant, Landlord shall give Tenant notice in the
manner set forth above of any further or different offers received by Landlord for the purchase of the Premises and shall
first offer to sell the same to Tenant upon the same terms and conditions before accepting any such further or different
offer. It is expressly understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that Tenant shall have the right of first
refusal with respect to each and every offer to sell or purchase made or received by Landlord or by any successor
Landlord and the then Landlord at the time of the making of receipt of such offer to sell or purchase shall in each and
every instance notify Tenant of such offer in the
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manner set forth above and Tenant shall have the right to purchase the Premises under the terms and conditions of such
offer in accordance with the terms and provisions set forth above.
21.23 Guaranty . The obligations of Tenant under this Lease are guaranteed by Susser Holdings Corporation, a
Delaware corporation (the “ Guarantor ”), pursuant to that certain Guaranty between Landlord and Guarantor of even
date herewith. A release of Tenant upon an assignment of this Lease to an entity that meets the net worth requirements
set forth in Article XIV of this Lease or a release of Tenant upon the written agreement of Landlord and Tenant shall
also operate as a release of Guarantor.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have caused this Lease to be duly executed on or as of the day
and year first above written.
“LANDLORD”
SUSSER PETROLEUM PROPERTY
COMPANY LLC
By:_____________________________________
Name: Rocky Dewbre
Title: President and Chief Operating Officer
“TENANT”
STRIPES LLC ,
A Texas limited liability company
By:____________________________________
Name: E. V. Bonner, Jr.
Title: Executive Vice President
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EXHIBIT B
ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE

THIS ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE (“ Certificate ”) is given this __ day of ________, 20____ by ___________
(“ Tenant ” or “ Landlord ”) in favor of _____________________, a __________, with principal office and place of
business at ___________________________ (“ Beneficiary ”).
RECITALS:
A.
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of that certain Lease Agreement (“ Lease ”) dated
________, ___________________________ (“ Landlord ”) leased to Tenant certain real property in ______
County, _____ (“ Premises ”), which Premises are more particularly described in the Lease.
B.
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Lease, the Beneficiary has requested that the
Tenant/Landlord execute and deliver this Certificate with respect to the Lease.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises, the Tenant/Landlord hereby makes the following
statements for the benefit of the Assignee:
1.
The copy of the Lease attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit A is a
true, correct and complete copy of the Lease, which Lease is in full force and effect as of the date hereof, and has
not been modified or amended.
2.
The Lease sets forth the entire agreement between the Landlord and the Tenant
relating to the leasing of the Premises, and there are no other agreements, written or oral, relating to the leasing
of the Premises.
3.
There exists no uncured or outstanding defaults or events of default under the
Lease, or events which, with the passage of time, and the giving of notice, or both, would be a default or event of
default under the Lease.
4.

No notice of termination has been given by Landlord or Tenant with respect to

the Lease.
5.
All payments due the Landlord under the Lease through and including the date
hereof have been made, including the monthly installment of Base Rent (as defined in the Lease) for the period
of ______________ to ________________ in the amount of $___________.
6.

As of the date hereof, the annual Base Rent under the Lease is $__________.
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7.
There are no disputes between the Landlord and the Tenant with respect to any
rental due under the Lease or with respect to any provision of the Lease.
8.

The Lease remains/is no longer cross-defaulted with the Other Leases.

9.
Notwithstanding any provisions of the Lease to the contrary, the
Tenant/Landlord hereby consents to the [collateral] assignment of the Lease by the Landlord/Tenant to the
Beneficiary, and agrees that no terms and conditions of the Lease shall be altered, amended or changed as a result
of such assignment.
The Tenant/Landlord hereby agrees that from and after the date hereof [copies
10.
of] all notices which Tenant/Landlord is required to deliver to the Landlord/Tenant under the Lease with respect
to defaults, events of default or failure to perform by the Landlord/Tenant under the Lease, shall be delivered to
Beneficiary at the following address:
________________________________
________________________________
________________________________
________________________________

11.
The Tenant/Landlord understands and acknowledges that Beneficiary is relying
upon the representations set forth in this Certificate.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness the signature of the Tenant/Landlord as of the day and year first set forth
above.
_________________________________
By:______________________________
Name:___________________________
Its:______________________________

[INSERT NOTARY BLOCK]
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EXHIBIT C
MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

THIS MEMORANDUM OF LEASE, entered into as of this ____ day of _______, 20____, by and between
Susser Petroleum Property Company LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, whose address is 555 East Airtex
Drive, Houston, Texas 77073, (the “ Landlord ”), and Stripes LLC, a Texas limited liability company, whose address is
4525 Ayers Street, Corpus Christi, Texas 78415, (the “ Tenant ”).
W I T N E S S E T H:
THAT, Landlord and Tenant have heretofore entered into a certain Lease Agreement dated ____________,
20______ (the “ Lease ”) covering certain premises consisting of, among other things, certain real property located in
______ County, Texas, more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto upon which there is constructed and
located certain improvements (together the “ Premises ”), and
WHEREAS, it is the desire of both Landlord and Tenant to memorialize the Lease and set forth certain pertinent
data with respect thereto,
NOW THEREFORE, with respect to the Lease, Landlord and Tenant hereby acknowledge and agree as follows:
1. Demise . The Premises have been and are hereby demised, let and leased by Landlord to Tenant, and taken
and accepted by Tenant from Landlord, all pursuant to and in accordance with the Lease.
2. Term . The Initial Term of the Lease is from _________, 20____, until 11:59 p.m. on the date immediately
preceding the fifteenth (15 th ) anniversary of the Effective Date. Tenant has the right, privilege and option to renew and
extend the Initial Term of the Lease for up to five (5) additional periods of five (5) years each, subject to the provisions
and conditions of the Lease.
3. Possession . Landlord has delivered possession of the Premises to Tenant and Tenant has accepted delivery
and taken possession of the Premises from Landlord.
4. Liens on Landlord's Interest Prohibited . By the terms of the Lease, Landlord's interest in the Premises may
not be subjected to liens of any nature by reason of Tenant's construction, alteration, repair, restoration, replacement or
reconstruction of any improvements on or in the Premises, including those arising in connection with or as an incident to
the renovation of the improvements located on the Premises, or by reason of any other act or omission of Tenant (or of
any person claiming by, through or under Tenant) including, but not limited to, mechanics' and materialmen's liens.
Accordingly, all persons dealing with Tenant are hereby placed on notice that such persons shall not look to Landlord or
to Landlord's credit or assets (including Landlord's interest in the Premises) for payment or satisfaction of any
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obligations incurred in connection with the construction, alteration, repair, restoration, renovation, replacement or
reconstruction thereof by or on behalf of Tenant. Tenant has no power, right or authority to subject Landlord's interest in
the Premises to any mechanic's or materialmen's lien or claim of lien.
5.

The terms of the Lease contains a Right for First Refusal and a Right of Substitution.

6. Inconsistent Provisions . The provisions of this Memorandum constitute only a general description of the
content of the Lease with respect to matters set forth herein. Accordingly, third parties are advised that the provisions of
the Lease itself shall be controlling with respect to all matters set forth herein. In the event of any discrepancy between
the provisions of the Lease and this Memorandum, the provisions of the Lease shall take precedence and prevail over the
provisions of this Memorandum.
[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have caused this Memorandum of Lease to be duly executed on
or as of the day and year first above written.
Landlord:
SUSSER PETROLEUM PROPERTY COMPANY LLC
By: ______________________________________
Name: ______________________________
Title: _______________________________
STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF __________
The instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of __________, 20______ by
_______________________________________ as __________________ of SUSSER PETROLEUM COMPANY
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, on behalf of said limited liability company.
___________________________________________

Notary Public, State of Texas
Tenant:
STRIPES LLC
By: ______________________________________
Name: ______________________________
Title: _______________________________
STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF __________
The instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of __________, 20______ by
_______________________________________ as __________________ of STRIPES LLC, a Texas limited liability
company, on behalf of said limited liability company.
___________________________________

Notary Public, State of Texas
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Exhibit 21.1
List of Subsidiaries

Susser Petroleum Operating Company LLC
Susser Petroleum Property Company LLC
T&C Wholesale LLC

Delaware
Delaware
Texas

Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-184035) pertaining to the 2012 Long Term
Incentive Plan of Susser Petroleum Partners LP of our report dated March 29, 2013, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of
Susser Petroleum Partners LP included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2012.
/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP
San Antonio, Texas
March 29, 2013

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Sam L. Susser, certify that:
1.
2.

3.

4.
(a)

(b)

(c)

5.

(a)

(b)

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Susser Petroleum Partners LP;
Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;
Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;
The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and
Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):
All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and
Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 29, 2013

/s/ Sam L. Susser
Sam L. Susser
Chief Executive Officer of Susser Petroleum Partners GP LLC
(the general partner of Susser Petroleum Partners LP)

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Mary E. Sullivan, certify that:
1.
2.

3.

4.
(a)

(b)

(c)

5.

(a)

(b)

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Susser Petroleum Partners LP;
Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;
Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;
The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and
Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):
All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and
Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 29, 2013

/s/ Mary E. Sullivan
Mary E. Sullivan
Chief Financial Officer of Susser Petroleum Partners GP LLC
(the general partner of Susser Petroleum Partners LP)

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Susser Petroleum Partners LP (the “Partnership”) for the year ended December
31, 2012, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Sam L. Susser, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Partnership.
Date: March 29, 2013
/s/ Sam L. Susser
Sam L. Susser
Chief Executive Officer of Susser Petroleum Partners GP LLC
(the general partner of Susser Petroleum Partners LP)
This certification accompanies this Report on Form 10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the
extent required by such Act, be deemed filed by the Partnership for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Susser Petroleum Partners LP (the “Partnership”) for the year ended December
31, 2012, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Mary E. Sullivan, Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Partnership.
Date: March 29, 2013
/s/ Mary E. Sullivan
Mary E. Sullivan
Chief Financial Officer of Susser Petroleum Partners GP LLC
(the general partner of Susser Petroleum Partners LP)
This certification accompanies this Report on Form 10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the
extent required by such Act, be deemed filed by the Partnership for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

